
NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 

June 30, 2025, 9:30am 
Elko County Commission Chambers 

540 Court St. Suite 102  
Elko, NV 89801 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the 
following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, 
your public comment must include your full name and be submitted via email by not later than 3:00 
p.m. the day before the meeting.

The public may also join the meeting via remote access and provide verbal public comment during designated 
times by using the provided Microsoft Teams Link.  

AGENDA 
NACO Board members may attend via remote technology from other locations. Items on the agenda 
may be taken out of order. The NACO Board may combine two or more agenda items for 
consideration. The NACO Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to 
an item on the agenda at any time.  

Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Public Comment. Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes.

2. Approval of Agenda. For Possible Action

3. NACO President’s Report.

4. NACO Executive Director’s Report.

5. Approval of Minutes of May 30, 2025, NACO Board of Directors Meeting. For Possible
Action.

6. Presentation Regarding the Great Basin Children’s Advocacy Center, Located in Elko County.

7. Update on NACO Annual Conference Hosted by Clark County, September 23-25, 2025.

8. Discussion and Recap of the 2025 NACo County Leadership Institute in Washington, D.C.,
Commissioner Clara Andriola, Washoe County.

9. NACO Legislative Committee Update Including a Summary of Outcomes from the 2025
Legislative Session.

10. Possible Approval to Authorize NACO’s Executive Director to Provide Performance Bonus
for Government Affairs Staff as a Result of Efforts During the 83rd Session of the Nevada
Legislature. For Possible Action

mailto:info@nvnaco.org
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_N2Q0NGM3M2YtNGJmOC00MzFmLTlhYTEtOTU1OWRmNjgzNjMx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2200b6470d-ccce-4c12-bfdb-842764f04d3c%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%228018eb0b-8847-42c9-9d32-a6fdbbc5a251%22%7d


 

11. Review and Approval of Estimate to Replace Aging Boiler at the NACO Offices. For Possible 
Action.  
 

12. Approval of NACO’s February, March and April 2025 Financial Statements, respectively.  
For Possible Action.  
 

13. Update from NACO’s Health and Human Services Manager, For Possible Action  
 

14. Update and Possible Action. Regarding Public Lands and Natural Resources Issues 
Affecting Counties Including:  

a. Updates from the NACO Public Lands and Natural Resources Subcommittee.  
b. Discussion of NACO Natural Resources Manager Vacancy, Including Approval of 

NACO’s Executive Director to Explore Consulting Options with Resources Concepts, 
Inc, (RCI). For Possible Action.  
 

15. Update from NACO Committee of the Emeritus.  
 

16. Updates from Members of the National Association of Counties (NACo) Board of Directors. 
 

17. Updates from Members of the Western Interstate Region (W.I.R.) Board. 
 

18. NACO Board Member Updates.  
 

19. Public Comment. Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes. 
 
Adjournment. 
 
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify NACO in writing at 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703, 
or by calling (775) 883-7863 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 
 
Members of the public can request copies of the supporting material for the meeting by contacting 
Amanda Berg at (775) 883-7863. Supporting material will be available at the NACO office and on 
the NACO website at: www.nvnaco.org. 
 
This agenda was posted at the following locations: 
NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703 
Washoe County Admin. Building 1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, NV 89520 
Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801 
POOL/PACT 201 S. Roop Street, Carson City, NV 89701 
NACO Website: www.nvnaco.org  

http://www.nvnaco.org/


NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
Board of Directors’ Meeting 

May 30, 2025, 9:30am 
NACO Conference Room 
304 S. Minnesota Street 
Carson City, NV 89703 

UNADOPTED MINUTES 

Attendance: President Andreozzi, President Elect Gardner, Vice President Andriola, Past President 
Giomi, Churchill County Commissioner Getto, Douglas County Commissioner Tolbert, Esmeralda 
County Commissioner Perez, Lander County Commissioner Helming, Lincoln County Commissioner 
Reese, Lyon County Commissioner Keller, Nye County Commissioner Boskovich, Pershing County 
Commissioner Crim, Storey County Commissioner Carmona, Washoe County Commissioner 
Herman, White Pine County Commissioner VanCamp, Fiscal Officer Kalt and NACO Staff (Vinson 
Guthreau, Jennifer Berthiaume, Amy Hyne-Sutherland, and Amanda Berg. 

The meeting was called to order at 9:31 a.m. 

1. Public Comment. Robin Reedy, Executive Director of the National Alliance on Mental
Illness, Nevada (NAMI) addressed the Board regarding the 988 Coalition. She invited their
participation noting that input is needed regarding local needs, existing barriers, and
currently available services. She informed the Board that the next meeting of the Coalition
would be held on June 18th and that the group would also be organizing jurisdictional
groups as well. President Andreozzi thanked Ms. Reedy for her comment, noting that he had
heard great things about successful crisis de-escalations by 988 and that he is looking
forward to working with the Coalition on behalf of Elko County.

2. Approval of Agenda. The agenda was approved on a motion by President Elect Gardner
with second by Vice President Andriola.

3. NACO President’s Report. President Andreozzi reminded the Board that the location of the
next Board meeting will be in Elko County and that he is looking forward to hosting the
meeting and members of the Board.

4. NACO Executive Director’s Report. Vinson directed the Board’s attention to the report
from the Nevada Advisory Committee on Traffic Safety included in the agenda packet,
reminding the Board that Andrew Bennett, Director of the Clark County Office of Traffic
Safety is the Board’s appointee to the Committee. He informed the Board that Mr. Bennett
will be providing summaries to the Board following each meeting. Vinson also noted that
several bills were introduced during the Legislative Session regarding traffic safety and
informed the Board that he was available for questions or that he can put those with
questions in touch with Mr. Bennett directly. Vinson concluded his report by reminding the
Board of the National Association of Counties (NACo) Annual Conference being held July 11-
14 in Philadelphia and noted that advanced registration for the event would close on June
4th.

Agenda Item 5



5. Approval of Minutes of April 25, 2025, NACO Board of Directors Meeting. The minutes
were approved as presented on a motion by Vice President Andriola with second by
Commissioner Helming.

6. Update on Planning Activities Regarding the June 2025 NACO Board of Directors
Meeting Being Conducted in Elko County. President Andreozzi again reminded the Board
that the meeting will take place on June 27th in the Elko County Commission Chambers and
that dinner would be hosted the preceding evening at the Star. He reminded the Board that
staff had secured a room block for those attending in person and that Elko County is looking
forward to hosting the Board. Vinson concluded the item by informing the Board that he
would collaborate with Commissioner Tipton regarding the Public Lands and Natural
Resources subcommittee meeting traditionally held the afternoon before the meeting and
that he expects the off-site meeting to be as excellent as the meeting held in Eureka County
the previous year.

7. Presentation from Desert Research Institute (DRI) Regarding Nevada County Water
Resource Plans, Alexandra Lutz, PhD, Associate Research Professor, Division of
Hydrologic Sciences, DRI. Ms. Lutz thanked the Board for the opportunity to present to
them and informed them that DRI’s participation in the development of the plans for rural
and frontier counties is being funded by a grant from the State. She gave an overview of the
statutory requirement for counties of have water resource plans in place by 2019, which
will also be required to be updated every ten years. Ms. Lutz then gave an overview of the
main requirements that must be included in the plans, including an inventory of water
sources, analysis of existing and expected demand, analysis of sources versus  demand, and
management plans if demand exceeds supply. It was noted that the plans will not change
existing law or regulation, serve as support for advocacy, reallocate water, or focus on
infrastructure or project planning. Ms. Lutz also discussed the responsibility of DRI to
provide technical expertise and support for the writing of the plans and the individual
county responsibilities to provide data, community engagement and plan review. A review
of the project timeline for submission to and approval of the plans by the State Engineer
was given to ensure completion by December of 2026 when the grant funding terminates.
Ms. Lutz also informed the Board that there is up to $20,000 to support county participation
if necessary. Past President Giomi noted that some counties have third party water
purveyors, including non-profits and corporations and inquired as to if they are mandated
to participate in the sharing of information. Ms. Lutz stated that she was unsure of the
ability to compel those organizations to provide information and that she would get back to
the Board with that answer. President Andreozzi thanked Ms. Lutz for the presentation,
noting that water is the most valuable resource and that he is looking forward to assisting
with his County’s plan.

8. Update on Highlighting of Nevada’s Counties Regarding the 2025 Capitol Christmas
Tree, Selected from Nevada to be Displayed in Washington, D.C. Amanda thanked the
Board for their participation in the tree skirt project representing Nevada’s counties and
reminded them that she would need their individual panels to be returned no later than the
Board meeting on August 22nd. She also encouraged the Board to share her contact
information with those working on their panels in case there were any questions. President
Elect Gardner informed the Board that the Nevada Division of Outdoor Recreation is
working with the Forest Service on the project and has a PowerPoint presentation available
to present to the counties if interested. He also informed the Board that the intention is to
harvest the tree in time to have it available for display during the Nevada Day parade. Past
President Giomi requested that Amanda let the Board members know if there were any



issues with project and Commissioner Helming informed the Board that Lander County’s 
panel was complete and would be delivered to Amanda. 

9. NACO Legislative Committee Update Regarding the 83rd Session of the Nevada
Legislature and Discussion of Bills Affecting Nevada’s Counties. President Elect Gardner
thanked staff for their hard work and dedicated advocacy on behalf of counties during the
Legislative Session. Vinson informed the Board that a final legislative tracker and
comprehensive update would be provided at the June Board meeting, reminding them that
the Governor has ten days following the conclusion of the Legislative Session to either sign
or  veto legislation. Jennifer updated the Board on the status of NACO bills, informing them
that AB70 regarding cost recovery for counties related to renewable energy projects had
been signed by the Governor and that AB14, which would require County Commissioners to
be registered voters as well as qualified electors had been sent to the Governor for
approval. Jennifer directed the Boards attention to the legislative tracker included in the
agenda packet, noting the addition of color-coded bills that had been approved by the
Governor, including AB50 sponsored by Clark County that will allow the creation of
electronic databases during mass casualty events to assist in reunification and identification
efforts. She informed the Board that there were four days remaining in the Legislative
Session and that of the 1,199 filed bills approximately 85 had become law, 296 had been
passed through both houses of the Legislature, 226 awaited action by the Governor, and one
veto had been issued. Vinson announced that SB116, which addressed pay for local elected
officials, had been signed by the Governor and encouraged counties with technical
questions regarding its implementation to reach out to him directly. He also noted that
guidance will be provided to county fiscal staff following the conclusion of the Session,
including on the use of the CPIU as a guideline. Past President Giomi noted that most
counties had included the increases in their budgets in anticipation of passage of the bill,
noting that adjustments may be necessary but that the counties should be able to comply
with the implementation requirements. He also noted that while there may be short term
questions and minor implementation issues that the equity and predictability included in
the legislation were a long time coming and necessary. President Elect Gardner stated that
the bill contained critical information for future use and President Andreozzi noted that the
July 1 implementation date, while controversial was also a welcome inclusion in the final
bill. Vinson thanked the Board for their advocacy efforts and support and noted the
importance of the support of the other county elected officials in the passage of the
legislation. Vinson also noted that SB116 is better than the proposal that failed during the
2023 Legislative Session and informed the Board that the support of R&R Partners and the
Griffin Group was vital to the final passage of the bill. He then informed the Board that the
larger jurisdictions will see unfunded mandates in regard to child welfare, and that there
will be changes to elections and how they are run, noting that staff is working hard to
mitigate fiscal impacts. Vinson also informed the Board that staff had done a tremendous
amount of advocacy to ensure that proposed legislation that started out with high negative
impacts to counties ended in more a manageable manner. He reminded the Board that the
remaining bills are predominately fiscal in nature and that a comprehensive summary
would be provided in June. Vinson concluded his remarks by acknowledging Jennifer’s work
on tracking fiscal impacts. President Elect Gardner remarked on legislation that would have
reduced fuel tax indexing and law enforcement funding in Clark County and how the
passage of those bills will all more funding from NDOT to be passed to rural needs. He also
remarked on the failure of SB324 which would have affected the sale of bottled water in
Lake Tahoe and the passage of SB426 which will have affects on transportation in the Lake
Tahoe Basin. Vice President Andriola also remarked on the fast passed nature of the final
days of the Legislative Session and thanked staff for their dedicated work, communication,
and follow up on behalf of counties. No action was taken.



10. Update from NACO’s Health and Human Services Manager, Including the Possible
Acceptance of an Outreach and Communication Grant from Nevada Division of Public
and Behavioral Health (DPBH). Amy informed the Board that SB423, which would include
additional funding for foundational public health was not moving, but that the $15 million
included in the Governor’s budget appeared to be safe. She reminded the Board that the
funding distribution would follow SB118 from 2023 and that the counties that would
receive over $100,000 would need to have their interlocal agreements completed by June
17th (2025) in order to meet the requirements for approval by the Board of Examiners in
August. She informed the Board that she would work directly with the counties that needed
assistance following the conclusion of the Legislative session. Amy also reiterated that the
funding would not carry over and must be expended within the fiscal year or it would revert
back to the State. She also discussed questions regarding increases in assessments for
Medicaid match programs and informed the Board that the increases were due to provider
rate increases approved during the previous legislative session, announcing that a meeting
would be held with Nevada Medicaid on June 23rd to address the questions. Amy then
directed the Board’s attention to the overview of a proposed grant included in the agenda
packet. She explained that the State had entered into a contract for the services but that the
contractor could not perform the work prior to June 30, when the funding would revert
back to the Federal Government, prompting the State to inquire as to if NACO could
coordinate the work within the allotted time period. Amy explained that private contractors
had been identified that can complete the scope of work by June 30. She informed the Board
that a portion of the identified projects under the grant included customizable resources for
future use by counties and would also maximize the some of the work already done by the
state , she concluded her remarks by also informing the Board that NACO would receive a
10% indirect reimbursement of all expended funds for the administration of the 30 day
grant. Vice President Andriola clarified that if the funds under the award were not expended
by the 30th of June they would revert back to the Federal Government and Amy stated that
they would. The acceptance of the grant award was approved on a motion by Vice President
Andriola with second by Past President Giomi and President Andreozzi requested that a
report be given to the Board following the conclusion of the grant.

11. Update and Possible Action. Regarding Public Lands and Natural Resources Issues
Affecting Counties Including:

a. Updates from the NACO Public Lands and Natural Resources Subcommittee.
Vinson informed the Board that Commissioner Tipton had been unable to attend the
meeting the previous day due to prior commitments. He informed the Board that
Commissioner Steninger had given the Subcommittee an update on the WIR
conference held earlier in the month and had also discussed the filling of the vacant
Natural Resources Manager position. Vinson thanked the Board for increasing the
compensation for the position but informed them that there continued to be a lack
of qualified applicants. He reminded the Board of discussions with Resource
Concepts, Inc. (RCI) early the positions vacancy for assistance with natural resource
issues, but that they had previously lacked the bandwidth necessary to be effective
on behalf of NACO. Recent conversations with RCI have determined that they now
have available resources and a scope of work for a possible partnership is being
developed for the Board’s consideration. Vinson informed the Board that should a
scope and associated costs be approved RCI would start work on behalf of NACO on
August 1st, reminding the Board of the longstanding partnership between the
Association and RCI and the previous contract work done on natural resources
issues. The Subcommittee also discussed the recent proposal of the US Fish and



Wildlife Service for a listing of the Fish Lake Valley Tui Chub under the ESA. While 
the fish is only found in Esmeralda County, Vinson informed the Board that other 
counties had offered support with comment submissions. Commissioner Perez 
stated that the proposed listing had only just been made and that the county is 
working towards a plan of action and is grateful for the support.  

12. Update from NACO Committee of the Emeritus. Vinson informed the Board that the
Committee was restarting and is traditionally Chaired by the Immediate Past President of
the Association, he noted that the membership list is coming together, and the first meeting
would be held in July. He reminded the Board that the Committee is responsible for
assisting with workshops and conference topics and was developed as a way to leverage
institutional knowledge and mentor new Commissioners following the institution of term
limits. Vice President Andriola inquired as to how many members the Committee would
have, and Vinson informed the Board that around fifteen former Commissioners had agreed
to participate.

13. Updates from Members of the National Association of Counties (NACo) Board of
Directors. President Elect Gardner informed the Board that a meeting of the NACo Board
was held at the recent WIR conference where he had attended an orientation for new Board
members. He discussed a presentation on the benefits of NACo membership, which was
given during the orientation, noting that while the Board members understand, members of
the community do not and that a PowerPoint presentation is being developed as an
educational tool. President Elect Gardner informed the Board that discussions were held on
the proposed Farm Bill reauthorization and changes to municipal bonds. FEMA was also
discussed, including the elimination of the BRIK (Bitumen Royalty-In-Kind and Building
Resilient Infrastructure and Communities) program and changes to their grant award
process which would be beneficial to counties. He also noted that Congressman Amodei is
still hopeful to get a Northern Nevada lands bill passed.

14. Updates from Members of the Western Interstate Region (W.I.R.) Board. President
Elect Gardner informed the Board that a new Second Vice President was elected who is a
Commissioner from Oregon and the next WIR conference will take place in Maui. He also
informed the Board that Douglas County is in talks with NACo to host the 2027 WIR
Conference in Lake Tahoe.

15. NACO Board Member Updates. Members of the Board gave updates on activities within
their counties.

16. Public Comment. Megan Quintana, 988 Unit Supervisor at the Nevada Department of
Health and Human Services gave the Board an overview of the Unit and announced the
opening of a second call center in Southern Nevada to increase their ability to manage calls
from those in crisis. President Elect Gardner listed the NACo Policy Steering Committees
and encouraged the Board to share the opportunity to serve on the Committees with their
colleagues.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:17 a.m. 





 

 













Navigating Today, for Tomorrow's Excellence
Nevada Association of Counties

2025 Annual Conference
Hosted by Clark County

The South Point - September 23-25
REGISTRANT INFORMATION

COUNTY/ENTITY: ______________________________________________________________________________

ATTENDEE: __________________________________________ TITLE: _________________________________

ADDRESS: ___________________________________ CITY/STATE/ZIP: ___________________________________

PHONE: _____________________________________ EMAIL: ___________________________________________

CONFERENCE REGISTRATION FEES
Early Bird Registration closes 8-16 - Advanced Registration closes 9-6 

DELEGATE: County Elected Officials & Staff

Early Bird $225.00              Advanced $300.00
NON DELEGATE: Non County Elected Officials or Staff

Early Bird $275.00           Advanced $350.00
GUEST: $200.00 Must accompany a full conference registration.

PRESIDENT'S RECEPTION GUEST: $75.00 Must accompany a full registration

ANNUAL BANQUET GUEST:  $75.00 Must accompany a full registration

EVENT REGISTRATION
Tue. Sept. 23 - President's Reception # attending  _______
Wed. Sept. 24 - Luncheon     # attending _____
Wed. Sept. 24 - Banquet     # attending _____   

Boneless Rib Eye Steak Served with Au Gratin Potatoes and Seasonal Vegetables

Chicken Marsala Seared & simmered with Mushrooms in Marsala Wine served with Seasonal Vegetables & Rice Pilaf

Ratatouille Baked in a Pastry Crust served with Seasonal Vegetables & Fresh Tomato Provencal

TOTAL REGISTRATION FEES

Conference Fees:  ______________         Guest Fees: _______________

ACCOMODATIONS
Information on conference accommodations will be included in your registration confirmation email. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Make Checks Payable to: NACO - 304 S. Minnesota St.   Carson City, NV 89703
Questions:  Contact Amanda Berg at aberg@nvnaco.org or call 775-883-7863
Deadline:  Registration will close at 5:00P on September 6th.

We look forward to seeing you in Clark County

Please select your entrée(s) for the Annual Banquet from the options below.

Agenda Item 7



Navigating Today, for Tomorrow's Excellence
NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES

2025 Annual Conference
Hosted by Clark County

South Point - September 23-25

Conference Event $5,000.00 (3) - Includes dedicated event signage with company logo, opportunity for 
welcoming remarks during a whole of conference event, a full page ad in the

program and exhibit space.

Refreshment Station $2,000.00 (3) - Signage with your logo will be provided at the coffee/water station. 

**Due to requirements of the Fire Marshall this registration will close on Wed. August 6th**
Closing Continental Breakfast $1,000.00 (1) -  Includes signage with your logo and acknowledgement in the program.
Drink Tickets $1,000.00 (2) - Your logo will be printed on the drink tickets for one evening receptions.
Media & Technology Support $1,000.00 (8) - You will be acknowledged in the program and in a session presentation 
                                                                                        as supporting a portion of the conference's audio visual needs.
Program Ad $500.00 - Full page ad (8" tall x 5" wide) in the Annual Conference program. 

General Information & Important Details
Unless otherwise noted above, sponsor registration will close on August 29, 2025

Limited opportunities will be accepted in order of reservation. Members of the the NACO Community Partnership
Program will be given priority. For information on the Community Partnership Program, please contact our office.

ADVERTISING: Program ads are not to exceed 8 inches tall by 5 inches wide. Program ads and logos must be received by NACO in
JPEG or similar, no later than September 3, 2025.  If your registration comes with signage and you are a past 
conference sponsor, we may have your information on file. Staff will include the status of the information on file upon 

                        confirmation of  your sponsorship registration.
CANCELLATION: If a written request for cancellation of exhibit space is received by August 6th the sponsor will only be liable for 

50% of the cost of the space. Failure to cancel or failure to  appear does not release sponsor from liability 
for payment in full.

Please return registration form and payment*  to Amanda Berg at amandaberg@nvnaco.org or by mail to 

 The NACO Annual conference is the premier event for Nevada's 17 counties. Don't miss the chance to share what your 
company has to offer with our membership of elected officials and senior staff members responsible for the purchasing 

decisions and development of private sector relationships across Nevada. Select one of our inclusive packages, or mix and 
match from our A-la-Carte menu to create your ideal conference sponsorship.  

2025 Sponsorship Details

All sponsor representatives must individually register for the conference. 

NACO - 304 S. Minnesota St. Carson City, NV 89703
Thank you for supporting NACO and Nevada's Counties, we look forward to seeing you in Clark County!

                                                                   official conference program, and exhibit space. 

Inclusive Sponsorship Menu

Educational Session $3,000.00 (5) - Includes company logo an educational session presentation, opportunity for 
opening remarks in the session (2 min. or less), a full page ad in the conference 

A-la-Carte Sponsorship Menu

Exhibit Space $2,000.00 - One 6' table in the conference venue. 



 

 

 

 

Navigating Today, for Tomorrow's Excellence
NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES

2025 Annual Conference
Hosted by Clark County

South Point - September 23-25

Company: ______________________________________________________________________________________________

Address: _______________________________________________________________________________________________

City: __________________________________________________    State: ______________     Zip: __________________

Primary Contact: _______________________________________     Title: ____________________________________

Email: __________________________________________________________________________________________________

Sponsorship Menu Selections

Conference Event - $5,000.00 (3 available) Closing Continental Breakfast - $1,000.00
Educational Session - $3,000.00 (5 available) Drink Tickets - $1,000.00 (2 available)
Refreshment Station - $2,000.00 (3 available) Media & Tech. Support - 1,000.00 (8 available)
Exhibit Space - $2,000.00 (Closes 8-6) Program Ad - $500.00

Sponsorship Commitment $_____________________________

General Information & Important Details
Unless otherwise noted above, sponsor registration will close on August 29, 2025

Limited opportunities will be accepted in order of reservation. Members of the the NACO Community Partnership
Program will be given priority. For information on the Community Partnership Program, please contact our office.

ADVERTISING: Program ads are not to exceed 8 inches tall by 5 inches wide. Program ads and logos must be received by NACO in
JPEG or similar, no later than September 3, 2025.  If your registration comes with signage and you are a past 
conference sponsor, we may have your information on file. Staff will include the status of the information on file upon 
confirmation of  your sponsorship registration.

CANCELLATION: If a written request for cancellation of exhibit space is received by August 6th the sponsor will only be liable for 
50% of the cost of the space. Failure to cancel or failure to  appear does not release sponsor from liability 
for payment in full.

Please return registration form and payment* to Amanda Berg at amandaberg@nvnaco.org or by mail to 

* We are unable to accept credit cards for conference sponsorship.

2025 Sponsorship Registration

Please ensure that you have paid close attention to the details surrounding your 
sponsorship selections. Due to venue requirements and other outside factors there are 

specific deadlines this year which will not allow for accommodations.                                                                                                                              
Thank you for your support of NACO and Nevada's 17 counties. We look forward to working with 

you and seeing you in Clark County. 

All sponsor representatives must individually register for the conference. 

NACO - 304 S. Minnesota St. Carson City, NV 89703

Thank you for supporting NACO and Nevada's Counties, we look forward to seeing you in Clark County!



1 

83rd SESSION OF THE NEVADA LEGISLATURE 
2025 

Summary of Legislative Outcomes 

The 2025 Legislative Session began at a rapid pace, with NACO staff actively advocating for county 
priorities throughout the 120-day period. Vinson and Jennifer remained involved in the legislative 
process on a full-time basis, engaging in issues ranging from elections to natural resources. Amy, 
NACO’s Health and Human Services Manager, coordinated the legislative committee for the 
Nevada Association of County Human Service Administrators and collaborated with county public 
health professionals to ensure timely updates on key legislation. A section dedicated to legislation 
that impacted County Health and Human Services has been included in this Summary of Legislative 
Outcomes and can be found starting on Page 7. Meanwhile, Amanda diligently monitored 
legislative committee schedules and invested considerable time each week preparing the NACO 
bill tracker. 

The NACO Legislative Committee met weekly and provided critical input to NACO staff. NACO 
worked closely with County Commissioners, county staff, as well as individual county lobbyists 
throughout the session. This session NACO reviewed over 1,200 bills and actively tracked almost 
half of those, with over 400 bills having some impact on counties and local government. While the 
legislation we monitored was connected to county operations, administration, authority, and 
�inances, the main themes of session leaned toward election reforms and changes to healthcare. 
With direction from the Board of Directors and the Legislative Committee, NACO took positions of 
support, neutrality, or opposition on various bills, while also closely tracking others. The NACO 
team prioritized collaboration with the individual county lobbyists to oppose bills with potential 
negative impacts. Through engagement with bill sponsors, committee chairs, and legislative 
leadership, we were able to draft amendments that either reduced or eliminated potential impacts 
for counties. As a result, NACO was able to change from opposition to neutral or monitoring 
positions on some of the most concerning bills, many of which ultimately did not pass. 

NACO played a critical role in shaping and amending legislation that directly affected counties, 
including bills related to local elected of�icial salaries, election administration, unfunded 
mandates, public health infrastructure, and impacts of economic development on county 
infrastructure and services. Throughout the process, NACO concentrated on preserving county 
authority and reducing �iscal burdens on local governments. 

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

The 2025 Legislative Session brought a signi�icant increase in bill volume, with over 200 more 
measures introduced than in 2023. In response, NACO remained highly engaged and vigilant, 
working to quickly and diligently analyze impacts and share information with our members. Amid 
signi�icant budget constraints at the state level, there is heightened �iscal uncertainty for local 
governments—particularly urban counties, which face the greatest risk of �iscal exposure. These 
challenges raised serious concerns about potential unfunded mandates, revenue shifts, and 
increased service demands. However, through proactive engagement, strategic advocacy, and 
collaboration, NACO and its member counties were able to mitigate many of the most concerning 
proposals. As a result, despite the dif�icult �iscal environment, the �inal outcomes for local 
governments were ultimately more favorable than initially anticipated. 
 
NACO Sponsored Bills: 
 
NACO sponsored four bills this session, two successfully passed both chambers unanimously and 
were signed by the Governor:  

 
AB14 - Requires County elected of�icials to be registered to vote in addition to being 
quali�ied electors. 
AB70 Allows Counties a portion of cost recovery for renewable energy projects that occur 
on federal lands. 
 

Unfortunately,  the other two NACO bills, SB65, which would have made an addition to NRS 
Chapter 259 to clarify that certain records of a Medical Examiner or Coroner are public records, 
and SB73, which would have required county and city clerks to allow anyone to inspect registered 
voter signatures yet, would have prohibited clerks from providing or allowing a copy of the 
registered voter signature; were not granted hearings in their committees of reference and 
therefore failed the �irst legislative deadline of session.  
 
However, NACO was heavily involved in the passage of a bill that will modernize the salary 
structure for elected county of�icers, whose pay has been frozen since FY 2018–2019. Recognizing 
the need to better align compensation with market rates, the bill adjusts base salaries in an 
attempt to retain and attract quali�ied and dedicated community leaders. NACO has distributed a 
guidance document to County �inance staff to assist in the implementation ahead of the July 1st 
effective date.  
  

SB116 - Addresses local elected of�icial salary and compensation. 
 
Budget  
 
The State budget impacts counties in a number of ways, mainly through assessments to counties 
for various State functions. Counties are no stranger to budget challenges in the upcoming �iscal 
year, and the State had to be prudent with appropriations requests.  With that said, the �iscal 
impacts were minimized through effective advocacy especially by our Urban County membership, 
who secured appropriations for child welfare, speci�ically adoption savings and various other 
programs critical to all counties.  
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11767/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11885/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11865/Text
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11880/Overview
https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:VA6C2:614a24c0-7e33-4e22-b022-9f000a2705a6
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12029/Overview


3 
 

Additionally, NACO advocated for and received a continuation of local funding for public health 
services in the governor’s budget ($15 million) and indigent defense saw additional funding which 
NACO will work to make direct in order to mitigate continued impacts from the pre-trial release 
mandate. Counties will see continued state funding for the China Spring Youth Camp, however due 
to budget shortfalls in other areas, while the state share increased to cover these, counties will see 
slight increases to those assessments, while the state share continues to be maintained in line with 
prior sessions (we did not see additional cuts to that budget line item).  
 
Lastly, given the substantial caseload increases to the populations that counties serve and the 
increases in providers' rates to maintain availability, assessments from DDHS continue to go up. 
NACO recently shared The Department of Health and Human Services �inal list of each county’s 
assessments for the 26/27 biennium, and we will be hosting roundtables with county �iscal staff, 
human service administrators, along with county management and Medicaid to better understand 
those increases. 
 
The budget picture, once bleak, was mitigated by effective county advocacy by NACO, and our 
county partners ~ especially our urban partners, with counties coming out looking better than 
originally feared at the start of the 120-day legislative session.   
 
~~~~~~~~~~  
 
Below is a summary of all the actions that counties must take as a result of passed 
legislation, and key bills that may impact county operations. Also attached is the NACO bill 
tracker, which includes the outcome of each bill that NACO tracked.  
 
~~~~~~~~~~  
 
BILLS THAT PERTAIN TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT OR REQUIRE COUNTY ACTION  
Italics indicate actions that counties must take; text in purple indicate actions that county 
elected of�icials must take and/or notes from NACO.  
 
AB10 – Expands the de�inition of a “neighborhood improvement project” to include improvements 
to water or sewer systems owned by common-interest communities; prohibits the dissolution of 
a neighborhood improvement project that improves a water or sewer system but does allow local 
governments greater authority to proceed with these improvements by removing some notice and 
public hearing requirements that typically apply. NACO supported this measure, as it will 
provide �lexibility to local governments.  
AB28 – Extends the deadline for the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada to 
submit recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners on additional gross receipts tax 
of any retailer for the sale of certain tangible personal property sold at retail, from 2024 to 2028. 
AB39 – Designates colleges, universities, and local governments that sponsor charter schools as 
local educational agencies, eliminating the need for agreements with the State Public Charter 
School Authority (SPCSA).  
AB43 - Establishes a permanent program allowing certain public bodies in Clark County, including 
the major cities, to use job order contracting for minor public works projects. Requiring that at 
least 25% of workers be apprentices or graduates of an apprenticeship program. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11760/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11795/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11827/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11832/Overview


4 
 

AB55 - Updates procedures for investigating fatal vehicle crashes, requires coroners to test for 
both alcohol and commonly misused substances, without a strict time limit for collecting blood 
samples or reporting results. 
AB59 - Expands wildlife protection law by broadening the prohibition on feeding wild mammals 
and baiting game birds, and by increasing civil penalties for unlawfully killing or possessing 
moose, now classi�ied as trophy big game. 
AB69 - Removes the scheduled expiration date of the Nye County Sales and Use Tax Act of 2007, 
allows Nye County to continue levying a sales and use tax beyond October 1, 2027. 
AB76 - Establishes a standardized de�inition of “local governmental jurisdiction” for the purposes 
of governing medical and adult use of cannabis. 
AB92 – Requires that certain public buildings be made available without charge to state or 
county central committees of major political parties for meetings of any purpose in 
presidential election years and for precinct meetings in other years. 
AB93 - Expands the de�inition of “police of�icer” under the Nevada Occupational Diseases Act to 
include school police of�icers, juvenile probation of�icers, municipal court bailiffs and deputy 
marshals, city/town marshals and deputy marshals, and all Category I, II, and III peace of�icers. 
AB96 - Requires Clark and Washoe Counties to include a heat mitigation plan in their master 
plans. 
AB97 - Requires criminal justice agencies or any agency dealing with crime to maintain and 
submit records through the National Incident-Based Reporting System. 
AB104 - Establishes the Nevada Conservation and Recreation Program in statute, which includes 
a grant program and the Nevada Voluntary Water Rights Retirement Program—designed to retire 
groundwater rights through purchases or donations until June 30, 2035. 
AB108 - Appropriates $250,000 in �iscal years 2025–2026 and 2026–2027 from the State General 
Fund to the Outdoor Education and Recreation Grant Program Account to support the Outdoor 
Education and Recreation Grant Program. NACO supported this legislation.  
AB111 - Makes it a misdemeanor for anyone who crosses any dividing space, barrier or section of 
a divided highway. 
AB114 - Revises the appointment and leadership selection process for the Washoe County fair and 
recreation board. 
AB123 - Prohibits threatening or intimidating a candidate for public of�ice in a way that 
reasonably causes fear of harm to the candidate or their family or property. 
AB125 - Requires the schedule of meetings of public bodies to be posted on the location on the 
of�icial website of the State that is maintained by the Department of Administration. 
AB128 - Creates the Public Records Task Force to study and evaluate issues related to public 
records requests. NACO participated in the stakeholder meetings where the amended 
version of this bill was agreed upon. NACO, or a county, is named as one of the Government 
representatives of the Task Force.  
AB133 - Establishes a technology improvement fund from unclaimed sale proceeds in the 
Of�ice of the County Treasurer.  
AB136 – Requires local governments to ensure commercial establishments interacting with 
live animals post mandated signage with the local animal control authority's phone number. 
AB142 - Expands the de�inition of "�irst responder" under state's industrial insurance law to 
include civilian employees of law enforcement agencies whose primary duties involve responding 
to and investigating crime scenes and allows employees to receive compensation for stress-related 
mental injuries caused by traumatic events witnessed on the job. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11851/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11859/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11884/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11896/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11965/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11975/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11978/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11979/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11994/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12003/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12012/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12015/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12035/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12037/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12047/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12052/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12055/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12068/Overview


5 
 

AB148 – Changes the deadlines for distributing mail and sample ballots to registered voters. 
Requires sample ballots to be sent before the mail ballot deadline for each election type, 
including special elections and city incorporation votes. 
AB167 - Enhances oversight of corrective room restriction for detained children by requires 
facility staff to conduct a review every 24 hours if the restriction exceeds one day. 
AB197 - Strengthens privacy protections for individuals associated with nonpro�it organizations 
by prohibiting governmental entities from collecting, disclosing, or requiring personal 
information that identi�ies a person as a donor, member, or volunteer, with certain exceptions. 
AB198 - Establishes safety, licensing, and operational requirements for businesses and operators 
of in�latable recreational devices (e.g., bounce houses, in�latable slides) and allows local 
governments to adopt additional regulations and penalties related to in�latable device safety. 
AB211 - Establishes new enforcement mechanisms for ensuring habitability in residential 
multifamily rental properties and allows local governments to order repairs when such 
properties violate health, safety, or building codes and endanger residents. NACO provided 
support for the legislation.  
AB241 - Requires local governments to adopt ordinances allowing multifamily or mixed-use 
residential developments by-right on commercially zoned land, overrides con�licting local rules 
and provides legal timelines for challenges.  
AB249 - Allows the Fiscal Analysis Division to grant local governments up to 7 extra days to 
submit �iscal notes if more research is needed. NACO submitted the amendment that added the 
local government extension.  
AB262 - Allows election board of�icers, counting board of�icers, and trainees to volunteer without 
compensation if they choose.  
AB263 - Requires Clark County to notify the Department of Transportation before clearing 
homeless encampments near state-controlled roadways, for the purpose of allowing the 
Department to participate in encampment clean up, if needed.  
AB301 - Updates recordkeeping requirements for general improvement districts, requires online 
publication of �inancial documents, increases board compensation, and mandates annual reports 
for certain districts. Additionally, revises rules for issuing and transferring low-income housing 
tax credits by shortening application deadlines and expanding eligibility for land acquisition and 
credit transfers. 
AB325 - Requires state and local emergency management plans to include safeguards that 
prohibit �inal emergency response decisions, including resource allocation and utility 
shutdowns, from being made solely by arti�icial intelligence, ensuring human oversight. 
AB333 - Terminates the existing lease of state-owned land to Washoe County and replaces it with 
a new lease agreement for the portion used as a county public building complex.  
AB367 - Allows voters with physical disabilities to use mobile devices for interpretive services, 
including American Sign Language, when voting. Requires the Secretary of State to post voting 
materials online in multiple languages, establish a toll-free number for language assistance, and 
hire a language access coordinator.  
AB375 - Authorizes local governments to allow food establishments to sell and deliver sealed 
alcoholic beverages for off-premises consumption and allows quali�ied distillers to import 
neutral spirits and manufacture additional quantities of exclusive spirits for export. Finally, it 
designates Picon Punch as Nevada's of�icial state drink. 
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12074/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12120/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12167/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12168/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12213/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12262/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12279/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12299/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12309/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12374/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12417/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12425/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12487/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12511/Overview


6 
 

AB377 - Allows County assessors to accept property value declaration forms from the 
Recorder’s Of�ice. Requires the Nevada Tax Commission to update the form to include options 
for claiming property tax abatements on primary residences or quali�ied rental properties and 
prohibits charging a fee to record the form. NACO provided guidance and support for this 
legislation.  
AB380 – Revises the law on the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and mobile crisis teams by 
removing location restrictions and broadening who can establish such teams, requires at least one 
behavioral health professional and may include law enforcement, EMS providers, community 
health workers, or peer recovery support providers. NACO supported this legislation.  
AB381 - Re�ines the de�initions of "cruelty" and "torture," increases penalties for severe offenses, 
and expands protections for animals, while also authorizing temporary restraining orders in 
animal cruelty cases.  
AB396 - Requires Clark and Washoe Counties to adopt ordinances by July 1, 2026, allowing 
accessory dwelling units (ADUs) on residential properties, with limited restrictions.  NACO 
worked extensively on this legislation to reduce burdens to local governments, allow for 
population caps and keep it to existing ordinances in our urban counties.   
AB415 - Amends existing laws related to the removal of abandoned vehicles and allows agencies 
to af�ix a notice to abandoned, unregistered vehicles that may be classi�ied as junk, informing 
the owner that the vehicle will be disposed of if not removed within 7 days. NACO Supported 
this legislation.  
AB418 - Requires counties and cities to adopt ordinances mandating that kennels, animal 
rescue organizations, and pet-related businesses complete a prescribed pet-handling 
training course and renew it every two years. 
AB429 - Clari�ies that any person or governmental entity may create, modify, or otherwise 
manage a conservation easement in the same manner as other easements, expanding existing 
authority beyond current exceptions. 
AB439 - Allows public and law enforcement agencies to purchase unmanned aerial vehicles 
or related services from restricted businesses.  
AB444 - Removes exemptions for local governments on impact fee and sales tax rule 
procedures, making noncompliant rules void and unenforceable. 
AB458 - Expands net metering to solar-powered affordable housing, exempts such systems from 
public utility status, and sets rules for tariffs, contracts, and tenant noti�ications. 
AB462 - Expands the Inland Port Authority Act to include industrial parks, enabling the creation 
of tax increment areas to fund projects and allowing bond issuance. 
AB479 - Amends Nevada law to recognize agrivoltaic purposes—land used for both solar energy 
production and agricultural activities—as an agricultural use for taxation purposes. NACO 
worked extensively on this legislation to hold counties harmless, and Eureka and Churchill 
Counties supported after the sponsor accepted their amendments.  
AB491 - Requires County and city clerks to promptly provide election-related data to the 
Secretary of State upon request and requires candidates for most state and local elected 
of�ices must be registered voters in the relevant jurisdiction as a quali�ication to hold of�ice.  
AB502 - Increases enforcement in public works contracting by expanding reporting 
requirements, extends apprentice request timelines, revises contractor disquali�ication 
periods, creates a Public Works Compliance Division, and imposes penalties for 
noncompliance, and prohibits public bodies from passing penalties onto contractors. 
AB509 - Requires broadband providers, starting July 1, 2026, to enter into agreements with 
local governments to access public rights-of-way. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12519/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12522/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12523/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12561/Text
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12594/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12605/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12626/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12646/Text
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12652/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12697/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12707/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12736/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12756/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12785/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12800/Overview


7 
 

AB518 - Updates State law on the Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children (ICPC) 
clarifying that when the sending state retains or terminates jurisdiction, the receiving state is 
required to approve and assess placement safety and suitability, and assigns �inancial 
responsibility based on placement speci�ics. 
AB530 - Allows the Clark County Board of Commissioners to continue imposing annual fuel 
tax increases after January 1, 2027, through a two-thirds board vote via ordinance, rather 
than requiring voter approval. 
AB540 - Creates the Nevada Attainable Housing Account to support housing for low- to moderate-
income residents and creates oversight through the Nevada Attainable Housing Council, sets 
allocation and reporting requirements, and introduces new income-based housing tiers. It also 
expands authority for expedited project approval, land use, and developer evaluation for 
attainable housing. 
SB15 - Updates County procedures by removing the August meeting requirement for debt 
commissions, expands conservation fee uses, clari�ies tax sale deadlines, adjusts county of�ice 
hours, eliminates certain school district reports to counties, and reduces public notice posting 
requirements for utility franchises. 
SB21 - Makes changes to the Advisory Board on Outdoor Recreation, of which the NACO Board is 
required to provide recommendations for one member from a county under 100K in 
population. 
SB69 - Strengthens oversight and local government involvement in large-scale economic 
development projects with $1B+ in capital investment seeking tax abatements or transferable tax 
credits. NACO supported this legislation.  
SB120 - Prohibits courts from charging interest or fees for payment plans set up by defendants 
and bars courts from requiring defendants to repay the cost of a court-appointed attorney, also 
allows courts to adopt rules for managing payment plans and repeals existing laws that previously 
allowed recovery of public defender costs from defendants. 
SB162 - Requires any entity receiving state funding to agree to comply with applicable civil 
rights and employment laws as a condition of accepting the appropriation. 
SB170 - Mandates that physical exams and annual cancer screenings for non-state executive 
department employees be conducted by quali�ied medical professionals and include speci�ic 
tests. Screenings are tied to industrial insurance eligibility for lung, heart, and cancer-related 
occupational diseases. 
SB179 - Requires the Nevada Equal Rights Commission to consider whether alleged 
discriminatory practices in housing, employment, or public accommodations were motivated by 
antisemitism. 
SB183 - Limits child welfare caseworkers providing permanency services to a maximum of 30 
children, with exceptions for keeping siblings together or during temporary emergency 
circumstances under agency policy. 
SB191 - Expands authority for municipal courts to designate non-certi�ied individuals to operate 
sound recording equipment and increases compensation for certain services provided by court 
reporters in state district courts. 
SB196 - Allows heavy equipment rental companies in Nevada to charge up to a 2% recovery fee 
to offset property taxes, with requirements for transparency, proper fund use, annual reporting, 
and penalties for misuse or false reporting.  
SB208 - Expands the allowed use of 911 emergency service surcharge funds and permits counties 
to use these funds for costs related to constructing, maintaining, or operating facilities that 
house emergency call systems. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12809/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12821/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12839/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11768/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11776/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11869/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12039/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12180/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12188/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12197/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12201/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12235/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12243/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12266/Overview


8 
 

SB210 - Increases various service fees charged by sheriffs and constables in Nevada, including 
fees for serving legal documents, mileage, executing writs, issuing certi�icates of sale, and related 
tasks. 
SB241 - Limits juvenile probation to 18 months total regardless of offenses, permits ending 
probation despite unpaid restitution with civil judgments for the balance, and requires a hearing 
before detaining a child for probation violations, similar to parole procedures. 
SB273 - Expands existing law to allow civilian employees who support law enforcement 
agencies, as well as �ire�ighters and retired �ire�ighters, to obtain court orders to keep their 
personal information con�idential in public records and authorizes these groups to request 
an alternate address on their driver’s license or ID.  
SB285 - Requires apprenticeship programs covering multiple construction trades to have 
separate standards for each trade but allows existing non-compliant standards approved 
before October 1, 2025, to remain in use until updated or voided. 
SB320 - Expands the 20-foot no stopping, standing, or parking rule to include unmarked 
crosswalks, lets local authorities increase this distance with proper signage for safety, and 
phases in full enforcement by law enforcement of�icers starting January 1, 2027, after a 
warning-only period through the end of 2026. 
SB325 - Allows counties and cities to establish programs waiving adoption fees for veterans, 
law enforcement of�icers, and �irst responders, with limits on one animal per person every six 
months.  
SB421 - Requires County clerks or elections of�icials to staff election polling locations within 
the boundaries of an Indian Tribe regardless of a tribe requesting them. 
 
~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

NACO Health & Human Services Legislative Update 
 
Overview  
 
The 83rd Session of the Nevada Legislature brought significant structural changes to the state’s 
health and human services system, most notably through a comprehensive reorganization of the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). The restructuring established a standalone 
Nevada Health Authority and a separate Department of Human Services. The new structure is 
anticipated to leverage federal resources and maximize the state’s purchasing power to manage 
costs and improve services for everyone who receives a state-sponsored health insurance plan, 
including the Public Employee Benefits Program (PEBP) and Medicaid.   
 
Governor Lombardo included $15M in flexible, per capita, public health funding to local public 
health authorities for the next biennium, an investment approved by the legislature. NACO’s 
Health & Human Services Manager is currently supporting counties through planning and 
implementation of this next round of funding. SB423, an Interim Health & Human Services 
Committee bill focused on public health base funding for all counties, which was supported 
extensively with research and development by NACO’s Health & Human Services Manager, did not 
pass this session, but will remain a priority for public health infrastructure development through 
the interim.   
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12268/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12362/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12459/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12489/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12549/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12564/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12766/Overview


9 
 

With the restructuring of the Department of Health & Human Services (SB494) and passage of bills 
impacting the State Department of Agriculture (AB352, SB466) and the Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection (SB43), public health infrastructure will look different at the state and 
local level. Counties will have additional partners to coordinate with in the development of local 
services and the payment of county assessments. The Department of Agriculture will regulate all 
cottage food and cosmetics, as well as cover all food-related public health oversight for counties 
outside of health districts, which includes restaurant permitting and inspections. The Nevada 
Health Authority will oversee healthcare quality and compliance, and within that unit, public 
health permitting and inspection of all non-food facilities, such as pools, hotels, RV parks, and 
tattoo parlors. The Nevada Department of Environmental Protection will have primary 
responsibility for solid waste management and public water system authority with specific duties 
negotiated through interlocal agreements with health districts. NACO’s Health & Human Services 
Manager worked extensively throughout session with sponsors and staff proposing infrastructure 
changes to promote good policy, limit negative impacts to counties, including county budgets, and 
to promote the county voice in policy discussions. NACO will provide ongoing updates to changes 
as implemented.   
 
Throughout the session, the NACO Health & Human Services Manager played a central role in 
facilitating the Nevada Association of County Human Services Administrators Legislative Call. 
These meetings ensured participating county Human Services Directors and staff were informed 
and coordinated within real time, and provided a forum for reviewing bills, sharing fiscal concerns, 
and shaping collective responses.   
 
~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
BILLS THAT PERTAIN TO HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES   
Italics indicate actions that counties must take; text in purple indicate actions that county 
elected of�icials must take and/or notes from NACO.  
 
AB19 – Revises the Statewide Substance Use Response Working Group, adding additional 
members, including a designee of the Department of Indigent Defense Services, a member from 
the Division of Public & Behavioral Health, and someone who is bilingual and resides in a bilingual 
household.   
AB30 – Requires local detention centers (including county, city, town jail) to provide mental 
health information and treatment records to state authority upon request for any person 
previously in their care who is committed to custody of, or required to report to, the 
Administrator based upon a finding of incompetence. Effective upon passage and approval.  
AB42– Revises provisions related to Medicaid, allowing the Administrator of the Division of 
Health & Human Services to adopt, amend or repeal a regulation or policy within 3 business days 
in order to comply with state or federal law, or if the result is an expansion of services or benefits.  
AB50 – Authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to establish an electronic database 
containing information concerning victims of mass casualty incidents to coordinate reunification 
and identification services. No action is required, but counties may choose to establish such a 
database to ensure timely reunification and identification processes are in place ahead of 
mass casualty incidents.   
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11779/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11802/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11831/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11842/Overview


10 
 

AB52 – Standardizes and increases requirements for how health insurers and plan administrators 
process and pay health insurance claims. It shortens decision timeframe to 21 days for electronic 
and 30 days for non-electronic submissions. The bill requires annual notification of claims 
processing and insurers must streamline the claims appeal process. While state plans were 
exempted, this could have an impact on self-insured plans, those plans should review the 
passage of this legislation. Effective January 1, 2026.  
AB56 – Revises continuing education requirements for certain healthcare providers.   
AB60 – Northern Region Behavioral Health Policy Board bill that establishes profession of 
Certified Prevention Specialist in statute and requires the Board to adopt regulations governing 
their practice.  
AB65 – Various updates to guardianship laws, including prohibiting government entities from 
charging fees for documents requested by investigators in guardianship cases. The bill permits 
extended guardianships for minors seeking special immigrant juvenile status and eliminates 
Medicaid notification for these cases. County public guardians should review this legislation 
thoroughly as those offices must comply with updated service, notice, and investigation 
procedures effective July 1, 2025.  
AB89 – Requires local child detention centers and regional child rehabilitation and treatment 
centers to adopt and implement policies regarding unclothed searches of detained children. 
Counties must adopt and implement policies in alignment with the law, effective October 1, 
2025.   
AB102 – Authorizes a district Board of Health within a health district with a county over 100,000 
in population, but under 700,000 in population (currently Washoe County), to regulate emergency 
medical services, and also provides  and provides that a person at least 16 years of age, if meeting 
other requirements, is eligible for licensure as an attendant of an ambulance or air ambulance or 
certification as an emergency medical technician.  
AB220 – Authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to establish a program to issue 
identification cards to Nevada residents who are experiencing homelessness. County 
governments may consider revising policies and procedures to accept this form of 
identification, and county Human Service Administrators may add this program to any 
resource lists or current referral processes.   
AB227 – Revises laws on adoption, establishing new procedures, definitions, and safeguards, 
including requirements for consent, post adoptive contact, and placement. In counties over 100K, 
requires the Board of County Commissioners to create an ordinance establishing reasonable fees 
for child welfare agencies assisting in adoption placement, including conducting a home study, and 
in counties under 100K directs the Division of Child and Family Services to do so. Direct Adoption 
Service Counties must update licensing standards, reporting requirements, and procedures 
for placements.  
AB230 – Ratifies and enters Nevada into the Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology Interstate 
Compact.  
AB235 – Allows providers of reproductive health services, any employee or volunteer of a facility, 
and the spouse or child of such, to request for personal information contained in records of a 
county recorder, assessor, and clerk to be kept confidential. Effective July 1, 2025.    
AB266 – Revises provisions related to breastfeeding and public accommodation. Prohibits 
discrimination in public accommodations for a person breastfeeding a child, including prohibiting 
any signage or notice, or otherwise indicating that a person breastfeeding a child is unwelcome in 
a public accommodation. Effective October 1, 2025.   
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11844/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11854/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11860/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11874/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11953/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11984/Text
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12229/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12238/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12251/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12312/Overview


11 
 

AB269 – Revises provider types and expands eligibility for Student Loan Repayment for Providers 
of Health Care in Underserved Communities Program to include Public Health Professionals, MFTs, 
CADC and ADCs, and Problem Gambling Counselors. Due to NACO’s direct advocacy efforts, 
County Health Officers are now eligible for this loan repayment program, and other public 
health professionals serving in local health departments will be added through the regulatory 
process. Counties should encourage their County Health Officers (CHO) to apply for the 
program as needed, and utilize this benefit to attract and retain qualified CHOs.   
AB326 – Updates laws related to the designation and operation of centers of trauma, requiring 
the State Board of Health to establish standards and a designation of a trauma level IV, which is 
limited to critical access hospitals located more than 80 miles outside the boundaries of a county 
with two or more existing centers for the treatment of trauma.   
AB331 – Makes an appropriation of $220K per year of the biennium to DHHS for a grant program 
to support the administration of the Youth Risk Behavior Survey. NACO supported this bill, as 
many county governments and county partners in Nevada rely on the Youth Risk Behavior 
Survey to support youth mental and behavioral health efforts in their communities, as well as 
to secure federal and state grant funding for local projects.   
AB344 – Updates terminology across various statutes for officials performing duties in family, 
juvenile justice, and similar proceedings. It creates a formal process for transferring child welfare 
cases between courts within Nevada, requiring both courts to hold a joint hearing and find the 
transfer is in the best interest of the child. The bill expands the right to legal representation in child 
welfare cases, including during protective custody hearings and proceedings to determine if a 
child is in need of protection, and clarifies when and how attorneys must be appointed for parents 
or guardians. Attorneys appointed in these proceedings must be compensated at rates not less 
than those for misdemeanor or felony defense, depending on the proceeding. County 
governments must ensure that child welfare and court-appointed counsel systems comply 
with new representation and compensation requirements, particularly for indigent parties, 
effective October 1, 2025.  
AB350 – Revises provisions related to cemeteries, including process to disinter and move human 
remains, as well as mandatory upkeep and maintenance of cemeteries. NACO in partnership with 
partner county lobbyists negotiated numerous amendments to this legislation. Counties 
allowed for reasonable upkeep and access standards, and exempted county-owned 
cemeteries and those deemed historic under NRS.   
AB352 – Establishes a new licensing framework for individuals who prepare and sell cosmetics 
or food from their home kitchens. It requires people conducting a cottage cosmetics operation or a 
cottage food operation to obtain a license from the State Department of Agriculture and meet 
specific definitions and sales thresholds. The bill allows sales through online and telephone orders 
and permits food delivery platforms to deliver items from licensed cottage operations. It raises the 
sales cap for craft food operations from $35,000 to $100,000 annually and removes certain canning 
requirements, while also expanding allowances for farm-to-fork events, particularly for small 
farms hosting limited events. Local governments may regulate the time, place, and manner of 
these establishments as long as they do not create unreasonable restrictions. NACO worked 
extensively on this legislation and given the change of jurisdiction for certain services NACO 
will engage with counties, local health districts and the Department of Agriculture during the 
regulatory process to ensure a smooth transition of services by the implementation date of 
July 1, 2027.   
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12316/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12418/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12423/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12438/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12444/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12446/Overview


12 
 

AB360 – Makes changes to requirements for certain medical facilities (does not include hospitals, 
emergency rooms, or labor unit of a hospital) to test a pregnant woman for syphilis using a rapid 
test at point of contact instead of a standard serological test in certain circumstances regardless of 
reason the pregnant woman seeks treatment, and to develop a policy related thereto. County-
owned rural clinics are exempted. Counties owning or operating a non-rural medical facility 
that meets criteria must comply with standards, effective January 1, 2026.    
AB387 – Revises guardianship laws and court proceedings for minors. It modifies who must be 
served in guardianship proceedings and updates how service must be conducted. It also allows 
court waivers for minors to attend hearings, brings clarity to appointing guardians, and mandates 
additional reporting on parent visitation. County public guardians should review this 
legislation thoroughly as those offices must comply with updated procedures effective 
October 1, 2025.  
AB428 – Requires local government health plans, to include coverage for medically necessary 
fertility preservation services for insureds who have been diagnosed with breast or ovarian 
cancer. Counties should review health insurance plans for employees to ensure compliance, 
effective January 1, 2027.   
AB448 – Establishes new standards and restrictions for providers of vision insurance and vision 
care, and includes local governments and plans offered by these entities. The bill prohibits 
deceptive, or unfair, billing and contracting practices. Local government plans should be 
reviewed for compliance by January 1, 2026.  
AB461 – Requires the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, through its Aging and 
Disability Services Division, to implement a program that educates residents about planning for 
long-term care. The bill also requests the Nevada Supreme Court’s Guardianship Commission to 
study how other states have implemented the Uniform Health-Care Decisions Act. The 
Commission must examine the remaining provisions of the Act and provide recommendations to 
the Joint Interim Standing Committee on Health and Human Services regarding its possible full 
adoption in Nevada. County Public Guardians were instrumental in mitigating potential 
negative impacts of this bill and will have the opportunity to shape future action through 
participation in the study.  
AB463 – Requires certain health insurers to respond for requests for prior authorization for 
medical or dental care within a certain amount of time and prohibits certain insurers from 
requiring prior authorization for certain services. Counties should review their specific health 
insurance plans and contracts to determine impact and recommendations for procedural 
changes. Effective January 1, 2026.  
AB467 – Authorizes the creation of mental health treatment facilities for incompetent defendants 
within county jails or detention centers in counties with populations over 100,000 (Currently Clark 
and Washoe Counties). Impacted counties should review the enabling language within the law 
for opportunities to further develop jail-based competency restoration programs, and all 
counties should review the new mandates on DCFS to immediately accept placement of a child 
who is court-ordered to a treatment facility.  
AB483 – Provides for priority review of emergency medical provider applications for licensure 
when the provider serves an historically underserved community, defined as a census track that: 
(1) is designated as a qualified census tract through HUD; (2) at least 20 percent of households 
were not proficient in English; or (3) qualified tribal land.  
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12469/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12625/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12703/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12708/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12712/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12743/Overview


13 
 

AB514 – Requires Nevada Medicaid to cover rehabilitative residential mental health care, defined 
as community-based, medically monitored treatment in a residential setting. It establishes a new 
licensing and regulatory framework for providers of this care, including requirements for 
inspections, background checks, patient safety procedures, and notification of health and safety 
deficiencies. The State Long-Term Care Ombudsman must now investigate and assist these 
providers, and providers must be licensed. The bill prohibits unlicensed operation of such facilities 
and makes violations a misdemeanor.  
AB515 – Makes changes to categorical grants received by child welfare agencies for adoption 
assistance programs such that unspent funds do not revert to the State General Fund and requires 
child welfare agencies to continue to use such money for the costs of providing child welfare 
services in alignment with federal law. Additionally, appropriates for the reinvestment of 
adoptions savings as required by federal law to the Division of Child and Family Services for the 
Clark, Washoe, and Rural Child Welfare budgets a total of $3,991,946; requires study on the 
reinvestment of adoption savings and subsequent plan. The appropriation in this bill and 
requirement for the state to develop a plan to ensure effective and efficient compliance with 
federal law regarding adoption savings regulation benefited all counties and was made 
possible through the advocacy efforts of partners at Washoe and Clark County.  
AB552 – Makes changes to the Trust Fund for Child Welfare in counties with populations under 
100,000. This bill eliminated the requirement (also the permission) for the Division to deduct from 
the account for any services provided by public funds. Counties under 100,000 population could 
see a small fiscal impact, albeit limited, given that this source of revenue is now prohibited 
from funding services and DCFS has accounted for this in the Rural Child Welfare Budget. See 
SB284 update below for a similar change made for counties over 100,000 population 
(currently Washoe and Clark Counties).  
AB556 – Creates the Beneficiary Advisory Council within the Division of Healthcare Financing and 
Policy to advise the Medicaid Advisory Committee on matters relating to the development of 
Medicaid policy, effective administration, including the experience of being a recipient, the ability 
to access services, and the methods to better promote health equity for recipients. It establishes 
Council membership, process to appoint, and minimum meeting cadence. It also revises 
membership and renames the Medical Care Advisory Committee to the Medicaid Advisory 
Committee. 
SB8 – Revises and simplifies language relating to who is served by the Aging and Disabilities 
Services Division to those with a developmental or intellectual disability.  
SB9 – Establishes timelines for insurers to respond to state inquiries and makes changes to 
insurers ability to deny a claim based on lack of prior authorization if certain conditions are met 
by the State.   
SB24 – Adds Emergency Medical Responder to the definition of emergency medical attendant and 
emergency response employee, specifies that an Emergency Medical Responder must be certified 
by a health officer and makes revisions so that Emergency Medical Responders have privileges 
similar to EMTs. Counties may consider the staffing opportunities for emergency preparedness 
and response enabled by the bill, including staff at volunteer fire departments.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12805/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12806/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12869/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12879/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11754/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11755/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11782/Overview


14 
 

SB43 – Revisions provisions relating to solid waste management authority and public water 
system permitting, administration, and enforcement, whereby health districts in an area where a 
health district has authority through an interlocal agreement with the Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection (NDEP), the district BOH may act as solid waste management authority 
and/or a perform certain duties and exercise certain authorities in relation to public water 
systems. This bill represents a transfer of certain statutory responsibilities from local health 
districts to NDEP. NACO worked extensively on this bill with NDEP and all local health 
authorities to create a pathway to local administration and maintain local authority. NACO 
was able to maintain health district and local government discretion in determining which 
services and oversight to develop locally and ensured a process for coordination with the 
State, who is the ultimate authority on Environmental Protection in Nevada. The end result 
ensures the ability to offer services locally while avoiding mandates. Effective June 9, 2025.  
SB54 – Requires Nevada Medicaid to cover medical respite care for people experiencing 
homelessness beginning July 1, 2027, contingent on federal financial participation. Medical respite 
care is defined as short-term medical and support services for individuals who are too ill for the 
streets or shelters but not sick enough for hospitalization. The bill mandates that the Divisions of 
Health Care Financing and Policy and Public and Behavioral Health develop a model for delivering 
this care. Counties should anticipate impacts to County Match Program for covered 
populations upon implementation, however long-term cost savings to the program are also 
possible given that medical respite care services may prevent costly hospital stays and may 
prevent long-term reliance on county safety-net programs. NACO is working with Medicaid to 
estimate impacts and identify opportunities to manage costs.  
SB87 – Revises how Nevada pays for forensic medical examinations for victims of sexual assault 
or domestic battery by strangulation. It allows medical providers to be reimbursed directly, rather 
than only reimbursing counties, and prioritizes payment from the Fund for the Compensation of 
Victims of Crime. If that fund lacks sufficient money, the county where the assault occurred must 
cover the remaining costs. The Department of Health and Human Services must set an annual 
maximum reimbursement rate for these exams, which providers cannot exceed. Counties may 
need to anticipate costs related to this legislative change, which will depend on funds 
available in the Fund for the Compensations of Victims of Crime.   
SB97 – Updates the membership requirements for the Board of Directors of the Silver State Health 
Insurance Exchange, adding a member of a Nevada-based tribe.   
SB165 – Creates a new licensed role in Nevada: Behavioral Health and Wellness Practitioners, who 
provide prevention-focused mental and behavioral health services under clinical supervision. The 
bill establishes licensing requirements, background checks, disciplinary procedures, and 
supervision rules, and prohibits unlicensed practice. It creates a temporary advisory group to 
guide implementation and extends confidentiality protections to these practitioners and their 
patients. Medicaid must begin covering services provided by licensed behavioral health and 
wellness practitioners, and funding is allocated to support implementation, including training 
programs and scholarships.  
SB185 – Requires Nevada Medicaid to reimburse family members who provide personal care 
services to children under 18 with disabilities or chronic illnesses who are eligible for such 
services. The care must assist the child with daily living activities, and the family member must 
meet any applicable Medicaid criteria. The bill includes an appropriation to support the cost of 
implementing the new reimbursement structure. County Human Services Offices should be 
made aware of these reimbursement resources from the State.   
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11819/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11846/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11963/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11987/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12183/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12204/Overview


15 
 

SB187 – Revises child welfare administration, setting a 14-day deadline for child welfare agencies 
to act on non-emergency medical care recommendations for children in their custody. Agencies 
must provide or deny consent within this timeframe after receiving written notice from a provider. 
If another party’s consent is needed, or if a court order is required, the agency must make 
reasonable efforts to secure consent or initiate the court process within 14 days. The agency must 
also notify the child’s caregiver promptly after obtaining or being denied such authorization. 
County Child Welfare Agencies (Clark and Washoe) should adjust policies and procedures 
accordingly to align with new provisions of the law. Counties served by DCFS for Child Welfare 
should anticipate adjustments to DCFS policy and procedures to comply with new directive. 
Effective October 1, 2025.  
SB276 – Requires local governments and water-related agencies in Nevada to report certain water 
discharge incidents, including incidents resulting in discharge of sewage or industrial waste or any 
other unauthorized discharge, to the Division of Environmental Protection. Local governments 
must also share public records about discharges or water treatment policies with Indian tribes 
upon request and are prohibited from entering agreements that would block such information 
sharing. Counties should adjust their policies and procedures to ensure compliance with new 
reporting requirements related to water discharge incidents, effective October 1, 2025.   
SB284 – Requires counties serving as child welfare agencies (currently Washoe and Clark 
counties) to apply for federal benefits on behalf of children in their custody and prohibits using 
those benefits to cover care costs. Counties must close existing county child welfare trust funds by 
January 1, 2026, and transfer any remaining funds into individual accounts for children or remit 
them to designated recipients. Agencies must also provide regular benefit accounting, financial 
counseling to older youth, and training for any appointed representative payees. Impacted 
counties should ensure Child Welfare Agency implementation of new processes. There is a 
significant fiscal impact, as Child Welfare Agencies currently use SSI benefits to support the 
care of youth. Certain sections effective May 31, 2015, remaining effective January 1, 2026.  
SB346 – Revises provisions related to guardianship by requiring courts and petitioners to 
consider and document less restrictive alternatives before establishing or continuing a 
guardianship. Licensed physicians must now assess and report whether such alternatives are 
sufficient to meet the person's needs. Guardians must explain why these alternatives are not being 
pursued in their required reports. The bill also permits courts to terminate or modify 
guardianships if a less restrictive arrangement is in place, and imposes new requirements for out-
of-state guardianship transfers to ensure such alternatives were evaluated. Additionally, the 
Protected Persons’ Bill of Rights is expanded to include the right to be educated about less 
restrictive options. Counties should ensure Public Guardians awareness and compliance with 
new requirements, which may require updates to policy and procedure. Effective October 1, 
2025.  
SB353 – Revises provisions relating to Medicaid, specifically developing a category of provider for 
the purposes of billing and reimbursement that provides education and training to students of 
certain mental health professions, and develops an all-inclusive per diem rate of reimbursement 
for a visit to such a clinic or a mobile clinic owned/operated by that clinic, outside the clinic to 
those without permanent dwelling or address, or through telehealth. The bill includes 
appropriations to enable compliance and program development.   
 
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12206/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12476/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12486/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12613/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12620/Overview


16 
 

SB372 – Revises provisions relating to care of children, amending NRS to add that a child is not 
considered abused or neglected because (1) a parent or guardian seeks to have the child admitted 
to a private or public mental health facility or hospital if the child's behavioral health needs pose 
a risk to the safety or welfare of the family, and (2) a parent or guardian of a child brings into the 
home of a biological, foster, or adopted child whose behavioral health needs pose a threat to the 
safety and welfare of the family. Approved, but with significant discussion and advocacy from 
Washoe and Clark Counties related to the State’s need to meet the requirements in laws 
previously passed to ensure the development of a clinical team and statewide action plan to 
develop the appropriate infrastructure for children with acute behavioral health needs, 
recognizing that the Child Welfare System is not the appropriate placement for these kids. 
The Legislature requested Child Welfare Agencies to report in the interim on progress made 
by the State to address this vulnerable population with appropriate options and resources. 
Law effective October 1, 2025.  
SB387 – Revises private health insurance and health plans that cover treatment for lung cancer to 
include coverage for certain screening for lung cancer; requiring the Department of Health and 
Human Services to conduct a study on access to screening for lung cancer. Counties should review 
and update health plans as needed to adhere to this new requirement.   
SB389 – Requires the Department of Health and Human Services to contract with a single state 
pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) by January 1, 2030, to manage prescription drug coverage 
under Medicaid and related plans.  
SB424 – Emergency Medical Transport Provider Tax – Requires Nevada Medicaid to impose an 
assessment on private emergency medical transport providers, with revenues deposited into a 
new Account to Improve Emergency Medical Transportation Quality and Access. Funds in the 
Account may be used for enhanced Medicaid reimbursement rates, infrastructure improvements, 
outreach initiatives, and related administrative costs. The Division must adopt regulations for 
enforcement, including penalties and collection processes for unpaid assessments, and notify 
health authorities of non-compliance. Health authorities may then take disciplinary action against 
non-compliant providers. The bill also authorizes health authorities to create training programs 
to help emergency responders identify and assist victims of human trafficking.  
SB466 – Establishes the authority for the State Department of Agriculture to take over certain 
duties from the Department of Health & Human Services, mainly public health functions related to 
the oversight and permitting of food establishments and other food safety duties. This bill 
transfers the authority to assess counties for the cost of service provision related to these services 
to the Department of Agriculture. NACO worked with the Director’s Office and bill sponsors to 
limit impacts to counties related to the transfer of responsibility, including amending in 
language that ensures the Department of Agriculture consider various funding sources, 
including fees, grants, and state budget, in addition to county assessments, to sustain the 
services. NACO and the Department of Agriculture will coordinate to ensure limited impacts 
on an appropriate plan moving forward.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12667/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12683/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12689/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12770/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12889/Overview


17 
 

SB494 – Creates the Nevada Health Authority, which includes Nevada Medicaid, State Health Care 
Purchasing Unit, Consumer Health & Access Unit, Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP), and 
the Health Care Workforce Development & Compliance Unit. The bill creates the structure, 
leadership, and authorities of the new department, transferring certain health care and public 
health regulatory oversight from the Division of Public & Behavioral Health. The Department of 
Health & Human Services is renamed to Department of Human Services and retains ADSD, DCFS, 
DPBH, and Social Services (previously, DWSS). Nevada Medicaid accepted a NACO amendment 
to ensure that the new provisions enabling counties to take on Medicaid eligibility 
responsibilities are only done so through interlocal agreement. Counties should anticipate 
changes to County Assessment structure, as some services previously provided by DHHS are 
now transferred to the Nevada Health Authority with the authority to assess for such services.  
 
~~~~~~~~~~ 

Please don’t hesitate to contact NACO if you would like additional information or 
assistance with any of the information contained in this document.  

~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
 
 

 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12936/Overview


Nevada Association of Counties
83rd Session of the Nevada Legislature

Final Legislative Tracker

Failed First Deadline Failed Second 
Deadline

Failed 
Third 

Deadline
Failed Fourth Deadline Failed Sine Die

NACO Support Oppose Pre-
Emption Neutral NACHSA Vetoed

Bill Description Sponsor Tag Notes Location -
Status

Last Meeting 
Action

AB14 Revises provisions relating to certain public 
officers. (BDR 20-453)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 63. - NACO - ENROLLED - Would require county elected officials 
to be registered voters in addition to being qualified electors (includes the Carson City Board of 
Supervisors). Passed out of Committee and the Assembly unanimously. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB70 Revises provisions related to energy. 
(BDR 58-454)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 19. - NACO - ENROLLED - Gut and replace, instead amends NRS 
701A.365 to authorize conditional approval of an application for certain facilities for a partial 
abatement located on federal land and as part of the conditional approval, allows a county to assess 
an applicant for an amount up to $50,000 for the county’s actual costs incurred in participating in the 
preparation of an environmental impact statement required by federal law. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB65
Revises provisions relating to certain 
records of investigations of deaths. (BDR 20-
452)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - NACO - An addition to NRS 
Chapter 259 to clarify that certain records of a Medical Examiner or Coroner are public records. This 
is a clarification on what is or is not considered a public record. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
4/9 - Not Heard

SB73 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-455)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - NACO - Requires county and 
city clerks to allow anyone to inspect registered voter signatures however, prohibits clerks from 
providing or allowing a copy of the registered voter signature. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB10 Revises provisions relating to local 
improvement projects. (BDR 22-407)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 62. - City of Henderson - ENROLLED - Adds water or sewer 
system owned by common - interest community (HOA), to the definition of a neighborhood 
improvement project. States that existing local government authority to dissolve an improvement 
district does not apply to a neighborhood improvement project that improves a water or sewer 
system. Passed Committee without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB108
Makes an appropriation to the Outdoor 
Education and Recreation Grant Program 
Account. (BDR S-875)

Jauregui & Yeager Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 459. - Assemblymembers Jauregui and Yeager – ENROLLED - 
Appropriates $250,000 in each of fiscal years 2025–2026 and 2026–2027 from the State General 
Fund to the Outdoor Education and Recreation Grant Program Account to support the Outdoor 
Education and Recreation Grant Program. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB133 Revises provisions governing public 
financial administration. (BDR 20-537)

Gurr, DeLong, 
Gallant & Torres-

Fossett
Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 229. - Assemblymember Gurr - ENROLLED - updates procedures 
related to county treasurers' operations and tax delinquency processes in Nevada. It standardizes 
deadlines by using “close of business” instead of fixed times, ensures treasurers remain open until at 
least 5 p.m. on business days, and allows technology upgrades funded by a portion of unclaimed 
excess proceeds from tax sales. The bill also removes hearings as a method to resolve indeterminate 
claims, requiring court action instead, and expands the 10% fee cap on recovery agreements to cover 
more individuals beyond just homeowners. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 5/15 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11767/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11885/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11865/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11880/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11760/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12003/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12052/Overview


AB211 Revises provisions relating to substandard 
properties. (BDR 20-811) Considine Support

Approved by the Governor - Assemblymember Considine - establishes new enforcement mechanisms 
for ensuring habitability in residential multifamily rental properties. It allows local governments to 
order repairs when such properties violate health, safety, or building codes and endanger residents. If 
property owners fail to comply, courts may declare the property substandard and appoint a receiver 
to oversee repairs. Outlines the duties, reporting requirements, and compensation for receivers, and 
allows courts to impose relocation costs and other penalties on property owners. Remedies are 
cumulative and preserve constitutional rights, with court oversight permitted for up to 18 months. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB220

Authorizes the issuance of identification 
cards by the Department of Health and 
Human Services to persons experiencing 
homelessness under certain circumstances. 
(BDR 38-671)

Hunt

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

Approvef by the Governor - Assemblymember Hunt - Authorizes the Department of Health and 
Human Services to establish a program to issue identification cards to Nevada residents experiencing 
homelessness; limits eligibility to individuals 10 years or older who do not hold a valid driver’s 
license or identification card from any jurisdiction; prohibits the Department from charging fees for 
issuance, renewal, replacement, or name changes on the cards; requires applicants to attest to their 
homelessness and lack of valid ID and to provide proof of legal name and age unless otherwise 
indicated on the card; allows for name changes based on legal documentation or life events; prohibits 
issuance to certain offenders unless they are in compliance with registration laws and sets specific 
expiration terms for such individuals; establishes expiration and surrender requirements if the 
cardholder obtains another form of valid ID; authorizes local governments to accept these 
identification cards for designated purposes; and imposes penalties for certain misconduct related to 
the cards.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/30 - 
Do Pass

AB249 Revises provisions relating to fiscal notes. 
(BDR 17-932)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 308. - Committee on Ways and Means - ENROLLED - updates the 
required summary language for bills with potential fiscal impacts on the state, changing “Effect on the 
State: Yes” to “May have Fiscal Impact,” and adds a requirement to disclose impacts on the State 
Highway Fund. It also allows the Fiscal Analysis Division to grant local governments up to 7 extra 
days to submit fiscal notes if more research is needed.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/15 - Do Pass

AB326
Revises provisions relating to the 
designation of hospitals as centers for the 
treatment of trauma. (BDR 40-153)

Koenig, Cole & 
Torres-Fossett

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

Approved by Governor - Chapter 418. Updates laws related to the designation and operation of 
centers of trauma, requiring the State Board of Health to establish standards and a designation of a 
trauma level IV, which is limited to critical access hospitals located more than 80 miles outside the 
boundaries of a county with two or more existing centers for the treatment of trauma. 
Assemblymember Koenig - Amended to study, then amended back to original. This bill requires the 
Department of Health and Human Services to conduct a study during the 2025–2026 interim on the 
current system for the treatment of trauma in Nevada and the future needs of the state relating to 
trauma treatment. The study must include the solicitation of public comment. The Department is 
required to publish a report of the study on the Internet and submit the report to the Governor and 
the Legislature.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/31 - Do Pass

AB377 Revises provisions relating to real property. 
(BDR 32-923)

Asm. Gallant, Gurr, 
D'Silva, Gray, Cole, 
DeLong, Hibbetts, 
Koenig & O’Neill; 

Sen. Buck, Doñate, 
Ellison & Stone

Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 175. - Assemblymember Gallant - ENROLLED - adds a section to 
Chapter 361 of the Nevada Revised Statutes that allows county assessors’ offices to accept the 
declaration of value form from the Recorder's Office. Would require the Nevada Tax Commission to 
update the form used for declaring the value of real property during a transfer of title; the updated 
form should include a section allowing property owners to claim partial property tax abatements for 
a single - family residence that is their primary residence, or for a qualified residential rental dwelling. 
States that no fee can be charged for recording this form with the county recorder. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 5/15 - Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12213/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12222/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12279/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12418/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12519/Overview


AB380 Revises provisions relating to mobile crisis 
teams. (BDR 39-1062)

Asm. Edgeworth, 
Dalia, D'Silva, 

González, Gray, 
Hibbetts, Hunt, 

Jackson, Koenig, 
Moore, Nadeem, 
Nguyen & Yurek; 

Sen. Steinbeck

Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 128. - Assemblymember Edgeworth - Would revise existing law 
related to the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and the establishment of mobile crisis teams for 
behavioral health emergencies; would remove the location requirements and expands the potential 
for who may establish these teams. It also revises the composition of a mobile crisis team, requiring at 
least one person professionally qualified in behavioral health, along with law enforcement officers, 
emergency medical service providers, or individuals with expertise in behavioral health, such as 
community health workers OR peer recovery support providers. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/15 - Do Pass

AB415 Revises provisions governing the towing of 
motor vehicles. (BDR 43-821)

Asm. Carter, 
Goulding & 

Dickman; Sen. 
Titus, Taylor & 

Lange

Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 328. - Assemblymember Carter - ENROLLED - amends existing 
laws related to the removal of abandoned vehicles. It allows certain individuals and agencies to affix a 
notice to abandoned, unregistered vehicles that may be classified as junk, informing the owner that 
the vehicle will be disposed of if not removed within 7 days. The bill also increases the maximum 
value of vehicles eligible for a junk certificate from $200 to $500. It establishes new provisions for the 
removal and disposal of vehicles, excusing parties from some notification requirements in cases 
where the vehicle's owner is unknown. Additionally, the bill expands regulations on tow operators, 
prohibiting them from using deceptive methods to secure towing requests from law enforcement, and 
requires law enforcement to remove any tow operator who violates this rule from their list for one 
year. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/27 - Do Pass

AB479 Revises provisions relating to the taxation 
of agricultural real property. (BDR 32-426)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra. Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 480. - Joint Committee on Growth an Infrastructure - ENROLLED - 
amends Nevada law to recognize agrivoltaic purposes—land used for both solar energy production 
and agricultural activities—as an agricultural use for taxation purposes. It defines agrivoltaic 
purposes and establishes that land with such use can qualify for agricultural tax assessment if it was 
previously assessed as agricultural real property. The bill also prohibits applying for agricultural use 
assessment if the land is receiving a tax abatement for solar energy production. The value for taxation 
must consider both agricultural and solar energy uses on the land. This bill defines the utilization of 
land as agrovoltaics as agricultural uses under the tax assessment provisions of existing state law. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

SB21 Revises provisions relating to outdoor 
recreation. (BDR 35-266)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 41. - Outdoor Recreation at DCNR - Makes changes to the 
Advisory Board on Outdoor Recreation, of which the NACO Board is required to provide 
recommendations for one member from a county under 100K in population. Authorizes additional 
uses for the Outdoor Education and Recreation Grant Program. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/7 - Do 
Pass

SB69 Revises provisions relating to economic 
development. (BDR 32-369)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev. Support

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 333. - Storey County - strengthens oversight and local 
government involvement in large - scale economic development projects (with $1B+ in capital 
investment) seeking tax abatements or transferable tax credits. It requires lead participants to enter 
agreements with local governments to offset service and infrastructure costs. The bill also ensures 
confidentiality of related communications, mandates timely notification and acknowledgment from 
affected local entities, and extends permitting fee abatement authority to fire protection districts. 

Governor Asm. Revenue 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB116
Revises provisions relating to the 
compensation of elected county officers. 
(BDR 20-92)

Daly Support Approved by the Governor. Chapter 80. - Senator Daly - This is the bill to address local elected official 
salary and compensation. Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 

5/16 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12522/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12594/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12736/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11776/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11869/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12029/Overview


SB165 Establishes provisions relating to 
behavioral health. (BDR 54-145)

Nguyen, Buck & 
Steinbeck

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 379. - Creates a new licensed role in Nevada: Behavioral Health 
and Wellness Practitioners, who provide prevention - focused mental and behavioral health services 
under clinical supervision. The bill establishes licensing requirements, background checks, 
disciplinary procedures, and supervision rules, and prohibits unlicensed practice. It creates a 
temporary advisory group to guide implementation and extends confidentiality protections to these 
practitioners and their patients. Medicaid must begin covering services provided by licensed 
behavioral health and wellness practitioners, and funding is allocated to support implementation, 
including training programs and scholarships. Nguyen - Committee on Commerce and Labor - 
Establishes licensure and regulation for behavioral health and wellness practitioners under the Board 
of Psychological Examiners; defines behavioral health promotion and prevention; creates an advisory 
group through 2028; sets licensing qualifications, supervision standards, and disciplinary procedures; 
prohibits unlicensed practice and establishes penalties; extends confidentiality privileges to these 
practitioners; includes Medicaid coverage for their services; and authorizes funding transfers and 
reimbursements to support training, internships, and scholarships through the Nevada System of 
Higher Education.

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/30 - Do 
Pass

SB494 Makes revisions relating to health and 
human services. (BDR 18-1116) Cmtee on Finance

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 514. - Creates the Nevada Health Authority, which includes 
Nevada Medicaid, State Health Care Purchasing Unit, Consumer Health & Access Unit, Public 
Employees Benefits Program (PEBP), and the Health Care Workforce Development & Compliance 
Unit. The bill creates the structure, leadership, and authorities of the new department, transferring 
certain health care and public health regulatory oversight from the Division of Public & Behavioral 
Health. The Department of Health & Human Services is renamed to Department of Human Services 
and retains ADSD, DCFS, DPBH, and Social Services (previously, DWSS).

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/31 - Do Pass

AB241 Revises provisions relating to housing. 
(BDR 22-65) Jauregui Oppose

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 174. - Assemblymember Jauregui - ENROLLED - requires local 
governments to adopt ordinances allowing multifamily or mixed - use residential developments by - 
right on commercially zoned land, with some exceptions (e.g., airport zones and the Tahoe region). It 
overrides conflicting local rules and provides legal timelines for challenges. Also authorizes the State 
Land Registrar to transfer specific state - owned properties to nonprofit organizations, with 
conditions tied to agreements with the Reno Redevelopment Agency and usage restrictions on the 
deeds. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/16 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB502 Revises provisions relating to public works. 
(BDR 28-401)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Oppose

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 330. - Joint Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - 
Strengthens enforcement and transparency in Nevada public works contracting by expanding 
reporting requirements, extending apprentice request timelines, revising contractor disqualification 
periods, creating a Public Works Compliance Division, and imposing penalties for 
noncompliance—while prohibiting public bodies from passing penalties onto contractors. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/28 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB352 Revises provisions relating to businesses. 
(BDR 51-890) Anderson

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Pre-emption

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 420. Establishes a new licensing framework for individuals who 
prepare and sell cosmetics or food from their home kitchens. It requires people conducting a cottage 
cosmetics operation or a cottage food operation to obtain a license from the State Department of 
Agriculture and meet specific definitions and sales thresholds. The bill allows sales through online 
and telephone orders and permits food delivery platforms to deliver items from licensed cottage 
operations. It raises the sales cap for craft food operations from $35,000 to $100,000 annually and 
removes certain canning requirements, while also expanding allowances for farm - to - fork events, 
particularly for small farms hosting limited events. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/29 - Amend & Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12183/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12936/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12262/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12785/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12446/Overview


AB128 Creates the Public Records Task Force. 
(BDR S-400)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Neutral

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 228. - Joint Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - 
establishes the Public Records Task Force to study and evaluate issues related to public records 
requests. It outlines the Task Force's membership and duties and requires a written report with 
recommendations to be submitted to legislative committees for the 84th Session of the Nevada 
Legislature. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB43 Revises provisions relating to public health 
and safety. (BDR 40-264)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Neutral

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 438. - Revisions provisions relating to solid waste management 
authority and public water system permitting, administration, and enforcement, whereby health 
districts in an area where a health district has authority through an interlocal agreement with the 
Nevada Department of Environmental Protection (NDEP), the district BOH may act as solid waste 
management authority and/or a perform certain duties and exercise certain authorities in relation to 
public water systems. This bill represents a transfer of certain statutory responsibilities from local 
health districts to NDEP.��(Environmental Protection / DCNR -  Authorizes the Administrator of the 
Division of Environmental Protection to designate certain district boards of health as solid waste 
management authorities or to perform limited duties if they demonstrate capability and adopt 
required regulations; requires the State Environmental Commission to establish criteria for such 
designation; limits solid waste authority only to designated boards; updates definitions and 
regulatory consistency requirements for solid waste and public water systems; authorizes designated 
boards to issue permits and enforce provisions related to public water systems; revises the definition 
of public swimming pools to clarify exclusions for tax - exempt private social clubs; and removes such 
authority from non - designated boards of health while providing conforming enforcement, 
permitting, and regulatory changes. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/7 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB274 Revises provisions governing state boards 
and commissions. (BDR 18-973)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Neutral

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 83. - Sunset Subcommittee of the Legislative Commission - 
Changes the appointment of the Sunset Subcommittee’s Chair and Vice Chair from election by 
members to appointment by the Legislative Commission Chair. Removes the requirement for certain 
licensing boards to submit quarterly criminal history review reports and repeals the Sunset 
Subcommittee’s duty to review criminal history restrictions on license applicants.

Governor Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/13 - Do Pass

AB6

Establishes the Fetal Alcohol Spectrum 
Disorder Treatment Assistance Program 
within the Aging and Disability Services 
Division of the Department of Health and 
Human Services. (BDR 38-287)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 323. - Division of Aging and Disability Services / DHHS - 
Establishes the Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Treatment Assistance Program within the Aging and 
Disability Services Division of the Department of Health and Human Services for children through 13 
years of age to the extent funds are available. Passed committee without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/29 - 
Do Pass

AB19
Revises provisions relating to the Statewide 
Substance Use Response Working Group. 
(BDR 40-442)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 217. - Attorney General - ENROLLED - Adds additional members, 
including the E.D. or a designee of the Department of Indigent Defense Services to the Statewide 
Substance Use Response Working Group, which includes county human service representatives. 
Amended in Committee to revise the SURG membership, specifying that the designee of the Director 
of DHHS shall be from DBPH, and a preference for someone who is bilingual and resides in a bilingual 
household; one person who is an emergency response employee; representative from DCFS; one rep 
from the Nevada District Attorneys Association. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/15 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB30
Revises provisions relating to records of 
defendants who have been found 
incompetent. (BDR 14-293)

Cmtee on Judiciary
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 12. - Department of Public and Behavioral Health / DHHS - 
ENROLLED - Requires local detention centers (including county, city, town jail) to provide mental 
health information and treatment records to state authority upon request for any person previously 
in their care who is committed to the custody of, or required to report to, the Administrator based 
upon a finding of incompetence. Passed Committee and Assembly without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/9 - 
Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12047/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11819/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12460/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11753/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11779/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11802/Overview


AB42

Revises provisions governing the adoption 
of regulations for the administration of 
certain programs of public assistance. 
(BDR 38-289)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 67. - DHHS Division of Health Care Financing and Policy - 
ENROLLED - Allows the Administrator of the Division to adopt, amend or repeal a regulation or policy 
with 3 business days in order to comply with state or federal law, or if the result is an expansion of 
services or benefits. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/15 - Do Pass

AB50 Revises provisions relating to victims of a 
mass casualty incident. (BDR 20-466)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 16. - Clark County - ENROLLED - Authorizes a Board of County 
Commissioners to establish and maintain an electronic database containing information about victims 
of mass casualty incidents; the database is intended to support reunification, identification, and long - 
term services for victims; the bill sets confidentiality requirements for the database and limits 
disclosure to certain purposes; counties and their officers, employees, and agents are granted 
immunity from civil liability for actions related to the database, provided there is no willful 
misconduct, gross negligence, or bad faith; Hospitals and independent emergency medical centers in 
counties where such a database is established are required to report specific information about mass 
casualty victims to the database; they must ask victims whether they wish to receive long - term 
support services and obtain written authorization to retain their information if so; a unique identifier 
must be included in the victim's medical record; includes provisions for civil liability immunity for 
good faith compliance.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 5/8 

- Do Pass

AB52
Revises provisions relating to the payment 
of claims under policies of health insurance. 
(BDR 57-367)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 365. - Nevada Commission on Minority Affairs - R1 - Amended - 
Changed “15 working days” to “21 days”; Eliminated the section applying claim payment and 
processing rules to Medicaid under Chapter 422 of the NRS; Replaces “denies” with “has a reasonable 
basis to deny”; Expands explanation requirements for claim denials to include specific facts and policy 
provisions. Expedites the required timelines and establishes additional communication requirements 
for health insurance plans and certain health insurers, including PEBP and local governments 
providing health insurance for their employees.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/30 - Do 

Pass

AB56
Revises provisions relating to the licensing 
of certain providers of health care. (BDR 54-
255)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 18. - Committee on Commerce and Labor – Board of Medical 
Examiners - ENROLLED - Revises continuing education requirements for certain health care 
providers; eliminates the terrorism - related instruction requirement for physicians; increases 
continuing medical education hours for osteopathic providers from 35 to 40; requires physician 
assistants on inactive status to pay a biennial registration fee; revises the maximum fees charged by 
the Board of Medical Examiners; authorizes the Board to provide certain application documents to 
employers or credentialing entities if permitted by the licensee; sets new grounds for disciplinary 
action or license denial by the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine; revises licensure requirements 
for residents in postgraduate training programs; allows the Board to act if post - licensure 
information differs from what was submitted; establishes biennial license renewal for osteopathic 
physicians, physician assistants, and anesthesiologist assistants with specific renewal dates; replaces 
certain annual fees with biennial fees; updates board - maintained licensee training information 
biennially instead of annually; and adjusts related licensing procedures and fee structures to align 
with biennial renewal cycles.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/14 - Do 

Pass

AB60 Revises provisions relating to certain 
behavioral health services. (BDR 39-434)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 223. - Northern Region Behavioral Health Policy Board - 
Establishes profession of Certified Prevention Specialist in statute and authorizes individuals at least 
16 years of age to provide peer recovery support services as interns and receive compensation. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/13 - Amend & Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11831/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11842/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11844/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11854/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11860/Overview


AB65 Revises provisions relating to guardianship. 
(BDR 13-470) Cmtee on Judiciary

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 103. - Updates guardianship laws, including prohibiting 
government entities from charging fees for documents requested by investigators in guardianship 
cases. The bill allows courts to authorize alternative service methods for guardianship petitions and 
to waive publication requirements in certain cases. It also permits extended guardianships for minors 
seeking special immigrant juvenile status and removes the requirement to notify the Department of 
Health and Human Services about Medicaid in these cases.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Do Pass

AB89
Imposes certain requirements relating to 
unclothed searches of children at certain 
juvenile justice facilities. (BDR 5-496)

Cmtee on Judiciary
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 20. - Assembly Judiciary - ENROLLED - Requires regional 
treatment and rehabilitation facilities, local detention facilities, and state detention facilities for 
children to adopt and implement policies and procedures concerning unclothed searches of children; 
mandates that such policies prohibit unclothed searches except under certain circumstances; requires 
policies to include specific conditions and procedures governing any permitted unclothed search; 
aligns facility practices with existing legal protections ensuring children are treated with dignity and 
are free from searches conducted for harassment, punishment, or discipline. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/14 - 
Do Pass

AB227 Revises provisions governing adoption. 
(BDR 11-928) Miller

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 239. - Revises laws on adoption, establishing new procedures, 
definitions, and safeguards, including requirements for consent, post - adoptive contact, and 
placement. In counties over 100K, requires the Board of County Commissioners to create an 
ordinance establishing reasonable fees for child welfare agencies assisting in adoption placement, 
including conducting a home study, and in counties under 100K directs the Division of Child and 
Family Services to do so.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB230
Enacts the Audiology and Speech-Language 
Pathology Interstate Compact. (BDR 54-
568)

Marzola
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 326. Ratifies and enters Nevada into the Audiology Speech - 
Language Pathology Compact.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor (Floor) 5/29 - 

Do Pass

AB235 Revises provisions relating to health care 
providers. (BDR 20-844) Roth

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 117. - Assemblymember Roth - ENROLLED - Allows providers 
and any employee or volunteer of a facility that provides reproductive health services to request a 
court order to make personal information in possession of county to be kept in a confidential manner. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB266 Makes revisions relating to breastfeeding. 
(BDR 40-595)

Asm. González, 
Moore, Miller, 
Brown-May, 

Anderson, Dalia, 
D'Silva, Gallant, 
Goulding, Gray, 

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 121. - Revises provisions related to breastfeeding and public 
accommodation. Requires the Department of Health & Human Services to provide information on 
breastfeeding and develop a public education program related thereto. Prohibits discrimination in 
public accommodations for a person breastfeeding a child, including prohibiting any signage or 
notice, or otherwise indicating that a person breastfeeding a child is unwelcome in a public 
accommodation due to breastfeeding a child.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/15 - Do Pass

AB269 Revises provisions relating to education. 
(BDR 18-618) D'Silva

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 242. Revises provider types and expands eligibility for Student 
Loan Repayment for Providers of Health Care in Underserved Communities Program to include Public 
Health Professionals, MFTs, CADC and ADCs, and Problem Gambling Counselors. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11874/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11953/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12229/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12238/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12251/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12312/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12316/Overview


AB331

Makes an appropriation to the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health of the 
Department of Health and Human Services 
for a grant program to expand the biennial 
survey administered pursuant to the Youth 
Risk Behavior Surveillance System 
developed by the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention of the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services. 
(BDR S-1044)

Brown-May
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor - Chapter 469. Referred to Ways & Means - Makes an appropriation of $220K 
per year of the biennium to DHHS for a grant program to support the administration of the Youth Risk 
Behavior Survey.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB350 Revises provisions relating to cemeteries. 
(BDR 40-874) Cmtee on Judiciary

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor - Chapter 247. Revises provisions related to cemeteries, including process to 
disinter and move human remains, as well as mandatory upkeep and maintenance of cemeteries.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB360
Revises provisions relating to testing for 
sexually transmitted diseases. (BDR 40-
745)

Goulding
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Committee on Health & Human Services - Makes changes to requirements for certain medical facilities 
to test a pregnant woman for syphilis using a rapid test at point of contact instead of a standard 
serological test; adds rapid test in addition to serological test and physical examination in following 
sections prescribing required care procedures following a positive test.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/15 - Do Pass

AB387 Revises provisions governing guardianship 
of minors. (BDR 13-869) Cmtee on Judiciary

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 252. Revises guardianship laws for minors, making changes to 
procedures and responsibilities. It modifies who must be served in guardianship proceedings and 
updates how service must be conducted. The bill expands required information in petitions for 
guardianship or temporary guardianship, and broadens the conditions under which a preliminary 
care plan and budget are needed, including requiring annual updates. It allows courts to waive 
hearing attendance for minors for good cause, clarifies the burden of proof for appointing guardians, 
and mandates additional reporting on parent visitation. Assemblymember LaRue Hatch - R2 - revises 
and expands guardianship laws for minors, updates who must be notified in guardianship cases, 
changes service and petition requirements, expands care plan and budget rules, and strengthens 
court procedures. The bill mandates legal representation, defines minors as parties to proceedings, 
increases guardian responsibilities (including parent contact and financial duties), and revises rules 
for temporary guardianship and guardian removal. It also enhances oversight, reporting, and notice 
requirements related to child welfare agencies. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/9 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB428
Requires certain health plans to include 
coverage for fertility preservation services. 
(BDR 57-915)

Flanagan, Monroe-
Moreno, Roth, 

Anderson, Moore, 
Brown-May, 

Carter, Considine, 

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Commerce and Labor - Requires certain health plans, including local government public plans, to 
include coverage for medically necessary fertility preservation services for insureds who have been 
diagnosed with breast or ovarian cancer when the cancer may directly or indirectly cause infertility 
or the insured is expected to receive medical treatment for the cancer that may directly or indirectly 
cause infertility; requires Medicaid to apply for a federal waiver for coverage.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor (Floor) 6/1 - 

Do Pass

AB448 Revises provisions relating to insurance for 
vision care. (BDR 57-983) Koenig

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 315. - Establishes new standards and restrictions for providers 
of vision insurance and vision care, including defining a “vision benefit manager” and “vision benefit 
plan,” to include state and local governments and plans offered by these entities. The bill prohibits 
practices such as requiring a vision care provider to participate in multiple plans as a condition for 
participating in one, or engaging in certain billing or contracting behaviors that would be deemed 
unfair or deceptive.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12423/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12444/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12469/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12543/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12625/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12656/Overview


AB461 Revises provisions governing health care. 
(BDR 38-156)

Orentlicher & 
Backus

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor - Chapter 311. - Requires the Nevada Department of Health and Human 
Services, through its Aging and Disability Services Division, to implement a program that educates 
residents about planning for long - term care. The bill also requests the Nevada Supreme Court’s 
Guardianship Commission to study how other states have implemented the Uniform Health - Care 
Decisions Act. The Commission must examine the remaining provisions of the Act and provide 
recommendations to the Joint Interim Standing Committee on Health and Human Services regarding 
its possible full adoption in Nevada. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB463 Revises provisions relating to prior 
authorization. (BDR 57-825) Backus

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 475. - Requires certain health insurers to respond for requests 
for prior authorization for medical or dental care within a certain amount of time, and prohibits 
certain insurers from requiring prior authorization for certain services, including outpatient services 
for the treatment of substance use disorder, certain preventive evidence - based goods and services, 
preventive care for women, hospice care for pediatric patients, treatment for neonatal abstinence 
syndrome, and prescription of blood glucose test strips for person with diabetes. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

(Floor) 5/31 - Do 
Pass

AB467 Revises provisions relating to forensic 
mental health. (BDR 14-842)

Asm. Roth & 
Yeager; Sen. 

Nguyen

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor - Chapter 476. - Authorizes the creation of mental health treatment facilities 
for incompetent defendants within county jails or detention centers in counties with populations over 
100,000. It allows the state to contract with community mental health providers to deliver treatment 
and reintegration services outside of forensic hospitals. Courts may commit defendants to these new 
settings after a clinical review determines appropriate placement. The bill also requires the Division 
of Child and Family Services to immediately accept a juvenile into a state facility when ordered by the 
court, even if the facility is not ideal, and provide care until a better placement is found.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB483
Provides for priority review of certain 
applications for licensure to practice health 
professions. (BDR 40-354)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor Chapter 482. - Committee on HHS - Provides for priority review of emergency 
medical provider applications for licensure when the provider will serve an historically underserved 
community, defined as a census track that: (1) is designated as a qualified census tract through HUD; 
(2) at least 20 percent of households were not proficient in English; or (3) qualified tribal land. 
(Interim Committee bill introduced by Community Health Alliance leadership; probably opportunity 
to broaden the scope to cover all healthcare provider shortage areas in rural communities... 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/30 - Do 

Pass

AB484
Revises provisions relating to the collection 
of data concerning providers of health care. 
(BDR 40-806)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 131. - Revises data collected by health care provider licensing 
boards, adding additional collection points to enable the state to better understand provider 
networks and services provided across the state. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/15 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12703/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12708/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12712/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12743/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12744/Overview


AB514 Makes revisions relating to mental health 
care. (BDR 38-350)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 485. - Requires Nevada Medicaid to cover rehabilitative 
residential mental health care, defined as community - based, medically monitored treatment in a 
residential setting. It establishes a new licensing and regulatory framework for providers of this care, 
including requirements for inspections, background checks, patient safety procedures, and 
notification of health and safety deficiencies. The State Long - Term Care Ombudsman must now 
investigate and assist these providers, and providers must be licensed. The bill prohibits unlicensed 
operation of such facilities and makes violations a misdemeanor.��(Joint Committee on Health and 
Human Services - Would require DHHS to include coverage for care provided through therapeutic 
group homes for Medicaid recipients with serious mental illnesses; "therapeutic group home" is 
defined as a community - based living arrangement that supports independent living for individuals 
with serious mental health conditions, also mandates that the Director administer this provision in 
alignment with existing laws governing the State Plan for Medicaid. Amendment requires DHHS to 
include rehabilitative residential mental health care, not including payment for room and board; 
include definition of rehabilitative residential mental health care; require State Board of Health to 
adopt regulations applicable to providers, distinct for youth and adult populations.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB515 Revises provisions relating to adoption 
assistance programs. (BDR 38-355)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor - Chapter 431. Makes changes to categorical grants received by child welfare 
agencies for adoption assistance programs such that unspent funds do not revert to the State General 
Fund and requires child welfare agencies to continue to use such money for the costs of providing 
child welfare services in alignment with federal law. Additionally, appropriates for the reinvestment 
of adoptions savings as required by federal law to the Division of Child and Family Services for the 
Clark, Washoe, and Rural Child Welfare budgets a total of $3,991,946; requires study on the 
reinvestment of adoption savings and subsequent plan.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB552 Revises provisions relating to the Trust 
Fund for Child Welfare. (BDR 38-1124)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 340. - Makes changes to the Trust Fund for Child Welfare, which 
manages benefits and awards for children receiving child welfare services in counties with 
populations under 100,000. The Division of Child and Family Services is responsible for maintaining 
separate accounts for each child, deducting any public service costs, and using any remaining funds 
for the child's benefit. When the Division is no longer legally responsible for the child, any surplus is 
remitted to the child's parent, legal guardian, or the child if emancipated or over 18. This bill 
eliminated the requirement (also the permission) for the Division to deduct from the account for any 
services provided by public funds. Governor's Finance Office - Under existing law, the Trust Fund for 
Child Welfare manages benefits and awards for children receiving child welfare services in counties 
with populations under 100,000 (Clark and Washoe). DCFS is responsible for maintaining separate 
accounts for each child, deducting any public service costs, and using any remaining funds for the 
child's benefit. When the Division is no longer legally responsible for the child, any surplus is remitted 
to the child's parent, legal guardian, or the child if emancipated or over 18. This bill would eliminate 
the requirement for the Division to deduct from the account for any services provided by public funds.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/29 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12805/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12806/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12869/Overview


AB556 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 38-1117)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 332. - Creates the Beneficiary Advisory Council within the 
Division of Healthcare Financing and Policy to advise the Medicaid Advisory Committee on matters 
relating to the development of Medicaid policy, effective administration, including the experience of 
being a recipient, the ability to access services, and the methods to better promote health equity for 
recipients. It establishes Council membership, process to appoint, and minimum meeting cadence. It 
also revises membership and renames the Medical Care Advisory Committee to the Medicaid 
Advisory Committee.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/29 - Do Pass

AB560

Makes a supplemental appropriation to the 
Division of Child and Family Services of the 
Department of Health and Human Services 
for an unanticipated shortfall related to the 
Rural Child Welfare budget account. (BDR S-
1174)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 265 - Ways & Means - Makes an appropriation of approx $400K 
to the Rural Child Welfare Budget due to an unanticipated shortfall in the budget for staffing, travel, 
and expenses..

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/28 - 
Do Pass

SB8

Revises provisions relating to services 
provided by the Aging and Disability 
Services Division of the Department of 
Health and Human Services. (BDR 38-288)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by Governor. Chapter 32 - Cmtee on HHS – ENROLLED - ADSD, revises and simplifies 
language relating to who is served by ADSD to those with a developmental or intellectual disability. Governor

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 5/9 

- Do Pass

SB9 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 57-290)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 33 - Committee on Commerce and Labor – ENROLLED - On behalf 
of DHCFP (Nevada Medicaid) – Establishes timelines for insurers to respond to state inquiries and 
makes changes to insurers ability to deny a claim based on lack of prior authorization if certain 
conditions are met by the State. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 5/9 
- Do Pass

SB24
Provides for the certification and regulation 
of emergency medical responders. (BDR 40-
292)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 34 - Division of Public and Behavioral Health - ENROLLED - Adds 
emergency medical responder to the definition of emergency medical attendant and emergency 
response employee, specifies that a emergency medical responder must be certified by a health officer 
and makes revisions so that emergency medical responders have privileges similar to EMTs. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 5/9 
- Do Pass

SB28 Revises provisions relating to 
municipalities. (BDR 22-411)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 54 - City of Las Vegas - ENROLLED - Expands the types of projects 
eligible for tax increment areas to include affordable housing projects, fixed guideway projects, high - 
capacity transit projects, multi - family housing projects, transit - oriented developments, and 
transportation projects. It defines these project types and establishes requirements for the 
designation of a tax increment area, including location criteria and consistency with the 
municipality’s master plan. It also requires the governing body to file documentation showing the 
area meets the specified requirements. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB48 Revises provisions relating to planning and 
zoning. (BDR 22-413)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 374 - City of Las Vegas - Revises provisions related to master 
plans for local governments to include sustainability and resilience, a plan to address homelessness 
that includes probable causes, an estimate of the number of people facing homelessness, provisions 
for resources, and an inventory of available housing. Also includes additions to requirements for the 
land use plan to designate future land uses for all areas of the city, county or region, as well as a public 
safety plan and economic development. Amended - Gut and replace from City of Reno to allow 
counties and cities to pass ordinance to align planning commissioners terms with the members that 
recommended them and to serve at the pleasure of their appointing authority. 

Governor
Asm. Gov't Affairs 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12879/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12883/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11754/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11755/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11782/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11794/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11825/Overview


SB54
Requires Medicaid to provide coverage of 
certain services for persons experiencing 
homelessness. (BDR 38-412)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 375. - Requires Nevada Medicaid to cover medical respite care 
for people experiencing homelessness beginning July 1, 2027, contingent on federal financial 
participation. Medical respite care is defined as short - term medical and support services for 
individuals who are too ill for the streets or shelters but not sick enough for hospitalization. The bill 
mandates that the Divisions of Health Care Financing and Policy and Public and Behavioral Health 
develop a model for delivering this care. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/28 - Do Pass

SB87 Revises provisions relating to forensic 
medical examinations. (BDR 16-498) Cmtee on Judiciary

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 378. - Revises how Nevada pays for forensic medical 
examinations for victims of sexual assault or domestic battery by strangulation. It allows medical 
providers to be reimbursed directly, rather than only reimbursing counties, and prioritizes payment 
from the Fund for the Compensation of Victims of Crime. If that fund lacks sufficient money, the 
county where the assault occurred must cover the remaining costs. The Department of Health and 
Human Services must set an annual maximum reimbursement rate for these exams, which providers 
cannot exceed. 

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
5/26 - Do Pass

SB97 Makes revisions to the Silver State Health 
Insurance Exchange. (BDR 57-346)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 79 - Committee on Commerce & Labor – JISCHHS – ENROLLED - 
Adds a requirement that one of the Governor’s appointees to the Board of Directors of the Silver State 
Health Insurance Exchange be a member of a Nevada Indian tribe with expertise in health care 
administration for an Indian tribe. Requires ED of Silver State Health Insurance Exchange to apply 
hire actuary to determine whether a federal waiver will requirements of 42 U.S.C. 18052(b); if it does, 
require HHS to apply for federal waiver to authorize natural person to purchase qualified health plan 
regardless of immigration status. 

Governor

 Asm. Health & 
Human Services & 

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/27 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

SB137
Requires the establishment of a program 
relating to medical emergencies. (BDR 40-
702)

Neal
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 166 - Senator Neal - Referred to Health & Human Services - 
ENROLLED - Requires establishment of a DPBH program to establish a program that improves the 
ability of people in the state (through volunteer training) to respond to emergencies and requires the 
program to notify those experiencing an emergency of available volunteers and resources 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB185
Revises provisions relating to Medicaid 
reimbursement for care of disabled or 
chronically ill children. (BDR 38-760)

Taylor & Krasner
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 496. - Requires Nevada Medicaid to reimburse family members 
who provide personal care services to children under 18 with disabilities or chronic illnesses who are 
eligible for such services. The care must assist the child with daily living activities, and the family 
member must meet any applicable Medicaid criteria. The bill includes an appropriation to support the 
cost of implementing the new reimbursement structure.

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB187 Revises provisions relating to child welfare. 
(BDR 38-15) Pazina

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 336. -  Revises child welfare administration, setting a 14 - day 
deadline for child welfare agencies to act on non - emergency medical care recommendations for 
children in their custody. Agencies must provide or deny consent within this timeframe after 
receiving written notice from a provider. If another party’s consent is needed, or if a court order is 
required, the agency must make reasonable efforts to secure consent or initiate the court process 
within 14 days. The agency must also notify the child’s caregiver promptly after obtaining or being 
denied such authorization.

Governor

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

5/14 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB275 Revises provisions relating to domestic 
relations. (BDR 11-541) Cannizzaro

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 414. - Prohibits family courts from ordering reunification 
treatment or removing a child from a parent solely to improve a strained relationship with the other 
parent when certain conditions apply. It restricts courts from mandating contact between a child and 
a parent accused of domestic violence or child abuse unless specific evidence - based standards are 
met. The bill also requires that any expert testimony on allegations of domestic violence or child 
abuse come from qualified professionals with relevant clinical experience. The bill also mandates 
ongoing training to judges on domestic violence, child abuse, and family court best practices. 

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/30 - 
Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11846/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11963/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11987/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12082/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12204/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12206/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12471/Overview


SB276 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 40-750)

Sen. Hansen, 
Flores, Buck, 

Krasner, Stone, 
Doñate, Ellison, 

Ohrenschall, 
Pazina, Scheible, 

Steinbeck & 
Taylor; Asm. 

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 189 - Senator Hansen - ENROLLED - Establishes requirements for 
the reporting and sharing of specific water - related information by certain governmental entities and 
Indian tribes. The bill includes provisions for coordination and transparency in water data and 
imposes a penalty for noncompliance. Would require cities, counties, unincorporated towns, districts, 
and water authorities to report water quality data to the Division of Environmental Protection. Would 
mandate that local governments and water authorities notify other affected entities, including Indian 
tribes, if unauthorized discharge occurs into state waters. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/16 - Do 
Pass

SB300 Makes revisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 38-110)

Dondero Loop, 
Flores, Cruz-

Crawford, 
Cannizzaro, Daly, 

Ohrenschall, 
Pazina & Taylor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 501. - Expands Medicaid coverage in Nevada to include: (1) the 
administration of medication - assisted treatment for individuals with opioid use disorder; and (2) 
mental health services provided at federally - qualified health centers (FQHCs). Newly covered 
services at FQHCs include care provided by clinical professional counselors, licensed alcohol and drug 
counselors, licensed clinical alcohol and drug counselors, and master’s - level interns under 
supervision. The bill codifies existing Medicaid coverage for psychiatrists, psychologists, APRNs, 
marriage and family therapists, and licensed clinical social workers at FQHCs. It also authorizes the 
Department of Health and Human Services to implement these provisions and makes associated 
appropriations. 

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB329

Requires certain persons to complete 
training relating to elderly persons and 
persons with cognitive impairments. 
(BDR 40-1086)

Sen. Flores, 
Dondero Loop & 

Taylor; Asm. 
Goulding & 

Nguyen

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 385 - Senator Flores - This bill requires first responders, i.e. 
firefighters to have training in caring for patients with dementia or cognitive behavioral issues. 
Amended to change provisions relating to the State Board of Health Authority; revises provisions 
relating to training requirements by a national accredited or national certified program with 
demonstrated expertise.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/28 - Do Pass

SB330 Revises provisions relating to facilities for 
skilled nursing. (BDR 40-584) Neal

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 200 - HHS - ENROLLED - This act clarifies the definition of 
facilities for skilled nursing and requires cities and counties, under certain circumstances, to use the 
same terminology for skilled nursing and similar facilities as established in state law. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB346 Makes various changes relating to 
guardianship. (BDR 13-217)

Sen. Scheible, Cruz-
Crawford, Krasner, 

Dondero Loop, 
Nguyen, 

Ohrenschall, 
Pazina, Steinbeck 

& Stone; Asm. 
Hansen

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 296. - Revises provisions related to guardianship by requiring 
courts and petitioners to consider and document less restrictive alternatives before establishing or 
continuing a guardianship. Licensed physicians must now assess and report whether such 
alternatives are sufficient to meet the person's needs. Guardians must explain why these alternatives 
are not being pursued in their required reports. The bill also permits courts to terminate or modify 
guardianships if a less restrictive arrangement is in place, and imposes new requirements for out - of - 
state guardianship transfers to ensure such alternatives were evaluated. Additionally, the Protected 
Persons’ Bill of Rights is expanded to include the right to be educated about less restrictive options. 
Committee on Judiciary - Makes changes to guardianship. Defines "Supported Decision - Making 
Agreement" for the purposes of the provisions of law governing guardianship of adults; expands 
definition of incapacity to include a person who does not understand nature and impact of SDMA; 
Requires petition for guardianship to include attestation that SPMA info has been provided; requires 
physician to provide determination on ability for individual to enter into SDMA; If appropriate, 
petitioner has to prove SDMA is not a reasonable alternative to guardianship; Additional reporting for 
Guardians; allows petitioner to end a guardianship may do so if person has entered into SDMA; right 
to education.

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12476/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12513/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12576/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12577/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12613/Overview


SB353 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR S-1010)

Dondero Loop, 
Flores, Nguyen, 

Doñate, 
Ohrenschall & 

Pazina

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 388. - Revises provisions relating to Medicaid, specifically 
developing a category of provider for the purposes of billing and reimbursement that provides 
education and training to students of certain mental health professions, and develops an all - inclusive 
per diem rate of reimbursement for a visit to such a clinic or a mobile clinic owned/operated by that 
clinic, outside the clinic to those without permanent dwelling or address, or through telehealth. The 
bill includes appropriations to enable compliance and program development. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/28 - Do Pass

SB372 Revises provisions relating to the care of 
children. (BDR 38-662) Steinbeck

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 205 - Committee on HHS - ENROLLED - Revises the legal 
definitions and conditions under which a person is not considered to have abused, neglected, or 
harmed the health or welfare of a child. Specifically, the bill provides that a parent or guardian is not 
considered abusive or neglectful solely because they: (1) seek to admit a child into a mental health 
facility due to behavioral health risks to the family, or (2) bring into the home another 
child—biological, foster, or adoptive—whose behavioral health needs pose such a risk. The bill 
applies these provisions to definitions under child welfare laws, termination of parental rights, and 
criminal liability statutes. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB387
Revises provisions relating to the 
prevention and early detection of lung 
cancer. (BDR 57-68)

Lange
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 208 - Senator Lange - ENROLLED - Requires certain private 
health insurance policies and health plans that cover lung cancer treatment to also cover lung cancer 
screening based on guidelines from the American Cancer Society or similar professional 
organizations. It excludes Medicaid managed care organizations from this requirement. The bill 
grants the Insurance Commissioner authority to enforce compliance and take disciplinary action 
against noncompliant insurers. Additionally, it mandates the Department of Health and Human 
Services to study potential inequities in access to lung cancer screening based on sex or gender 
identity or expression and report the findings to the Legislature. 

Governor

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
5/31 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

SB389

Revises provisions relating to the 
administration of pharmacy benefits under 
Medicaid and certain other health plans. 
(BDR 38-240)

Scheible, Stone & 
Daly

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 390. - Requires the Department of Health and Human Services to 
contract with a single state pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) by January 1, 2030, to manage 
prescription drug coverage under Medicaid and related plans.

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/30 - Do 
Pass

SB466
Revises provisions governing the authority 
of the State Department of Agriculture 
relating to food and water. (BDR 51-1121)

Cmtee on Finance
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 512. - Establishes the authority for the State Department of 
Agriculture to take over certain duties from the Department of Health & Human Services, mainly 
public health functions related to the oversight and permitting of food establishments and other food 
safety duties. This bill transfers the authority to assess counties for the cost of service provision 
related to these services to the Department of Agriculture. HHS - This is the bill that outlines the 
authority for Dept of Ag to take over certain duties from DHHS, namely public health functions related 
to the oversight and permitting of food establishments and other food safety duties.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/31 - Do Pass

AB88 Revises provisions relating to juvenile 
justice. (BDR 5-495) Cmtee on Judiciary

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Vetoed by the Governor. - Joint Interim Committee on Judiciary - Removes the requirement for a D.A. 
to provide written approval before juvenile court can place a child under informal supervision for 
committing a crime that for an adult would be considered a gross misdemeanor or felony. 

Governor Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB112

Removes an exemption from provisions 
providing certain employees with the right 
to use sick leave to assist family members. 
(BDR 53-318)

Nguyen

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Nguyen - ENROLLED - bill removes the exemption that 
previously allowed employers to deny the use of sick leave for immediate family medical needs if the 
employee was covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Starting October 1, 2025, all employers 
must allow such use of sick leave, though existing agreements are exempt until their renewal or 
extension. The bill also ensures that more generous sick leave benefits in contracts or laws remain 
unaffected.

Governor
Sen. Commerce & 

Labor 5/12 - Amend 
& Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12620/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12667/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12683/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12689/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12889/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11952/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12013/Overview


AB185 Revises provisions relating to child care. 
(BDR 10-187) Anderson

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Anderson - ENROLLED - allows homeowners and certain 
tenants in common - interest communities to operate licensed child care facilities for 5–12 children, 
unless specifically restricted. Homeowners' associations (HOAs) may impose reasonable conditions 
consistent with licensing requirements, limit the number of such facilities, require notice of 
applications, or request to be added as an insured party. These provisions do not apply to senior 
housing or units sharing interior walls. Additionally, tenants may operate licensed child care facilities 
unless their lease specifically prohibits it.

Governor

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB188
Revises provisions relating to the Public 
Employees' Benefits Program. (BDR 23-
673)

Carter

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Carter - ENROLLED  - updates the Public Employees’ 
Benefits Program (PEBP) for retired state employees by easing reinstatement rules, limiting 
restrictions on HRAs for Medicare/TRICARE users, requiring biennial cost reporting, increasing 
state/local contributions for Medicare expenses in FY 2026–2027, and directing a legislative study of 
the program during the 2025–2026 interim.

Governor Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB213 Revises provisions governing public works 
projects. (BDR 28-816) Monroe-Moreno

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Monroe - Moreno - R2 - expands prevailing wage 
requirements to include workers who perform custom fabrication for public works, regardless of 
where the fabrication occurs. Defines “custom fabrication” and “nonstandard goods or materials,” and 
updates the definition of “worker” to include custom fabricators. Mandates that such workers be paid 
prevailing wages for public works, performance contracts, and certain projects under the Tahoe - 
Douglas Visitor’s Authority. Also requires contractors on public works in large counties (population 
100,000+) to ensure nonstandard goods are custom fabricated in - state and maintain records for 
inspection. These requirements apply to contracts awarded on or after January 1, 2026. 

Governor Sen. Finance 5/30 - 
Do Pass

AB226 Revises provisions relating to economic 
development. (BDR 32-690) Mosca

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Mosca - R1 - adds new requirements for businesses 
seeking certain transferable tax credits or abatements in Nevada. Starting July 1, 2025, applicants 
must certify that they will collaborate with the local community and submit a community benefits 
agreement to the Office of Economic Development within two years of approval. Makes additional 
requirements of those businesses applying for transferable tax credits to include a community 
benefits plan outlining actions that the applicant agrees to take to benefit the vitality of the local 
community and improve the social and economic well - being of members of the local community. 

Governor
Sen. Revenue & 

Econ. Dev. 5/29 - Do 
Pass

AB237 Authorizes any county to create the office of 
registrar of voters. (BDR 20-363)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assembly Committee on Government Affairs - Would allow BOCCs to create 
an office of registrar of voters. Governor Sen. Leg. Op's & 

Elec. 5/15 - Do Pass

AB306 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-569)

Asm. Yeager, 
Monroe-Moreno & 

Mosca; Sen. 
Cannizzaro & 
Ohrenschall

Assemblymember Yaeger - VETOED - requires counties to expand access to mail ballot drop boxes 
during the gap between early voting and Election Day. In Clark County, at least 10 drop box locations 
must be open, and in Washoe County, at least 5, each for a minimum of 7 hours per day. Rural 
counties may set their own number and hours. It also mandates that all drop boxes be monitored 
when in use and secured when not, with oversight rules to be set by the Secretary of State. 
Additionally, voters can authorize someone to return their mail ballot to these drop boxes. 

Chief Clerk's 
Desk

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/6 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12155/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12158/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12215/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12228/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12257/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12386/Overview


AB388 Revises provisions relating to employment. 
(BDR 23-1027)

Asm. La Rue Hatch, 
González, 

Anderson, Roth, 
Miller, Flanagan, 
Goulding, Hunt, 
Jackson, Karris, 

Moore, Orentlicher 
& Watts; Sen. 

Flores

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember LaRue Hatch - Would expand the eligibility and benefits 
for paid family leave for employees in the State Government, as well as private and local government 
employers. Employees would be able to take paid family leave after just 90 days of employment 
(reduced from 12 months) and are entitled to 12 weeks (up from 8 weeks). Would be allowed for: 
bonding with a foster child or child placed for adoption, recovering from serious health conditions 
(including pregnancy - related issues), and dealing with issues arising from domestic violence, 
stalking, harassment, or assault against an employee or their family. Pay would be 100% of their 
regular wage if they earn up to 110% of the state average weekly wage, or 60% if they earn more than 
110% but less than 150%. 

Governor Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/30 - Heard

AB392
Revises provisions relating to interlocal 
agreements and contracts with tribal 
governments. (BDR 22-1059)

Carter

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Carter - R2 - allows county governments in Nevada to 
engage in good faith discussions with tribal governments to form conditional interlocal agreements 
for shared services or activities. These agreements must not require tribes to waive sovereign 
immunity and may be terminated by the county with 90 days' notice under certain conditions. The bill 
integrates this provision into the Interlocal Cooperation Act.

Governor
Sen. Gov't Affairs 

5/14 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB414 Revises provisions relating to occupational 
safety and health. (BDR 53-666)

Asm. Moore, 
Carter, Anderson, 

D'Silva, Karris & La 
Rue Hatch; Sen. 

Flores, Scheible & 
Doñate

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Moore - R1 - requires employers with more than 15 
employees at a "large hybrid environment facility" (defined as facilities of at least 10,000 square feet 
where employees are exposed to outdoor elements) to include a program in their safety plans to 
mitigate occupational exposure to greenhouse gases, poor air quality, and other gases. The safety 
program must include measures for monitoring air quality, ensuring vehicles turn off engines while 
loading or unloading, and monitoring employee health. Certain employers, like those in law 
enforcement or emergency response, are exempt from these requirements.

Governor
Sen. Commerce & 

Labor (Floor) 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB434 Prohibits certain employment practices. 
(BDR 53-188) Anderson

Vetoed by the Governor. - Assemblymember Anderson - R2 - prohibits employers from retaliating 
against employees who decline to attend employer - sponsored meetings or communications 
primarily about political or religious views. Exceptions apply for religious organizations and cases 
where refusal interferes with job performance. Violations may result in damages, lost wages, and 
attorney’s fees, while employers may recover legal costs if the employee's claim lacks substantial 
justification. 

Governor
Sen. Commerce & 

Labor 5/16 - Amend 
& Do Pass

AB496 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-997) Yeager

Vetoed by the Governor. - Speaker Yeager - R2 - requires county clerks to publish a free, 
downloadable monthly list of all registered voters online, including voter ID numbers. Would require 
mail ballot return envelopes to include space for voters to write a phone number for contact during 
signature verification. Would require county and city clerks to post daily updates online about mail 
and provisional ballots during the election period. Requires the Secretary of State to publish a 
statewide summary and USPS mail ballot estimates, and define signature defect categories by 
regulation.

Governor
Sen. Leg. Op's & 

Elec. 5/15 - Amend 
& Do Pass

AB499 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-998) Yeager

Vetoed by the Governor. - Speaker Yeager - R1 - requires county clerks to create online voter service 
portals where voters can view registration info, sample ballots, and polling locations. It mandates QR 
codes on election materials linking to these portals. Attempts to streamline data sharing between the 
DMV and election officials to improve voter record accuracy, protects shared data as confidential, and 
updates mail ballot signature verification. Voters would be able to confirm identity using partial ID 
numbers, and signature curing is expanded to allow email or text, with extended support hours for 
assistance. 

Governor
Sen. Finance (Floor) 
6/2 - Amend & Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12544/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12557/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12593/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12640/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12761/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12768/Overview


AB534 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-975)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Vetoed by the Governor. - Secretary of State - Would require the SOS to establish a system for voters 
detained in county or city jails to electronically register to vote, and to apply for and cast ballots via 
the same system available to military and overseas voters; would rename ballots cast by voters who 
update their registration after the registration deadline to "conditional ballots" and establishes 
procedures to manage them without requiring provisional ballots for certain updates; would extend 
the time for county clerks to verify petition signatures, including those for minor political parties and 
independent candidates and restrict when petitions for referendum and initiatives can be submitted 
to county clerks; would require county clerks to use mechanical voting systems to count votes and 
clarifies that the use of such systems is mandatory for vote counting; allows county clerks to publish 
election notices on county websites or social media, alongside traditional newspaper publications.

Governor
Sen. Leg. Op's & 

Elec. (Floor) 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB597 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-1245) Yeager

Vetoed by the Governor. - EMERGENCY MEASURE - SPEAKER OF THE ASSEMBLY: This bill is related 
to elections and creating a process which allows a "non partisan" voter to cast a ballot in a primary, 
including the presidential preference primary. 

Governor
Sen. Leg. Op's & 

Elec. (Floor) 5/31 - 
Do Pass

SB71
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 27-
366)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Neutral

Vetoed by the Governor. - Nevada Commission on Minority Affairs - Requires local governments to 
post information on purchases and procedures for requesting notice of solicitations or other methods 
of obtaining contracts on the local government website. Creates the Nevada Diverse Business 
Advisory Council which NACO is allowed a seat on, for 2 year terms with meetings every 3 months. 
The measure also eliminates the Regional Business Development Advisory Council for Clark County. 
Amended - Abolishes the Regional Business Development Advisory Council for Clark County; Adds 
statewide diverse business reporting responsibilities under NRS 332.215; Creates a statewide 
business directory; Develops a supplier training program; Expands procurement participation to 
rural communities on an optional basis; Requires quarterly meetings and biennial reporting. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB85 Revises provisions relating to public safety. 
(BDR 43-490)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Vetoed by the Governor. - Joint Interim Committee on Judiciary - Makes the requirement for the 
retention, recording and reporting of traffic stops permanent, adds additional reporting requirements 
on traffic stops to LCB and the Legislature. Amended - to allow the Department of Public Safety to 
contract with a 3rd party to analyze traffic stop data submitted by law enforcement.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Judiciary 5/31 - 
Do Pass

SB93
Establishes certain labor standards for the 
award of grants of federal money by a state 
agency for certain purposes. (BDR 18-556)

Daly

Vetoed by the Governor. - Senator Daly - This bill would provide contractions that use certain labor 
standards, including prevailing wage, when using federal grant dollar awards on projects to receive 
30% weighted score ranking. Amended - strengthens training and safety requirements for 
contractors, mandates prevailing wages and health coverage for workers, and requires at least 50% of 
the workforce to be Nevada residents. It removes exemptions for collective bargaining signatories and 
clarifies licensing and regulatory provisions for state agencies awarding federal grants. 

Vetoed Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB99

Authorizes, under certain circumstances, 
certain governing bodies of a city or county 
to impose linkage fees on certain 
developers. (BDR 22-373)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Vetoed by the Governor. - Committee on Government Affairs - Enables certain local governments, 
those located in the Lake Tahoe Basin, to charge linkage fees to developers for new development of 
affordable housing included within a regional planning body's strategic plan related to affordable 
housing. 

Vetoed Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12825/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12961/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11878/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11961/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11972/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11989/Overview


SB100 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-197) Daly Oppose

Vetoed by the Governor. - Senator Daly - This bill requires counties to only utilize vendors of voting 
equipment or machines approved by the Secretary of State, if a county wishes to change to a different 
vendor or method they must seek and obtain Secretary of State approval. Secondly, if a public officer, 
does not perform the duties required in a timely manner (i.e. certify the election) they can be charged 
with a felony, and they must notify the Secretary of State or the Attorney General that they are unable 
to perform the duties required. Amended - revises reporting for delays, institutes penalties for willful 
failure to carry out election duties, requires the SOS to notify oversight bodies about officials who 
miss deadlines. If unaddressed in 48 hours, the SOS must file a complaint with the Attorney General 
(AG), who must act within 30 days. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/16 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB102 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-90) Daly

Vetoed by the Governor. - Senator Daly - Prohibits the use of "false" electors, or the filing of 
paperwork to impede the sitting of presidential electors, or otherwise interfere with the sitting of 
electors. Passed committee without amendments. 

Vetoed Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/13 - Do Pass

SB295 Revises provisions related to food 
establishments. (BDR 40-44)

Sen. Doñate & 
Flores; Asm. 

González, Moore & 
D'Silva

Vetoed by the Governor. - Senator Donate - This bill makes changes to sidewalk vendors, including 
multi jurisdictional licenses, it does apply to counties greater than 100k in population. Amended 
extensively; narrows definition of conveyance to non - stationary units; strikes original cottage food 
provisions and will exempt certain vendors from commissary preparation for a define list of low - 
risk, non - perishable food items, while allowing local health authorities to enforce food safety 
standards, including requiring food handler carts; allows limited storage of carts and flexibility in 
handwashing.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

5/14 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB303

Revises provisions relating to civil liability 
to persons using certain premises for 
recreational activity under certain 
circumstances. (BDR 3-1021)

Cmtee on Judiciary Oppose

Vetoed by the Governor. - Committee on Judiciary - clarifies and updates the existing law that limits 
the liability of property owners, lessees, or occupants when allowing others to use their land for 
recreational activities. It formally names the law the Recreational Use of Land Statute and states its 
legislative intent. The bill maintains that such property holders owe no duty to keep premises safe or 
warn of hazards for recreational users, unless exceptions apply. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Judiciary 5/8 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB378 Makes revisions relating to health care. 
(BDR 40-705)

Sen. Doñate, Cruz-
Crawford, Nguyen, 
Flores, Cannizzaro, 

Lange & 
Ohrenschall; Asm. 

Vetoed by the Governor. - Senator Donate - requires certain hospital - affiliated emergency facilities to 
be licensed as Independent Centers for Emergency Medical Care (ICEMCs), mandates they offer 
urgent care services during all operating hours, and sets related standards. It prohibits certain 
licensing fees, requires DHHS to provide ICEMC information upon request, and directs the DHHS 
Director to report on public awareness efforts about ICEMCs.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB410 Revises provisions relating to public 
employees. (BDR 23-562)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

Vetoed by the Governor - Committee on Health and Human Services - This bill would mandate that 
collective bargaining units for local government employees include dependent health benefits. Vetoed Asm. Gov't Affairs 

5/16 - Do Pass

SB422 Revises provisions relating to voting. 
(BDR 24-954)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Vetoed by the Governor. - Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - Would amends 
existing laws regarding voter registration and identification requirements. Allows voter to register to 
vote online through the Thursday before an election, and in person during early voting or on Election 
Day. In person registration requires voters to provide a valid driver’s license, state - issued ID, or 
tribal ID; if the ID doesn't show the voter’s current address, they must also provide proof of residency. 
If they lack an acceptable ID, they can cast a provisional ballot, which will only be counted if proper 
documentation is provided by the Friday after the election. Voters without the required ID can cast a 
provisional ballot but must submit the correct documentation by the specified deadline. Requires the 
DMV in Clark and Washoe to remain open on weekends and outside regular hours during the two 
weeks before the last day to register by mail for elections, and for six days after an election, to assist 
with ID issuance and renewals. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11990/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11992/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12507/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12517/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12674/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12733/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12767/Overview


SB428 Revises provisions relating to public office. 
(BDR 23-955)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Vetoed by the Governor. - Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - This bill makes various 
changes to election law regarding candidate and elected official incumbency based on residency in the 
state, county, ward or district they reside in. It also outlines additional penalties and available 
remedies to challenge such a person's residency. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/13 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB447 Revises provisions relating to public works. 
(BDR 28-968)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Oppose

Vetoed by the Governor. - Committee on Government Affairs - This bill allows for contractors to 
recoup fees awarded in one judgement, and does not prevent them from recouping fees in another 
judgement, under public works law, for cases filed in district courts. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB28 Revises provisions related to 
transportation. (BDR 22-463)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 65. - RTC of Southern Nevada - ENROLLED - Extends the deadline 
for RTC to submit recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners on additional gross 
receipts tax of any retailer for the sale of certain tangible personal property sold at retail, from 2024 
to 2028. Passed Committee and the Assembly without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/26 - 
Mtnd. No Juris

AB39 Revises provisions governing charter 
schools. (BDR 34-259)

Cmtee on 
Education

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 219. - State Public Charter School Authority - R1 - revises 
provisions related to the State Public Charter School Authority in Nevada. It clarifies the roles and 
qualifications of voting and nonvoting members, updates training and quorum requirements, and 
changes eligibility rules for charter school employees serving on the Authority. It also expands 
conflict - of - interest restrictions and redefines responsibilities of charter school sponsors, such as 
universities and local governments, making them directly accountable as local educational agencies. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Education 5/7 - 
Do Pass

AB40 Revises various provisions relating to 
environmental hazards. (BDR 46-265)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 220. - Division of Environmental Protection of the State 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources - ENROLLED - updates and expands Nevada’s 
environmental regulations related to land reclamation, solid waste, and hazardous waste 
management. It broadens the scope of reclamation requirements for mining operations, establishes 
new definitions and enforcement tools (including liens), and enhances oversight of solid waste and 
hazardous waste facilities. Key changes include requiring financial responsibility, incorporating 
recycling into hazardous waste management, and authorizing liens on properties to ensure 
compliance.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB43 Revises provisions relating to public works. 
(BDR 28-465)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 221. - Clark County - ENROLLED - establishes a permanent 
program allowing certain public bodies in Clark County to use job order contracting for minor public 
works projects. It outlines requirements for awarding, managing, and reporting on these contracts, 
including worker qualifications, proposal procedures, and transparency rules. The bill also mandates 
data collection and reporting to monitor the effectiveness and use of job order contracts. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB55 Revises provisions relating to motor vehicle 
crashes. (BDR 43-250) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 17. - Office of Traffic Safety (DPS) - ENROLLED - updates 
procedures for investigating fatal vehicle crashes by requiring coroners to test for both alcohol and 
commonly misused substances, without a strict time limit for collecting blood samples or reporting 
results. It also mandates that police officers submit crash reports through the state’s electronic 
reporting system within 10 days of the crash or a related death. Additionally, the Department of 
Public Safety must provide electronic crash report forms to law enforcement agencies and relevant 
parties. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/12 - Do Pass

AB59
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 45-
300)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 222. - Department of Wildlife - ENROLLED - expands Nevada’s 
wildlife protection laws by broadening the prohibition on feeding wild mammals and baiting game 
birds, and by increasing civil penalties for unlawfully killing or possessing moose, now classified as 
trophy big game. It also extends restrictions to include the possession of excrement or bodily fluids of 
certain animals and allows for their seizure or destruction. Additionally, the bill eliminates the permit 
program for alternative livestock (e.g., fallow deer, reindeer), making their import or possession 
illegal unless specifically authorized by the State Quarantine Officer. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12775/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12835/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11795/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11827/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11829/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11832/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11851/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11859/Overview


AB64 Revises provisions relating to public 
meetings. (BDR 19-445)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor - Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.2, no further action allowed. - 
Attorney General - Makes changes to Open Meeting Law to allow members of a public body to receive 
legal advice and deliberate on the legal advice outside the definition of a public meeting. Makes an 
addition allowing members of the public to use 3 minutes for public comment and allows the public 
body to refuse public comments on contested cases until a final decision is reached. Prohibits a public 
body from holding a public meeting by remote technology where they will adjudicate a contested case 
or conduct a regulation workshop or hearing unless there is also a physical location for members and 
the public. Amended - removed the provision specifying that each speaker must be allowed to provide 
at least 3 minutes of public comment. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/28 -  Do Pass

AB69
Removes the prospective expiration of the 
Nye County Sales and Use Tax Act of 2007. 
(BDR S-137)

Cmtee on Revenue

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 213. - Nye County - ENROLLED - removes the scheduled 
expiration date of the Nye County Sales and Use Tax Act of 2007, allowing Nye County to continue 
imposing a sales and use tax beyond October 1, 2027. The tax supports recruiting and equipping 
public safety personnel, and improving or constructing public safety facilities across various 
communities in the county. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 5/15 - Do 

Pass

AB76 Revises provisions relating to cannabis. 
(BDR 56-286) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 458. - Cannabis Compliance Board - ENROLLED  - updates 
Nevada’s cannabis laws by streamlining disciplinary procedures, shifting hearings to independent 
officers, and expanding the Executive Director’s authority for investigations and enforcement. It 
revises regulations on labeling, packaging, inventory control, and public health standards at cannabis 
establishments, while also clarifying definitions and rules related to synthetic cannabinoids and 
advertising. Additionally, the bill mandates studies on hemp product sales and cannabis taxation to 
inform future policy decisions. Establishes a standardized definition of the term “local governmental 
jurisdiction” for the purposes of provisions governing the medical and adult use of cannabis.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/30 - Do 

Pass

AB86 Revises provisions relating to forestry. 
(BDR 47-377)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 69. - Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and Marlette Lake Water 
System - ENROLLED - amends existing forestry laws by removing the requirement for timber owners 
or their agents to obtain a logging permit for cutting operations. It also eliminates the obligations to 
sow grass seed and provide a timberland conversion certificate specifically for cutting operations, 
while retaining these requirements for logging operations. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - Do 

Pass

AB92 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-101)

Asm. Dickman, 
Gray, DeLong & 

O’Neill; Sen. Titus

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 294. - Assemblymember Dickman - ENROLLED - Reinstates the 
requirement that certain public buildings must be made available without charge to state or county 
central committees of major political parties for meetings for any purpose in presidential election 
years and for precinct meetings in other years. It exempts buildings owned or occupied by the Nevada 
System of Higher Education. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/27 - Do Pass

AB93 Revises provisions relating to public 
employees. (BDR 53-160)

Asm. Hibbetts, 
Yurek, D'Silva & 
Monroe-Moreno; 

Sen. Doñate

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 395. - Assemblymember Hibbetts - ENROLLED - expands the 
definition of “police officer” under the Nevada Occupational Diseases Act to include school police 
officers, juvenile probation officers, municipal court bailiffs and deputy marshals, city/town marshals 
and deputy marshals, and all Category I, II, and III peace officers. It extends related benefits such as 
industrial insurance coverage, jury duty exemption, temporary disability compensation, and survivor 
insurance eligibility to these roles and also appropriates funds for annual physical exams for certain 
Department of Public Safety officers.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11873/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11884/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11896/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11950/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11965/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11975/Overview


AB96 Revises provisions relating to master plans. 
(BDR 22-397)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 225. - Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - requires 
counties in Nevada with populations of 100,000 or more (currently Clark and Washoe Counties) to 
include a heat mitigation plan in their master plans. The heat mitigation plan, part of the conservation 
element, must outline strategies to reduce heat impacts—such as creating public cooling spaces, 
providing drinking water, and adding shade over paved areas. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB97 Revises provisions relating to public safety. 
(BDR 14-499) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 21. - Joint Committee on Judiciary - ENROLLED -  Requires 
criminal justice agencies or any agency dealing with crime to to maintain and submit records through 
the use of the National Incident - Based Reporting System.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/9 - 
Do Pass

AB104 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 48-383)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 226. - Joint Committee on Natural Resources - ENROLLED - 
Establishes the Nevada Conservation and Recreation Program in statute, which includes a grant 
program and the Nevada Voluntary Water Rights Retirement Program—designed to retire 
groundwater rights through purchases or donations until June 30, 2035. It creates a dedicated 
Account for Retiring Water Rights and defines how funds must be used.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB111 Revises provisions relating to certain traffic 
violations. (BDR 43-161) Hibbetts

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 108. - Assemblymember Hibbetts - ENROLLED - Makes it a 
misdemeanor for anyone who crosses any dividing space, barrier or section of a divided highway. 
Passed committee without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/14 - Do Pass

AB114 Revises provisions relating to county fair 
and recreation boards. (BDR 20-740) DeLong

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 107. - Assemblymember DeLong - ENROLLED - revises the 
appointment and leadership selection process for the Washoe County fair and recreation board. 
Requires all board members, not just the initial three, to participate in appointing the remaining six 
members and requesting new nominee lists if needed. It also changes the rule for electing the Chair, 
allowing selection from any board member rather than only from the three originally appointed 
members. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB123 Revises provisions relating to elections 
communications. (BDR 24-733)

Asm. Nadeem, 
Nguyen, D'Silva, 
Miller, Torres-

Fossett, González, 
Jackson, Monroe-

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 516. Assemblymember Nadeem - ENROLLED - Prohibits 
threatening or intimidating a candidate for public office in a way that reasonably causes fear of harm 
to the candidate or their family or property. First offenses are misdemeanors; subsequent offenses are 
gross misdemeanors. Allows candidates to report violations to the Secretary of State, who must 
investigate and may refer cases to the Attorney General. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/30 - Do Pass

AB125 Revises provisions relating to public bodies. 
(BDR 18-909) Flanagan

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 70. - Assemblymember Flanagan - ENROLLED - Would require a 
schedule of meetings of public bodies to be posted on the location on the official website of the State 
that is maintained by the Department of Administration. Passed Committee without amendments. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB136 Revises provisions relating to animals. 
(BDR 50-168) Considine

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 72. - Assemblymember Considine - ENROLLED - requires 
commercial establishments that sell access to live animal interactions to post a visible sign at the 
payment location informing the public how to report suspected animal cruelty, including the local 
animal control authority’s phone number. It imposes an administrative penalty for noncompliance 
and exempts accredited members of the Association of Zoos and Aquariums from this requirement. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - Do 

Pass

AB142 Revises provisions relating to industrial 
insurance. (BDR 53-876)

Marzola, Jauregui, 
Monroe-Moreno & 

Yurek

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 73. - Assemblymember Marzola - ENROLLED - expands the 
definition of "first responder" under state's industrial insurance law to include civilian employees of 
law enforcement agencies whose primary duties involve responding to and investigating crime 
scenes. This change allows employees to receive compensation for stress - related mental injuries 
caused by traumatic events witnessed on the job. The bill also clarifies the definitions of "law 
enforcement agency" and "public safety agency" for these purposes. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/12 - Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11978/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11979/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11994/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12012/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12015/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12035/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12037/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12055/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12068/Overview


AB148 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-770) Hafen & Yeager

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 231. - Assemblymember Hafen - ENROLLED - revises deadlines 
for distributing mail and sample ballots to registered voters. It changes the mail ballot distribution 
timeframe for in - state voters to between the fifth and fourth Mondays before an election, instead of 
no later than 20 days prior. It also allows voters to request earlier delivery. Additionally, it requires 
sample ballots to be sent before the mail ballot deadline and applies these requirements to elections 
involving city incorporation. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/16 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB163 Enters into the Counseling Compact. 
(BDR 54-129) Hafen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 460. - Assemblymember Hafen - ENROLLED - authorizes Nevada 
to join the Counseling Compact, allowing licensed professional counselors from member states to 
practice in other compact states, including via telehealth, without needing additional licenses. It sets 
eligibility requirements for participating counselors and outlines the role of the Counseling Compact 
Commission in administering the Compact, sharing data, and enforcing rules. It also allows Nevada’s 
licensing board to share and receive information through the Compact’s coordinated database. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor (Floor) 5/31 - 

Do Pass

AB167 Revises provisions relating to the use of 
corrective room restriction. (BDR 5-769) Hansen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 233. - Assemblymember Hansen - ENROLLED - enhances 
oversight of corrective room restriction for detained children by requiring facility staff to conduct a 
review every 24 hours if the restriction exceeds one day. The review must include consideration of 
whether a mental health screening, evaluation, or treatment referral is appropriate.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB169 Revises provisions relating to health 
insurance. (BDR 57-735) Yeager

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 461. - Assemblymember Yeager - ENROLLED - requires most 
public and private health insurance plans in Nevada—including Medicaid, but excluding the Public 
Employees’ Benefits Program—to cover habilitative and rehabilitative speech - language pathology 
for stuttering in individuals under 26. Prohibits insurers from limiting coverage based on the cause of 
stuttering, imposing annual caps, or using restrictive medical management techniques. Certain 
limited - benefit or disease - specific policies are exempt. The bill also grants enforcement authority to 
the Insurance Commissioner and includes provisions for compliance and administration.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB174
Revises provisions relating to 
telecommunication providers. (BDR 58-
128)

Marzola

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 75. - Assemblymember Marzola - ENROLLED - Would include the 
use of a satellite to allow a competitive supplier that is a provider of last resort to file an application 
with the Public Utilities Commission to be relieved, in whole or in part, of its obligations and status as 
a provider of last resort in an area with alternative voice service. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/12 - Do Pass

AB192 Makes various changes relating to real 
property. (BDR 10-971) Backus

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 112. - Assemblymember Backus - ENROLLED - enacts the 
Uniform Easement Relocation Act and the Uniform Mortgage Modification Act in Nevada. It allows 
property owners to seek court - approved easement relocations under specific conditions and 
establishes legal protections for certain mortgage modifications that do not affect lien priority or 
require re - recording. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Do Pass

AB197
Enacts provisions strengthening certain 
protections for certain activities under the 
First Amendment. (BDR 19-136)

Backus & Hafen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 115. - Assemblymember Backus - ENROLLED - strengthens 
privacy protections for individuals associated with nonprofit organizations by prohibiting 
governmental entities from collecting, disclosing, or requiring personal information that identifies a 
person as a donor, member, or volunteer, with certain exceptions. It clarifies that such information is 
not a public record and provides individuals the right to bring civil action if harmed by violations. The 
bill also restricts the Secretary of State and Attorney General from collecting or disclosing donor - 
identifying information in specific circumstances.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12074/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12113/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12120/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12122/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12128/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12162/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12167/Overview


AB198 Establishes provisions relating to certain 
inflatable devices. (BDR 52-49) Brown-May

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 235. - Assemblymember Brown - May - ENROLLED - establishes 
safety, licensing, and operational requirements for businesses and operators of inflatable recreational 
devices (e.g., bounce houses, inflatable slides). It mandates business licensing, insurance coverage of 
at least $1 million, regular inspections, logbook maintenance, wind speed monitoring, and clear 
manufacturer labeling. Operators must halt use if safety hazards or high winds are present. The bill 
also allows local governments to adopt additional regulations and penalties related to inflatable 
device safety. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/12 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB251
Revises provisions relating to the 
inspection of meat and poultry. (BDR 51-
154)

Koenig & Gurr

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 415. - Committee on Natural Resources - Dept of Agriculture - 
Updates laws on meat and poultry inspections in Nevada; allows mobile and custom processing units 
to be licensed for commercial slaughter and to operate as official establishments; removes the 
requirement for custom facilities to be fixed locations; defines custom processing as preparing 
livestock or poultry for personal use at the owner's request; enables both interstate and intrastate 
commerce under new licensing regulations.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB262 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-362)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 240. - Joint Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections -  
ENROLLED - allows election board officers, counting board officers, and trainees to volunteer without 
compensation if they choose. It also extends this option to officers appointed for certain special 
elections in Las Vegas, Battle Mountain, and Carson City. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/16 - Do Pass

AB263 Revises provisions relating to 
homelessness. (BDR 20-96)

Mosca, Carter, 
Considine, D'Silva, 

Edgeworth, 
Flanagan, Hunt, 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 241. - Assemblymember Mosca - ENROLLED - requires Clark 
County to notify the Department of Transportation before clearing homeless encampments near state - 
controlled roadways and allows the Department to consult with outreach teams and assist in the 
clean - up.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB301 Revises provisions relating to community 
development. (BDR 25-1047)

Goulding & La Rue 
Hatch

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 466. - Assemblymember Goulding - ENROLLED - updates laws 
governing general improvement districts and low - income housing tax credits. It modernizes 
recordkeeping for district boards, requires online publication of financial records, and raises board 
member compensation. It mandates annual reports for districts with television maintenance 
functions and modifies budget publication rules for small districts. The bill also revises procedures for 
issuing and transferring low - income housing tax credits, including shortening the application 
deadline and expanding land acquisition and credit transfer options.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB321 Revises provisions relating to offenders. 
(BDR 16-1015)

Jackson, D'Silva, 
González, O’Neill, 

Dalia, Nadeem, 
Orentlicher & Roth

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 137. - Assemblymember Jackson - ENROLLED - authorizes the 
creation of a transitional housing program offering forestry and conservation training for certain 
minimum - security offenders who lack housing options for parole. It also requires the establishment 
of a hiring program to employ former offenders with firefighting experience from conservation camps 
in state firefighting roles. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/15 - 
Do Pass

AB325 Revises provisions relating to artificial 
intelligence. (BDR 36-393)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 123. - Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - amends 
existing emergency management laws to prohibit final emergency response decisions, including 
resource allocation and utility shutdowns, from being made solely by artificial intelligence. It requires 
state and local emergency plans to include safeguards ensuring human oversight and defines 
“artificial intelligence” for this context. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB333
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 49-
833)

Asm. Gray, Hansen, 
Roth, Anderson, 

DeLong, Dickman, 
Goulding, La Rue 
Hatch & O’Neill; 

Sen. Taylor, Daly & 
Hansen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 125. - Assemblymember Gray - ENROLLED - terminates the 
existing lease of state - owned land to Washoe County and replaces it with a new lease agreement for 
the portion used as a county public building complex. It establishes the Nevada State Fairgrounds on 
the remaining land, which will be operated and maintained by the State Department of Agriculture. 
The bill creates a dedicated account for the fairgrounds’ development and operations, updates 
relevant definitions, and revises oversight responsibilities related to the property. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12168/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12281/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12299/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12309/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12374/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12410/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12417/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12425/Overview


AB366 Revises provisions relating to housing. 
(BDR 25-814) Monroe-Moreno

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 420. - Assemblymember Monroe - Moreno - Would make changes 
to designate the Nevada Supportive Housing Development Fund as an account in the State General 
Fund rather than a special revenue fund. Would ensure that money in the new account does not 
revert to the State General Fund at the end of the fiscal year. Also makes an appropriation to the 
redesigned account to fund the supportive housing program. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB367 Makes various changes related to language 
access in elections. (BDR 24-364)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 212. - Joint Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - 
ENROLLED - enhances language access in Nevada elections by requiring the Secretary of State to post 
voting materials online in multiple languages, establish a toll - free number for language assistance, 
and hire a language access coordinator. It also allows voters with physical disabilities to use mobile 
devices for interpretive services, including American Sign Language, when voting. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/15 - Do Pass

AB375 Revises provisions relating to intoxicating 
liquor. (BDR 32-1049) Yeager & Gurr

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 421. - Speaker Yeager - R1 - allows local governments to permit 
covered food establishments (restaurants licensed to serve alcohol) to sell and deliver sealed 
alcoholic beverages for off - premises consumption, including through third - party delivery services. 
It also imposes an optional surcharge (up to 50 cents) per alcoholic beverage sale to fund the newly 
renamed Ignition Interlock and DUI Reduction Program, expanding its use to include DUI - related 
education and prevention. Lastly, it designates the Picon Punch as Nevada’s official state drink. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 6/1 - 
Do Pass

AB376 Revises provisions relating to insurance. 
(BDR 57-1009)

O’Neill, Gray, 
Dickman, DeLong 

& Gallant

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 422. - Assemblymember O'Neill - ENROLLED - Establishes a 4 - 
year program for testing innovative property insurance products with regulatory exemptions. 
Streamlines rate increase filings, allows wildfire - specific policies, and expands coverage options for 
reciprocal and captive insurers. Updates reserve requirements and insurance rules for common - 
interest communities. Oversight is assigned to the Insurance Commissioner. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/29 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB381 Revises provisions related to animals. 
(BDR 50-793)

Asm. Hardy, 
Hibbetts, Marzola, 

Miller, Dalia, 
González, Jauregui, 

La Rue Hatch, 
Moore, Nadeem, 

Nguyen, 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 423. - Assemblymember Hardy - ENROLLED - refines definitions 
of "cruelty" and "torture," increasing penalties for severe offenses, and expanding protections for 
animals. Authorizes temporary restraining orders in animal cruelty cases, requires veterinary 
evaluation before euthanasia in certain counties, mandates restitution for care costs, and enhances 
legal consequences for acts of cruelty, including those tied to domestic violence. The bill also requires 
psychological evaluations and treatment for both juvenile and adult offenders and removes 
exemptions for agricultural animals in cruelty cases. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 
(Floor) 5/31 - 

Amend & Do Pass

AB384

Requires the Chair of the Juvenile Justice 
Oversight Commission to solicit input 
regarding certain subjects relating to 
juvenile justice. (BDR 5-1053)

Cole

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 147. - Assemblymember Cole - ENROLLED - requires the Chair of 
the Juvenile Justice Oversight Commission to gather input on juvenile justice issues and submit an 
annual report to the Legislature summarizing the Commission’s actions, findings, and 
recommendations. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Do Pass

AB396 Revises provisions relating to housing. 
(BDR 22-232) Backus

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 364. - Assemblymember Backus - ENROLLED - requires large 
counties and cities in Nevada to adopt ordinances by July 1, 2026, allowing accessory dwelling units 
(ADUs) on residential properties, with limited restrictions. If no ordinance is adopted by that date, 
ADUs are automatically allowed. The bill also includes updates to zoning laws, common - interest 
community rules, lease restrictions, resale package requirements, and increases administrative fines 
for certain violations.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB418 Revises provisions relating to animals. 
(BDR 20-849)

Hibbetts, Hardy & 
Nguyen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 329. - Assemblymember Hibbetts - ENROLLED - requires counties 
and cities to adopt ordinances mandating that kennels, animal rescue organizations, and pet - related 
businesses complete a prescribed pet - handling training course and renew it every two years. The 
training applies specifically to handling domestic cats and dogs.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12483/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12487/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12511/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12518/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12523/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12533/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12561/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12605/Overview


AB420 Revises provisions relating to education. 
(BDR 34-538) González

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 318. - Assemblymember Gonzalez - ENROLLED - requires school 
districts and charter schools that employ or contract for school police officers to publish an annual 
report on their websites detailing use - of - force incidents from the previous school year. The first 
report is due by the start of the 2026–2027 school year and must cover data from 2025–2026. No 
longer contains election provisions from the original bill. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Education 5/14 
- Amend & Do Pass

AB429 Revises provisions relating to natural 
resources. (BDR 10-679)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 130. - Committee on Natural Resources - ENROLLED - clarifies 
that any person or governmental entity may create, modify, or otherwise manage a conservation 
easement in the same manner as other easements, expanding existing authority beyond current 
exceptions. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Natural 
Resources 5/15 - Do 

Pass

AB433 Revises provisions relating to public safety. 
(BDR S-399)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 317. - Joint Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - 
establishes the Purple Ribbon Task Force on Firefighter and Peace Officer Wellness to evaluate state 
policies on the mental and physical health of firefighters and law enforcement personnel. It outlines 
the Task Force's membership, duties, and requires a report with recommendations to be submitted to 
the Legislature’s Government Affairs Committees for the 84th Session.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB439

Revises provisions concerning the purchase 
or acquisition of certain unmanned aerial 
vehicles or other related equipment and 
services under certain circumstances. 
(BDR 44-896)

Cole

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 316. - Assemblymember Cole - ENROLLED - allows public and 
law enforcement agencies to purchase unmanned aerial vehicles or related services from otherwise 
restricted businesses if the data collected is stored solely in the U.S., not accessible to certain third 
parties, the business complies with these requirements, and the purchase complies with federal law. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB444
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 18-
772)

Asm. Hafen; Sen. 
Neal

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 426. - Assemblymember Hafen - ENROLLED - Expands 
transparency in state and local rulemaking by requiring agencies to notify business groups about 
proposed regulations impacting small businesses. Mandates detailed small business impact 
statements and email notifications for public workshops. Removes exemptions for local governments 
on impact fee and sales tax rule procedures, making noncompliant rules void and unenforceable.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
(Floor) 5/31 - Do 

Pass

AB449 Revises provisions governing public 
utilities. (BDR 58-888) Gurr

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 150. - Assemblymember Gurr - ENROLLED - expands eligibility 
for simplified rate change procedures to utilities serving up to 4,000 people with annual gross sales 
under $4 million. It also allows these utilities to adjust fees—not just rates—using a nationally 
recognized inflation index. Additionally, the bill raises the revenue threshold for using a simplified 
“letter of advice” process (instead of a full application) from $15,000 to $100,000 for most utilities, 
while keeping existing rules for small - scale providers of last resort. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/14 - Do Pass

AB457

Requires the Joint Interim Standing 
Committee on Revenue to conduct a study 
concerning certain changes to provisions 
governing taxation. (BDR S-167)

Considine

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 262. - Assemblymember Considine - ENROLLED - requires the 
Joint Interim Standing Committee on Revenue to conduct a study during the 2025–2026 interim, on 
the feasibility of treating certain real property rental businesses as a single entity for commerce tax 
purposes and on imposing a tax on the sale or transfer of a controlling interest in entities holding real 
estate in Nevada. The study must include estimated revenue impacts and recommendations for 
administering such a tax, with findings to be reported to the 2027 Legislature. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 5/15 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12607/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12626/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12632/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12646/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12652/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12657/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12693/Overview


AB458 Revises provisions governing energy. 
(BDR 58-228) Watts

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 253. - Assemblymember Watts - ENROLLED - expands net 
metering eligibility to users of solar - powered affordable housing systems and exempts those 
systems from being classified as public utilities. Sets requirements for tariffs, contracts, and 
documentation related to these systems and mandates tenant notifications. Updates public works 
rules for government - funded construction and revises the expanded solar access program to focus 
solely on low - income residential customers, also increases the size limit for community solar 
projects and strengthens contractor and consumer protections by applying existing solar installation 
and licensing laws to solar - powered affordable housing systems.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/16 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB462 Revises provisions relating to economic 
development. (BDR 22-823) Backus

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 427. - Assemblymember Backus - ENROLLED  -  expands the 
Inland Port Authority Act to include industrial parks, enabling the creation of tax increment areas to 
fund projects and allowing bond issuance. Strengthens workforce education by updating the Teacher 
Academy College Pathway Program, requiring dual credit courses and work - based learning for 
students. The bill also improves reimbursement criteria for aspiring teachers and establishes a Career 
Pathways Oversight Committee to coordinate, evaluate, and oversee career training programs across 
Nevada schools.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
(Floor) 5/31 - 

Amend & Do Pass

AB486 Makes various changes related to 
transportation. (BDR 35-678)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 309. - Committee on Natural Resources - ENROLLED - updates 
the Department of Transportations reporting requirements to include progress and need for wildlife 
connectivity projects. It lowers the education requirement for Deputy Directors to a bachelor’s degree 
and broadens required experience to include business or economics. It also raises the cost threshold 
for detailed cost - benefit analyses of highway projects from $25 million to $50 million and mandates 
these analyses address wildlife - vehicle collisions and mitigation benefits from wildlife crossings. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/14 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB491 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-570)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 322. - Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - 
ENROLLED - requires county and city clerks to promptly provide election - related data to the 
Secretary of State upon request. Establishes that candidates for most state and local elected offices 
must be registered voters in the relevant jurisdiction as a qualification to hold office, with a 
grandfather clause for current officeholders as of October 1, 2025. It also mandates that declarations 
of candidacy, residency, and eligibility be public records available electronically, and requires 
candidates to attest under penalty of perjury to their voter registration details. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/15 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB503
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 15-
394)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 331. - Committee on Government Affairs - ENROLLED - 
criminalizes tampering with critical infrastructure, restricts possession and sale of used 
utility/copper wire to verified businesses or individuals with proof of ownership, and imposes 
penalties based on the wire’s weight. It also mandates detailed recordkeeping and electronic 
reporting by scrap metal processors and expands existing restrictions on metallic wire and scrap 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Finance 5/29 - 
Do Pass

AB506
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 18-
934)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 153. - Assembly Committee on Ways and Means - ENROLLED - 
Would eliminate reporting requirements to IFC for various state agencies and local entities; includes 
local governments and various state agencies (e.g., the Department of Employment, Training and 
Rehabilitation, the Public Utilities Commission) to report to the IFC on issues related to contracts, 
financial conditions, and reorganizations. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/15 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12697/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12707/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12747/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12756/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12786/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12797/Overview


AB509
Revises provisions relating to the access of 
public rights-of-way by broadband 
providers. (BDR 58-664)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 155. - Committee on Commerce and Labor - ENROLLED - requires 
broadband providers, starting July 1, 2026, to enter into agreements with local governments to access 
public rights - of - way. These agreements must be nondiscriminatory and include compensation to 
the local government, capped at 2% of the provider's annual gross revenue from broadband services 
in that jurisdiction. Certain entities, like video service providers and mobile carriers, are excluded. 
Local governments may not revoke access for lack of an agreement before July 1, 2026. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB518 Revises provisions relating to the interstate 
placement of children. (BDR 11-807)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 157. - Committee on Health and Human Services - Would change 
the law on the he interstate placement of children under the Interstate Compact on the Placement of 
Children (ICPC), which governs the placement of children in foster care, juvenile justice institutions, 
or for adoption across state lines; would allow the sending state to maintain or terminate jurisdiction 
over the child depending on specific circumstances; requires that a public agency in the receiving 
state approve the placement before it occurs and must evaluate the safety and suitability of the 
placement; assigns financial responsibility for children placed in another state, based on the specifics 
of each placement. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Judiciary 5/13 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.,

AB530

Revises provisions relating to the 
imposition by certain counties of additional 
taxes on fuels for motor vehicles. (BDR 32-
783)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 6. - Assembly Committee on Growth and Infrastructure - 
ENROLLED - Chapter 6 -  allows the Clark County Board of Commissioners to continue imposing 
annual fuel tax increases after January 1, 2027, through a two - thirds board vote via ordinance, rather 
than requiring voter approval. If no ordinance is adopted by December 31, 2026, the board loses the 
authority to impose further increases. Starting January 1, 2037, voter approval will again be required 
to continue annual increases. 

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
5/2 - Do Pass

AB540
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 25-
1036)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 431.- Governors Housing Bill - ENROLLED - establishes the 
Nevada Attainable Housing Account, funded with a $133 million appropriation, to support housing for 
low - to moderate - income residents. It creates oversight through the Nevada Attainable Housing 
Council, sets allocation and reporting requirements, and introduces new income - based housing tiers. 
It expands authority for expedited project approval, land use, and developer evaluation for attainable 
housing. The bill also supports rural housing projects by easing contractor licensing during labor 
shortages and authorizes up to $50 million in bonds for development loans.

Secretary of 
State

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
(Floor) 6/2 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB15
Revises various provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 30-
464)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 487. - Clark County - ENROLLED - updates county procedures by 
removing the August meeting requirement for debt commissions, expanding conservation fee uses, 
clarifying tax sale deadlines, adjusting county office hours, eliminating certain school district reports 
to counties, and reducing public notice posting requirements for utility franchises.

Governor
Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/8 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB19
Authorizes the Governor to enter into 
certain interstate fire compacts. (BDR 47-
381)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 40. - Committee on Natural Resources - Ratifies the Great Plains 
Wildland Fire Protection Compact which facilitates assistance in prevention, pre - suppression, 
control of wildland fires, management of prescribed fires, training and mitigation and recovery 
activities. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/7 - Do 
Pass

SB25 Revises provisions relating to fire 
protection. (BDR 42-249)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 53. - State Fire Marshal - Adds cannabis cultivations and 
productions facilities to the list of entities that the State Fire Marshal must enforce laws and adopt 
regulations pertaining to safe exit in case of fire. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12800/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12809/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12821/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12839/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11768/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11774/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11786/Overview


SB36 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 48-384)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 291. - Joint Interim Standing Committee on Natural Resources - 
ENROLLED - creates the Nevada Voluntary Water Rights Retirement Program to purchase or accept 
donations of groundwater rights for retirement, preventing future appropriation of those rights. It 
establishes an associated account for funding and sets a program end date of June 30, 2035. It also 
expands eligibility for water conservation grants to include permanent groundwater retirement and 
adjusts income - based funding requirements. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/27 - Do 
Pass

SB39 Revises provisions relating to emergency 
management. (BDR 36-269)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 257. - Division of Emergency Management - establishes the 
Nevada Hazard Mitigation Revolving Loan Account to implement the federal STORM Act, allowing the 
state to offer loans to local and tribal governments for hazard mitigation projects. The Division of 
Emergency Management will administer the program, prioritize high - impact projects, enforce 
prevailing wage and bidding requirements, and adopt regulations for loan applications and eligibility. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/27 - Do Pass

SB119 Revises provisions relating to the NV Grow 
Program. (BDR S-81) Neal

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 492. - Senator Neal - ENROLLED - renames the Division 
overseeing the NV Grow Program to the Division of Small Business and Entrepreneurship 
Development, lowers the minimum revenue threshold for program eligibility from $50,000 to 
$35,000, and requires an annual public report detailing program assistance and participant growth. It 
also appropriates $1.2 million to the College of Southern Nevada to support and implement the 
program. 

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB120 Revises provisions relating to the 
administration of justice. (BDR 1-711) Scheible

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 163. - Senator Scheible - ENROLLED - prohibits courts from 
charging interest or fees for payment plans set up by defendants and bars courts from requiring 
defendants to repay the cost of a court - appointed attorney. It also allows courts to adopt rules for 
managing payment plans and repeals existing laws that previously allowed recovery of public 
defender costs from defendants. 

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Do Pass

SB162 Revises provisions relating to state 
financing. (BDR 31-789)

Cruz-Crawford, 
Krasner & Rogich

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 169. - Senator Cruz - Crawford - ENROLLED - requires any entity 
receiving state funding to agree to comply with applicable civil rights and employment laws as a 
condition of accepting the appropriation. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB170 Revises provisions relating to industrial 
insurance. (BDR 53-632)

Steinbeck & 
Scheible

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 380. - Senator Steinbeck - ENROLLED -  updates occupational 
disease compensation requirements for certain firefighters, police officers, and arson investigators. 
Effective July 1, 2026, it mandates that physical exams and annual cancer screenings for non - state 
executive department employees be conducted by qualified medical professionals and include specific 
tests. The screenings are tied to industrial insurance eligibility for lung, heart, and cancer - related 
occupational diseases.

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/30 - Do 
Pass

SB179 Revises provisions relating to 
discrimination. (BDR 18-35)

Ohrenschall, Buck, 
Stone, Krasner, 

Cannizzaro, Daly, 
Ellison, Flores, 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 494. - Senator Ohrenschall - ENROLLED - requires the Nevada 
Equal Rights Commission to consider whether alleged discriminatory practices in housing, 
employment, or public accommodations were motivated by antisemitism. It also defines 
"antisemitism" for use in such investigations.

Governor
Asm. Gov't Affairs 

5/16 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB183
Revises provisions relating to caseworkers 
of agencies which provide child welfare 
services. (BDR 38-710)

Scheible
Approved by the Governor. Chapter 171. - Senator Scheible - ENROLLED - limits child welfare 
caseworkers providing permanency services to a maximum of 30 children, with exceptions for 
keeping siblings together or during temporary emergency circumstances under agency policy.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB188

Establishes procedures to assist certain 
persons with limited English proficiency in 
accessing health care in certain 
circumstances. (BDR 40-41)

Doñate

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 172. - Senator Donate - ENROLLED - requires health care facilities 
and providers in Nevada to ensure meaningful access to care for individuals with limited English 
proficiency by offering timely, accurate, and free language assistance services, including qualified 
interpreters and translators. It prohibits requiring patients to provide or pay for their own 
interpreters and sets standards for remote interpretation. Enforcement measures include 
administrative and professional disciplinary actions for noncompliance.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 5/7 
- Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11807/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11813/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12032/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12039/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12180/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12188/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12197/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12201/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12207/Overview


SB191
Revises provisions relating to court 
reporters and court reporting firms. 
(BDR 54-14)

Daly

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 288. - Senator Daly - updates the regulation of certified court 
reporters and court reporting firms by allowing the Certified Court Reporters’ Board of Nevada to set 
fees by regulation, within defined limits, instead of fixed amounts in statute. It also expands authority 
for municipal courts to designate non - certified individuals to operate sound recording equipment 
and increases compensation for certain services provided by court reporters in state district courts.

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/16 - Amend 
& Do Pass

SB196

Authorizes a heavy equipment rental 
company to charge a recovery fee to offset 
taxes levied on certain heavy equipment. 
(BDR 32-19)

Cannizzaro

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 180. - Senator Cannizarro - ENROLLED - allows heavy equipment 
rental companies in Nevada to charge a recovery fee—up to 2% of the rental price—to help offset 
property taxes on their equipment. The fee must be clearly listed on invoices, kept in a separate 
account, and used only for tax payments. Rentals to certain government entities are exempt. 
Companies must report annually to the Department of Taxation on fees collected and taxes paid. False 
reporting or misuse of funds is a gross misdemeanor.

Governor Asm. Revenue 5/16 - 
Do Pass

SB208
Revises provisions governing certain 
surcharges imposed by a county. (BDR 20-
677)

Steinbeck, Stone & 
Doñate

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 182. - Senator Steinbeck - ENROLLED - expands the allowed use 
of 911 emergency service surcharge funds. It permits counties to use these funds for costs related to 
constructing, maintaining, or operating facilities that house emergency call systems. It also sets new 
spending priorities and raises the year - end fund balance caps to $15 million for Clark County and 
$7.5 million for Washoe County before a surcharge reduction is required. These changes align with 
federal regulations to ensure proper use of 911 - related revenue. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

SB210
Revises provisions relating to fees collected 
by constables and sheriffs for certain 
services. (BDR 20-540)

Stone & 
Ohrenschall

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 183. - Senator Stone - ENROLLED - This would allow existing fees, 
as outlined in NRS, that are charged by Sheriffs and Constables to be increased according to a fee 
schedule outlined for each service. Increases various service fees charged by sheriffs and constables 
in Nevada, including fees for serving legal documents, mileage, executing writs, issuing certificates of 
sale, and related tasks. Most fees are raised to $26, with mileage fees increasing from $2 to $3 per 
mile. Constables are also authorized to charge $26 (up from $7) for summoning a jury.

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

SB226 Revises provisions relating to legislative 
affairs. (BDR 17-365)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 454. - Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - This 
bill makes numerous changes to interim committees of the Legislature. Some key highlights, it makes 
various conforming changes on the use of remote technology, it eliminates the public lands steering 
subcommittee and brings those responsibilities under the purview of the Joint Standing Interim 
Committee on Natural Resources, additionally the bill would create a standalone committee of the 
Sunset Commission, eliminating it as a subcommittee of the Legislative Commissioner. 

Governor
Asm. Leg. Op's & 

Elec. 5/29 - Amend 
& Do Pass

SB235 Revises provisions relating to wildlife. 
(BDR 45-113) Hansen

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 297. - Senator Hansen - Requires the Board of Wildlife 
Commissioners to establish a program that permits the transfer of big game mammal hunting tags to 
individuals under 18 years old; eliminates the penalty for refusing to exhibit items other than the 
license or permit; allows individuals to take or gather the skull or head of a wildlife species (with or 
without antlers or horns) for non - commercial purposes, even if they do not have the required tag. 

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB241 Revises provisions relating to juvenile 
probation. (BDR 5-493) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 133. - Committee on Judiciary - ENROLLED - limits juvenile 
probation to a maximum of 18 months total, regardless of the number of offenses, unless an exception 
applies. It allows a juvenile court to end probation even if restitution is unpaid, enabling a civil 
judgment against the child or guardian for the unpaid amount. The bill also requires a hearing before 
detaining a child for violating probation, aligning the procedure with that used for parole violations.

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/13 - 
Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12235/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12243/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12266/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12268/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12305/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12348/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12362/Overview


SB257 Revises provisions relating to autism. 
(BDR 38-106)

Sen. Dondero 
Loop, Cruz-

Crawford, Krasner, 
Ohrenschall, 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 386. - Senator Dondero - Loop - allows for any provider of health 
care, acting within their scope of practice, to conduct autism spectrum disorder services instead of 
limiting these services to specific provider types. Passed Committee without amendments. 

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/30 - Do Pass

SB258 Revises provisions relating to industrial 
insurance. (BDR 53-594)

Sen. Nguyen, 
Cannizzaro, Stone, 
Titus, Buck, Cruz-

Crawford, Daly, 
Doñate, Dondero 

Loop, Ellison, 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 186. - Senator Nguyen - ENROLLED - Would limit how much an 
industrial insurer or the Division of Industrial Relations can recover from a third - party settlement 
related to a workplace injury or death. It caps recovery to the lesser of the lien amount minus half of 
the injured worker's legal costs or one - third of the total recovery. It also restricts future 
compensation offsets to non - accident benefits and limits reductions to one - third of each payment, 
with total reductions not exceeding the net recovery amount. 

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 5/7 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB260 Revises provisions relating to air quality. 
(BDR 53-961)

Sen. Flores, Doñate 
& Scheible; Asm. 

Moore, González & 
D'Silva

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 498. - Senator Flores - ENROLLED - Requires the Division of 
Industrial Relations to set regulations for employers to reduce employee exposure to wildfire smoke 
based on air quality levels, including prohibiting outdoor critical tasks at high pollution levels. 
Employers must establish communication systems to inform and allow employees to report smoke 
exposure and symptoms. The bill also mandates training standards and exempts certain employers, 
such as mines, commercial truck drivers, emergency services, and small businesses with 10 or fewer 
employees. 

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB273
Revises provisions governing the 
confidentiality of the personal information 
of certain persons. (BDR 20-966)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 134. - Committee on Government Affairs - Expands existing law to 
allow civilian employees who support law enforcement agencies, as well as firefighters and retired 
firefighters, to obtain court orders to keep their personal information confidential in public records. It 
also authorizes these groups to request an alternate address be displayed on their driver’s license or 
ID for privacy protection.

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

SB279 Revises provisions relating to law 
enforcement. (BDR 23-1023)

Pazina, 
Cannizzaro, Cruz-
Crawford, Doñate, 

Ohrenschall & 
Scheible

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 191. - Senator Pazina - requires that peace officers receive 
written notice at least 48 hours before being compelled to appear in certain investigations. The notice 
must specify the alleged facts and the violated rule or policy. It also allows peace officers to choose 
representatives from outside their bargaining unit for such investigations. Amended -  deletes Section 
2 of the bill, and revises the information required to be included in a summary of alleged misconduct 
in certain notices. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB284 Revises provisions relating to child welfare. 
(BDR 38-747)

Cannizzaro, 
Scheible, Nguyen, 

Cruz-Crawford, 
Daly, Doñate, 

Dondero Loop, 
Flores, 

Ohrenschall & 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 192. - Senator Cannizzaro - ENROLLED - Requires child welfare 
agencies to identify and apply for federal benefits for children in their custody and to manage those 
benefits responsibly if acting as representative payee. Agencies must establish accounts, provide 
financial counseling to children aged 14 and older, and regularly report on benefit use. The bill 
repeals prior laws directing state and county trust funds for child welfare benefits and mandates 
closing those accounts, transferring funds to newly established accounts managed under the updated 
system.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/14 - Do Pass

SB285 Revises provisions relating to 
apprenticeships. (BDR 53-91) Daly

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 193. - Senator Daly - ENROLLED - Existing law designates the 
Office of the Labor Commissioner as the State Apprenticeship Agency, overseeing apprenticeship 
programs and the State Apprenticeship Council. The bill requires apprenticeship programs covering 
multiple construction trades to have separate standards for each trade but allows existing non - 
compliant standards approved before October 1, 2025, to remain in use until updated or voided.

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12405/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12409/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12414/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12459/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12480/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12486/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12489/Overview


SB320 Revises provisions relating to crosswalks. 
(BDR 43-9) Scheible

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 196. - Senator Scheible - ENROLLED - The bill extends the 20 - 
foot no stopping, standing, or parking rule to both marked and unmarked crosswalks. It allows local 
authorities to set greater distances for safety reasons, provided official traffic - control devices notify 
the public. Until December 31, 2026, enforcement is limited to warnings where such devices are 
posted. After that date, full enforcement by law enforcement officers is permitted regardless of posted 
notice.

Governor Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 5/13 - Do Pass

SB325
Authorizes certain counties and cities to 
establish a program relating to the 
adoption of certain animals. (BDR 20-1004)

Sen. Doñate, Cruz-
Crawford, Scheible, 

Steinbeck, Stone, 
Ellison, Krasner, 

Nguyen, Pazina & 
Taylor; Asm. 

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 87. - Senator Donate - ENROLLED - allows counties and cities that 
own or fund animal shelters to create programs waiving adoption fees for veterans, law enforcement 
officers, and first responders. These programs can waive fees for one eligible animal per person 
within six months, require valid ID, mandate record - keeping and reporting by shelters, and require 
the governing body to submit a biennial report to the Legislature on the program’s status.

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB343
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 49-
972)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 88. - Committee on Natural Resources - This bill from the Sunset 
Commission makes several changes to 4 - h camps and the 4 - h advisory counsel along with how they 
interact with the Cites, counties and UNR Cooperative Extension. Renames the Agricultural Extension 
Department to the University of Nevada Cooperative Extension and updates its role and the 
management of the State 4 - H Camp. It prohibits sale or lease of camp property without legislative 
approval, revises the 4 - H Camp Advisory Council, and repeals several advisory boards, transferring 
their duties to other entities. It also adjusts terms for the Rangeland Resources Commission and 
exempts some licensed applicants for educational roles from background checks. Passed Committee 
without amendments. 

Governor Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/13 - Do Pass

SB347 Revises provisions relating to mental health 
crisis holds. (BDR 39-8)

Scheible, 
Cannizzaro, 

Dondero Loop & 
Pazina

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 256. - Senator Scheible - allows officers to confiscate a firearm 
from a person placed on a mental health crisis hold and requires a receipt and return procedure 
notice to be provided. Upon the person’s release, law enforcement must, within 30 days, petition the 
court to determine if returning the firearm poses a serious risk. The person is notified of their right to 
a hearing. If the court finds a risk or the person fails to respond, it may authorize the agency to retain, 
sell, destroy, trade, or donate the firearm. Passed Committee without amendments.

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/12 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB358
Requires certain units of government of this 
State to accept certain forms of payment. 
(BDR 19-759)

Taylor

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 448. - Senator Taylor -  requires, with certain exceptions, each 
officer, agency, branch, board, commission, department, division, bureau, district, or other unit of 
government of this State to accept, as payment for any fee, tax, or other debt, payment by debit card, 
credit card, check, money order, or electronic transfer of money or cash. 

Governor
Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/8 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB359 Makes various changes relating to drivers. 
(BDR 43-900) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 259. - Committee on Judiciary - ENROLLED - clarifies that drivers 
involved in crashes with unattended property must fulfill their legal duties when the crash occurs on 
a highway or premises open to the public. It also outlines the obligation to report such crashes under 
specified conditions.

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/8 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB370 Revises provisions relating to 
manufactured housing. (BDR 43-754) Taylor

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 203 - Senator Taylor - updates procedures for obtaining a 
certificate of ownership for manufactured or mobile homes when the original title is unavailable. It 
sets timelines for the Housing Division to approve or deny applications, allows for a bond and safety 
inspection if initially denied, and requires the Division to adopt regulations for an expedited title 
process for a fee. Passed Committee without amendments. 

Governor
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/16 - Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12549/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12564/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12601/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12614/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12635/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12636/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12664/Overview


SB404 Revises provisions relating to personal 
financial administration. (BDR 12-901) Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 338. - Committee on Judiciary - ENROLLED - updates and clarifies 
laws related to the administration of trusts and estates. It revises the priority order and qualifications 
for appointing estate administrators, increases estate value thresholds for summary administration 
and set - aside without court involvement, and establishes a two - year limit to file certain breach of 
fiduciary duty claims. It also expands trustee powers, sets new documentation requirements for 
beneficiaries, clarifies when Nevada law applies to trusts, and removes preference for whole - blood 
relatives in estate matters.

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/16 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB405 Creates the Transit-to-Trails Task Force. 
(BDR 35-382)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 209. - Committee on Natural Resources - ENROLLED - creates the 
Transit - to - Trails Task Force within the Division of Outdoor Recreation to improve public transit 
access to outdoor recreation areas. The Task Force must identify priority areas, seek federal and 
private grants, and submit a report with findings and legislative recommendations by August 31 of 
each even - numbered year.

Governor
Asm. Natural 

Resources 5/5 - Do 
Pass

SB407
Revises provisions relating to the 
Department of Indigent Defense Services. 
(BDR 14-492)

Cmtee on Judiciary

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 519 - Joint Committee on the Judiciary - Creates the Office of the 
Alternate State Public Defender and the Office of Postconviction Counsel within the Department of 
Indigent Defense Services. Provides qualifications, powers and duties of the offices and allows the 
State Public Defender to contract with these new offices for representation services, all under the 
supervision of the State Public Defender. Also updates the responsibilities of the Board on Indigent 
Defense Services to include oversight of postconviction services. 

Governor Asm. Judiciary 5/30 - 
Do Pass

SB421 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-953)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 97. - Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - 
ENROLLED - This bill requires county clerks or elections officials to staff election polling locations 
within the boundaries of an Indian Tribe regardless of a tribe requesting them. The Indian tribe of the 
location of the voting locations must deny the staffing of the election polling locations specifically. 

Governor Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/13 - Do Pass

SB442
Requires the Public Utilities Commission of 
Nevada to establish certain reporting 
requirements. (BDR 58-429)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 452. - Committee on Growth and Infrastructure - requires the 
Public Utilities Commission of Nevada (PUCN) to adopt regulations requiring public utilities to submit 
monthly reports to the PUCN that include the total number of service terminations from the previous 
month and aggregated demographic information, such as the zip codes of affected residences.

Governor Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB460 Revises provisions relating to education. 
(BDR 34-16)

Cannizzaro, 
Dondero Loop, 
Pazina, Cruz-

Approved by the Governor. Chapter 505. - Senator Cannizzaro - Governor Asm. Education 6/2 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SJR7

Urges the Federal Government to recognize 
the unsuitability of Yucca Mountain as the 
site for a repository to store and dispose of 
spent nuclear fuel and high-level 
radioactive waste. (BDR R-945)

Ohrenschall
Senator Ohrenschall - Urges the Federal Government to recognize the unsuitability of Yucca Mountain 
as the site for a repository to store and dispose of spent nuclear fuel and high - level radioactive 
waste.

Secretary of 
State

Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/13 - Do Pass

AB16
Makes an appropriation to Mineral County 
for the construction of a new county jail. 
(BDR S-410)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Mineral County - Makes an appropriation of $10M from the State 
General Fund to Mineral County for the construction of a new county jail. Declared exempt, has not 
been scheduled for a hearing. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12727/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12728/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12730/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12766/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12795/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12863/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12209/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11771/Overview


AB31

Provides for certain Medicaid 
reimbursement of providers of 
nonemergency secure behavioral health 
transport services. (BDR 38-368)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Southern Region Behavioral Health Policy Board - Requires Medicaid 
to cover nonemergency secure behavioral health transport services and requires Director to apply for 
any federal authority required to increase reimbursement by 15% for pick - up/drop off/or both is in 
a county under 100,000 population and increase by 10% for all other secure behavioral health 
transport covered by Medicaid. Amended in Assembly HHS, changing the effective date to 1/1/26, 
amendment adopted in the Assembly, bill referred to Way and Means.

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

3/21 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB32

Directs the Joint Interim Standing 
Committee on Growth and Infrastructure to 
conduct a study during the 2025-2026 
interim concerning the Nevada Commission 
for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway 
of Carson City and Storey County. (BDR S-
404)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Carson City - Instructs the Interim Standing Committee on Growth 
and Infrastructure to conduct a study during the 2025 - 2026 interim on the Nevada Commission for 
the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway of Carson City and Storey County. Passed out of Assembly 
Growth and Infrastructure without amendments, referred to Ways and Means. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
4/4 - Heard

AB62
Revises provisions relating to transferable 
tax credits for affordable housing. (BDR 32-
437)

Cmtee on Revenue
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Advisory Committee on Housing - Allows an affordable housing 
project sponsor to utilize a long - term ground lease for the project site, reduces the number of days 
from 45 to 15 in which a project sponsor must submit a final application for transferable tax credits, 
allows a project sponsor to transfer tax credits, increases the total amount of transferable tax credits 
for affordable housing that the Division is authorized to approve for all fiscal years from $40M to 
$100M, and changes the 4 - year period start date on the tax credits from the day they are issued to 
the day on which the project sponsor is notified that the credits will be issued. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/31 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB66 Revises provisions relating to district 
courts. (BDR 1-473) Cmtee on Judiciary

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Nevada Supreme Court - R1 - Now only applies to the 1st and 10th 
Judicial Districts. Increase the number of district judges in Carson City and Storey County from 2 to 3; 
in Washoe County from 9 to 11, 8 total of whom must be a family court judge; in Humboldt County 
from 1 to 2; in Clark County from 32 to 42, 34 total of whom must be family court judges; in Churchill 
from 1 to 2; and in the district that includes Lander, Mineral and Pershing from 1 to 2.

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/16 - Heard

AB80 Establishes provisions relating to soil 
health. (BDR 49-387)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Interim Standing Committee on Natural Resources - R1 - 
Replaces “agricultural producer” with “producer”, removes the creation of the Soil Health Advisory 
Board and limits the Initiative’s requirements to available funding, clarifies that adoption of soil 
health practices should be measured by both number of producers and land area, requires a 10 - year 
review of the Initiative’s progress, with options to take further action or seek repeal if goals aren’t 
met, and removes the funding appropriation. Creates the 9 voting member, plus any other nonvoting 
member with technical or scientific expertise, Soil Health Advisory Board within the State 
Conservations Commission at DCNR. The Board is tacked with encouraging agriculture producers to 
adopt soil health practices and promote understanding and scientific research of soil health. Creates 
the Fund for Soil Health in the State Treasury for the purpose of issuing grants. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/16 - Heard

AB87 Makes an appropriation relating to wildlife 
crossings. (BDR S-390)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Interim Committee on Natural Resources - Makes an 
appropriation of $5M from the State General Fund to the Wildlife Crossings Account for the purpose 
of identifying and constructing new wildlife crossings. Declared exempt, has not been scheduled for a 
hearing. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11803/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11804/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11870/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11875/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11900/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11951/Overview


AB100
Revises provisions relating to economic 
development of regional commercial air 
service in this State. (BDR 44-140)

Gurr, Koenig & 
D'Silva

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Gurr - R1 - now includes entirety of the provisions 
of Assembly Bill 293, which would create the Office of Aerospace, within the Department of 
Transportation, and giving the office authority over the Fund for Aviation, the Air Service 
Development Fund, and the Air Service Development Commission. Relating to the NV Air Service 
Development Fund, requiring any remaining funds at the end of a fiscal year not revert to the State 
General Fund and instead be carried forward to the next fiscal year. 

Asm. Revenue 4/10 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB127

Makes an appropriation to the Office for 
New Americans in the Office of the 
Governor to provide grants to counties and 
cities to implement language access plans. 
(BDR S-396)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Committee on Government Affairs - Makes an appropriation 
from the State General Fund of $5M to the Office for New Americans to award of grants to the 
governing bodies of counties and cities for the implementation of language access plans. Declared 
exempt, not yet scheduled for a hearing. 

AB131
Provides an exemption from property 
taxation for accessory dwelling units rented 
or leased to certain tenants. (BDR 32-694)

Jackson Oppose

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Jackson - R1 -  provides a property tax exemption 
for one accessory dwelling unit (ADU) per parcel if it is rented for at least 12 months to a tenant 
receiving Housing Choice Voucher Program assistance. The ADU must be on the same parcel as the 
owner's primary residence, comply with local zoning laws and HOA rules, and meet documentation 
requirements. The exemption is based on the replacement cost of the ADU. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Finance 5/29 - 
Heard

AB135
Revises provisions relating to certain tax 
exemptions for veterans and surviving 
spouses of veterans. (BDR 32-236)

Yurek & D'Silva Neutral No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymembers Yurek and D'Silva - Would expand the property 
tax exemption for the surviving spouse of a veteran. Passed Committee without amendments. 

Asm. Revenue 4/10 - 
Do Pass

AB201 Revises provisions relating to the sealing of 
certain records. (BDR 3-843) Roth

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Roth - ENROLLED - expands the circumstances 
under which eviction - related court files are automatically sealed. It allows automatic sealing of 
summary eviction case files upon a tenant's unopposed motion or after certain appeal outcomes. It 
also creates a rebuttable presumption in favor of sealing if a motion is filed more than one year after 
the eviction order. Additionally, it provides for automatic sealing of case files in unlawful lockout 
cases if the court finds the lockout was unjustified and specific conditions are met. 

Governor Sen. Judiciary 5/14 - 
Do Pass

AB203 Revises provisions relating to cannabis. 
(BDR 56-134) Carter

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Carter - R1 - revises cannabis laws to streamline 
packaging and labeling regulations, allowing necessary tracking tags and shifting required 
information from labels to packaging. It also expands opportunities for individuals impacted by past 
cannabis laws through joint ventures with licensed facilities, eases restrictions on license applications 
and recordkeeping, and strengthens oversight of unlicensed cannabis activity while maintaining sales 
tax obligations for all cannabis retailers, licensed or not. Would create a new position within the 
Cannabis Compliance Board to focus on social equity issues; would allow individuals adversely 
affected by past cannabis laws to enter joint - venture agreements with licensed cannabis facilities; 
would exempt sales of cannabis from excise taxes for businesses operating under joint - venture 
agreements.

Asm. Judiciary 4/10 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11982/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12046/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12050/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12054/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12171/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12173/Overview


AB208
Restricts the use of certain products by 
governmental entities and government-
funded entities. (BDR 19-737)

Yeager

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Yeager - R1 - specifies the government entities 
subject to the provisions of this bill to those that administer mental health, facilities providing mental 
health services, or community correctional centers, conservation camps, facilities of minimum 
security or other place of confinement; Allows individuals to access federally reviewed products from 
licensed locations outside the statute's scope, if Medicaid or other federally funded payments no 
longer apply; States the bill does not apply if the individual receiving the product gives informed 
consent for its use. Would prohibit government funded entities from using patented products in any 
way other than it's intended use. 

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
3/31 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB218

Requests that the Nevada Supreme Court 
study and adopt rules governing 
procedures for notifying defendants and 
persons who are issued a civil infraction 
citation of certain information. (BDR S-535)

González

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Gonzalez - R1 - Gut and replace from the Sponsor; 
requesting the Nevada Supreme Court to study court notification processes for defendants and civil 
infraction respondents; research best practices and technological needs, involving community and 
justice partners; and develop rules or administrative measures to improve trial court notifications 
and reduce failures to appear or pay court - imposed fines and fees. This requires courts to include a 
system for notifying individuals via text message communication.

Asm. Judiciary 3/24 - 
Amend & Do Pass

AB223
Revises provisions relating to the 
habitability of rental property. (BDR 10-
684)

Considine, 
Anderson, Karris, 

Mosca, Roth & 
Watts

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Considine - ENROLLED - amends landlord - tenant 
laws to enhance tenant protections and clarify landlord responsibilities. Defines “loss of value” and 
expands what constitutes an uninhabitable dwelling, including lack of safe doors/windows, pest 
control, hazardous substances, and working locks or safety equipment, requires landlords to include 
email contact in rental agreements and provide written rent receipts. Tenants gain expanded rights to 
terminate leases without penalty if the landlord fails to maintain habitability or supply essential 
services, and may file expedited court complaints with rent withheld placed in escrow. The bill also 
increases penalties for unlawful evictions or service interruptions, allows higher tenant damage 
recovery, and mandates clearer landlord disclosures. 

Governor
Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 5/16 - Do 

Pass

AB238
Enacts the Nevada Studio Infrastructure 
Jobs and Workforce Training Act. (BDR S-
63)

Jauregui & Monroe-
Moreno

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Jauregui - Film Tax Bill; enacts the Nevada Studio 
Infrastructure Jobs and Workforce Training Act to authorize film infrastructure transferable tax 
credits for qualified productions produced at the site of the Summerlin Production Studios Project. 
Limits the total amount of film infrastructure transferable�tax credits issued pursuant to 
$80,000,000 for each fiscal year. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/24 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB242
Revises provisions relating to the 
Sagebrush Ecosystem Council. (BDR 18-
214)

DeLong, Gurr & 
Koenig

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember DeLong - R1 -  requires the Council to take certain 
steps related to a debit and/or credit project. Additionally, the amendment changes the effective date 
of the bill to July 31, 2027.Would require the Sagebrush Ecosystem Council, which is already 
established within DCNR, to create a program to mitigate damage to sagebrush ecosystems. This 
program will award credits to individuals or entities that protect, enhance, or restore these 
ecosystems. The bill requires the Council to establish the program through regulation and specifies 
that the Council must develop a habitat quantification tool and define the methods or formulas for 
calculating debits and credits using the tool. 

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
4/9 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB243
Establishes certain partial tax exemptions 
for certain Nevada Gold Star Spouses. 
(BDR 32-163)

Hibbetts & D'Silva Neutral

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Hibbetts - expands the existing partial property tax 
and Governmental Services Tax exemptions for certain veterans with permanent service - connected 
disabilities to include the surviving spouse of a U.S. Armed Forces member killed in the line of duty. 
Passed committee without amendments. 

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 5/31 - Do 

Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12203/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12220/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12225/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12258/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12272/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12273/Overview


AB247 Revises provisions relating to persons with 
disabilities. (BDR 19-574) Brown-May

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Neutral

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Brown - May - R1 - Amended to include electronic 
and in - person interpreters with a definition change to align with ADA. Would expand existing law by 
requiring public bodies to make reasonable efforts to accommodate individuals with physical 
disabilities, including providing registered sign language interpreters and Communication Access 
Realtime Translation (CART) at public meetings. 

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
4/3 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB261 Revises provisions relating to voter 
registration. (BDR 24-360)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections - The bill 
modifies the process for automatic voter registration. Previously, county clerks were responsible for 
mailing notices after a person's registration was updated. The bill requires the Secretary of State to 
send these notices instead, including information about political party affiliation, qualifications to 
vote, and the option to decline registration. 

Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 3/20 - Do Pass

AB274
Requires the waiver of certain fees for 
certain businesses related to veterans. 
(BDR 7-728)

O’Neill, Gray, Gurr, 
D'Silva, 

Edgeworth, Cole, 
Dickman, Hardy, 

Hibbetts, Kasama, 
Koenig & Yurek

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember O'Neill - R1 - amendment specifying the fee will 
not be waived if the applicant has received a waiver for another qualifying business. The amendment 
also provides the renewal fee for such applicants will be waived for three years following the license 
issuance and redefines certain terms. Would require the Secretary of State to waive the $500 or $200 
fee for issuing a state business license if the applicant meets one of the following: (1) an eligible 
veteran, (2) a gold star family member, or (3) at least 51% of the business is owned by one or more 
eligible veterans or gold star family members. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/26 - Heard

AB287 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-202)

González & 
Monroe-Moreno

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Gonzalez - R1 - allows a defeated candidate to 
demand a recount if the vote difference is 5% or less and requires a recount at no cost if the difference 
is 0.25% or less. It also modifies the process for recounts of ballot questions, allowing them only if the 
result difference is 5% or less, or 0.25% or less for a mandatory recount. The bill also outlines 
procedures for reimbursing counties for recount costs and establishes a Voter Access Grant Program 
to improve election administration and voter access. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/20 - Heard

AB307
Revises provisions governing the taxation 
of sales of cannabis and cannabis products. 
(BDR 32-149)

Gallant, Cole & 
González Neutral No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Gallant - This bill eliminates the wholesale excise 

taxes on cannabis products. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/21 - Mtnd. Not 

Agd.

AB337 Creates programs related to dementia. 
(BDR 38-456)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Health & Human Services - Requires DHHS to create a 
Dementia Care Specialist Program, which would include crisis intervention services, proactive 
support to persons with dementia and their families to help individuals remain in their homes, 
through education, development of dementia - care communities across the state, training, raising 
awareness; Specification to support LEP population; Establishes Nevada Memory Network together 
with UNLV and UNR for the diagnosis and treatment of dementia..

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 4/7 
- Amend & Do Pass

AB338 Revises provisions relating to health care 
for senior citizens. (BDR 38-457)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Legislative Committee on Senior Citizens, Veterans and Adults with 
Special Needs - Would require the Department of Health and Human Services to apply for an 
amendment to its Medicaid waiver to allow the state to receive federal funds to help cover the costs of 
attendant care services for frail elderly persons. Would mandate Aging and Disability Services 
Division, in collaboration with the Division of Public and Behavioral Health, to create a website to help 
connect individuals in need of personal care services with licensed agencies that provide home 
services. 

Sen. Finance & Asm. 
Ways & Means, Sub. 
General Gov't 4/30 - 

Mtnd. No Juris.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12277/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12298/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12324/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12342/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12387/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12429/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12430/Overview


AB339

Creates the Office of Children's Mental and 
Behavioral Health within the Office of the 
Director of the Department of Health and 
Human Services. (BDR 39-358)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Interim Committee on HHS - Creates the Office of Children's 
Mental and Behavioral Health within the Office of the Director of DHHS; The Office shall develop and 
publish a statewide plan, provide expertise and act as centralized resource, disseminate information, 
review Mental Health Consortium - produced materials, track/review/analyze all activities related to 
children's mental health in the state; study and make recommendations, develop partnerships; 
Requires Commission on Behavioral Health and regional policy boards to coordinate with the Office; 
Requires local governments to provide assistance to the Office as needed..

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 4/7 
- Amend & Do Pass

AB363 Revises provisions relating to groundwater 
boards. (BDR 48-385)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Natural Resources - R1 - updates the process for 
creating and managing groundwater boards in designated basins. It allows county commissioners to 
jointly request a board, requires the State Engineer to appoint seven members, and lets counties 
appoint a nonvoting member. The board will automatically dissolve after 4 years unless extended, 
and can also be dissolved by a majority vote. The State Engineer must consider the board’s advice on 
overpumping. Board members now serve without compensation, removing previous state - funded 
expenses. 

Asm. Natural 
Resources 4/9 - 

Amend & Do Pass

AB395
Revises provisions relating to services to 
persons who are deaf or hard of hearing. 
(BDR 40-841)

Roth & Brown-May
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Roth - Would require healthcare facilities and 
providers to notify patients who are deaf or hard of hearing that qualified sign language interpreters 
are available, with the option to request either in - person or remote interpreters; would require that 
In - person interpreters be provided if requested or if remote interpreters are deemed inappropriate, 
unless the patient consents to remote services. Tasks DHHS to maintain an online list of assisted 
living and senior living communities catering to the needs of people who are deaf or hard of hearing. 
Amended to require 48hr interpreter requests for scheduled appts.; only applies in counties >25K 
pop; when scheduling, notify patient of option to have interpreter; exclude emergency personnel; 
remove criminal penalties; revise definition of qualified interpreter; require DPBH to post list of 
qualified interpreters in the state.

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

4/11 - Amend & Do 
Pass

AB402

Creates a pilot program authorizing the 
installation and use of automated traffic 
enforcement systems in temporary traffic 
control zones. (BDR 43-184)

Torres-Fossett

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Torres - Fossett - R1 - establishes a pilot program 
allowing automated traffic enforcement systems to be used in temporary traffic control zones under 
specific conditions. It requires peace officer review of violations, limits penalties to civil infractions 
(not moving violations), caps fines at $200, and prohibits performance - based contracts. The 
program includes privacy and data handling rules, public education requirements, and reporting 
obligations. It expires June 30, 2027.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/27 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB413
Provides for the creation of the Southern 
Nevada Health Care Workforce 
Apprenticeship Pilot Program. (BDR S-317)

Nguyen

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Nguyen - R1 - establishes the Southern Nevada 
Health Care Workforce Apprenticeship Pilot Program to address shortages of medical assistants and 
pharmaceutical technicians. It directs Workforce Connections to create and administer registered 
apprenticeship programs and provide financial support for up to 100 participants. An appropriation 
is made to fund the program. 

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 3/24 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB419 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 48-736)

DeLong, Cole, Gurr, 
Dickman & O’Neill

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Delong - R1 - requires the State Engineer to submit 
a biennial report on water appropriation applications pending for over two years. It also mandates 
regulations for hearings, expert testimony, and a pre - application process for underground water and 
well applications, allowing applicants to address potential issues. Additionally, the bill makes the 
State Engineer subject to the Nevada Administrative Procedure Act for regulation adoption and 
contested case processes. 

Asm. Natural 
Resources 4/11 - 

W/O Rec. & Rerefer

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12431/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12473/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12560/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12568/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12591/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12606/Overview


AB423 Revises provisions relating to business. 
(BDR 53-852)

Cole, Kasama, 
DeLong, Gurr, 

Hafen, Hansen & 
Hibbetts

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Cole - R1 - removes provisions exempting certain 
services from “employment” and eliminates the section creating a new opt - out process. Instead, it 
allows small, owner - run businesses to make reimbursements instead of unemployment 
contributions under existing law, with related updates to financial provisions. It also requires land 
use authorities to review wireless facility modifications in line with federal law, effective January 1, 
2026. Would allow sole business owners to opt out of unemployment contributions and benefits, 
exempts certain individuals from initial and first renewal state business license fees, and sets 
guidelines for land use authorities reviewing personal wireless service facility modification 
applications. 

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 4/11 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB432
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 19-
551)

Yurek

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Yurek - R1 - establishes the Security Operations 
Center within the Office of the Chief Information Officer to enhance cybersecurity services for state 
and local agencies. It mandates the Center to provide real - time monitoring, threat mitigation, 
incident response, and enforcement. The bill also outlines policies for cybersecurity, creating a fund 
for its operations, and establishing a Cybersecurity Talent Pipeline Program in collaboration with the 
Nevada System of Higher Education. Additionally, it sets requirements for reporting, oversight, and 
regulations for agencies using the Office's services, ensuring compliance with cybersecurity 
standards. It also includes provisions on confidentiality, coordination with tribes, and the 
management of information systems for using agencies. 

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
5/26 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

AB453 Revises provisions relating to taxation. 
(BDR 32-895)

Anderson & 
Considine

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Assemblymember Anderson - R1 - establishes tax requirements for 
specified digital products in Nevada, including determining the place of sale and applying the sales 
and use tax based on the location. It requires retailers with substantial revenue or transactions in the 
state to collect and remit the tax. Facilitators of retail sales and certain advertisers must also comply 
with tax collection if they meet specific thresholds. Additionally, the bill includes provisions related to 
the state’s Rainy Day Fund, prohibiting transferable tax credits during fiscal emergencies or if the 
fund is used. It also mandates a review of transferable tax credits if the state's projected revenue 
decreases by more than 7%. The bill's provisions are effective starting January 1, 2026. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
& Sen. Finance, 

Subcommittees on K-
12/Higher 

Education/CIP 5/7 - 
Mtnd.

AB481 Establishes the Sustainable Aviation Fuel 
Incentive Program. (BDR 44-1095)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Ways and Means - R1 - amendment removes the 
reference in the bill that would have allowed for the $1.75 per gallon incentive to apply to out - of - 
state refiners (subsection 2[a] of Section 3). Thereby, the incentive will only apply to sustainable 
aviation fuel produced in Nevada. This creates the "sustainable aviation fuel account" and incentivizes 
the use and manufacturing of this fuel in NV. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/31 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB482 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 38-809)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on HHS - Requires Medicaid to cover clinical services 
relating to the drugs, devices and services related to contraception; requires the State Plan for 
Medicaid to cover the nonfederal share of costs for language translation services paid to facilitate 
provision of services related to contraception.

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 
4/11 - Do Pass

AB516

Revises provisions relating to Medicaid 
coverage for certain health services 
provided to children at schools. (BDR 38-
348)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Committee on Health and Human Services - Would require 
DHHS to ensure that local and state educational agencies can receive Medicaid reimbursement for 
health services provided on school premises to eligible children; also creates the School Health Access 
Resource Center to assist providers and entities in participating in and billing Medicaid for school - 
based health services; contains an appropriation for the Center's operations and requires the Director 
to seek federal approval for increases in Medicaid reimbursement rates. Amended to replace "school 
districts and charter schools" with "local educations agency" throughout. 

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

4/11 - Amend & Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12610/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12631/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12685/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12741/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12742/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12807/Overview


AB528

Revises provisions relating to property tax 
abatements for certain buildings and 
structures which meet certain energy 
efficiency standards. (BDR 58-425)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Joint Committee on Growth and Infrastructure - Would modify the 
existing law on partial property tax abatements for buildings and structures meeting energy efficiency 
standards under the Green Building Rating System; allows the Director of the Office of Energy to 
approve abatement applications; establishes a procedure for transferring abatement credits between 
buildings and requires annual reporting on energy and water consumption of properties receiving 
abatements. 

Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 4/11 - Do Pass

AB580

Makes an appropriation to the Department 
of Indigent Defense Services for certain 
costs related to the provision of indigent 
defense services. (BDR S-1222)

Cmtee on Ways & 
Means

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Governors Office of Finance - appropriates $3,000,000 from the State 
General Fund to the Department of Indigent Defense Services to cover stipends for public defenders 
and related costs required to comply with the Davis v. State consent judgment. Unspent funds must be 
reverted to the State General Fund by September 17, 2027. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/19 - Heard

AB584 Revises provisions relating to education. 
(BDR 34-1035)

Cmtee on 
Education

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Governor's Education Bill - authorizes the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction to streamline data reporting and oversee school and district performance through new 
accountability systems. It provides for interventions in underperforming schools and districts, 
including state oversight, leadership changes, and school conversions (e.g., to charter or innovation 
schools). The bill introduces open enrollment, parent - selected intervention programs, and expanded 
school choice for students in chronically low - performing schools. It also creates new funding 
accounts, updates curriculum standards, mandates phonics - based literacy instruction, requires new 
literacy training for educators, and enhances performance - based pay incentives for highly effective 
teachers and administrators.

Asm. Education 6/2 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

SB47 Provides for a study of certain issues 
relating to insurance. (BDR 57-405)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Washoe Behavioral Health Policy Board - Requires Commissioner to 
apply for funds to support study on extent to which public and private insurers in Nevada achieve 
behavioral health insurance coverage parity as required by federal law. Amended - Clarifies the study 
must assess the adequacy of Nevada’s behavioral health care workforce; Requires analysis of actual 
and potential outcomes from an inadequate workforce; Includes self - funded multiple employer 
welfare arrangements regulated by the Insurance Commissioner and subject to federal mental health 
parity. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 4/2 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB74 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-482)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Secretary of State - Requires the SOS to allow any registered voter to 
an approved electronic transmission system to apply for and cast a ballot, provides the template for a 
declaration of candidacy for independent candidates for partisan offices. Directs a county clerk to 
forgo distribution to an individual who has elected not to receive a mail ballot. Amended - allows 
electronic ballot access under specific conditions, permits mail ballots to be sent even to those who 
opted out, and sets rules for ballot counting timing and vote validity based on voter intent. It 
mandates cyber incident reporting to key officials, repeals the restriction on registering in multiple 
counties, and includes various updates to Nevada election laws—such as clarifying ID requirements, 
voting violations across states, post - count equipment testing, electioneering limits, and 
reimbursement for election - related training expenses.

General File
Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB78
Revises provisions relating to boards, 
commissions, councils and similar bodies. 
(BDR 18-301)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev.

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Department of Business and Industry - Significant changes to various 
boards, commissions, councils, and similar bodies; Amended - Removes new advisory bodies, 
scheduled reviews and automatic termination, and the Commission on Postsecondary Education.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Joint Meeting of the 
Sen. Finance & Asm. 
Ways & Means 5/5 - 

Mtnd. Not Agd.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12819/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12913/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12918/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11824/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11881/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11891/Overview


SB91
Establishes provisions relating to the use of 
diacritical marks in certain governmental 
records. (BDR 40-43)

Sen. Doñate; Asm. 
González

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Neutral

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Growth & Infrastructure - Requires governments 
records including vital statistics, county health officers, DMV, etc. to include diacritical marks used in 
persons names. Amended - enabling language contingent upon Federal authorization.

Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 5/16 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB118
Revises requirements relating to coverage 
under Medicaid for certain services 
provided by pharmacists. (BDR 38-218)

Stone
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - HHS - Expands Medicaid coverage to include services provided by a 
pharmacist if those services are also covered when performed by another health care provider and 
ensure pharmacists are reimbursed at the same rate as other providers for performing similar 
services; eliminates need for prior authorization when a pharmacist provides a service that is already 
covered if performed by another provider.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 
4/11 - Do Pass

SB128 Makes changes related to health care. 
(BDR 57-87) Neal

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Referred to Commerce and Labor - Makes changes to prior 
authorization processes; prohibits certain insurers including Medicaid and CHIP from using AI or 
similar tool to deny requests for prior auth, modify requests, reduce scope of service or coverage 
amounts, or terminate/reduce coverage for pre - approved care; prohibits certain insurers from 
denying coverage on certain grounds without a provider making the determination; also applies to 
local governments that provide health insurance through a plan of self - insurance. Amended - 
requires hospitals to offer massage therapy for swelling after surgery, bans health insurers from using 
AI for decision making, requires insurers to approve provider - recommended care unless specifically 
exempted.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 5/16 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB134
Makes an appropriation to the Department 
of Health and Human Services for a medical 
debt relief grant program. (BDR S-74)

Cannizzaro
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Finance - $5M appropriation to DHHS to allocate to a 
not - for - profit that will manage a grant program that would allow local governments to apply 
purchase bundles of medical debt on secondary markets or directly from health care providers with 
the goal of abolishing medical debt for a group or groups of patients. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

SB182 Revises provisions relating to the staffing of 
health care facilities. (BDR 40-33) Nguyen

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Nguyen - Committee on Health & Human Services - Nurse staffing 
ratio bill; requires the development of staffing committees for technical and service staff; outlines 
staffing ration requirements for hospitals in counties with 100,000 or more population and 70 beds 
or more. Unfunded mandate.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11968/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12031/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12063/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12079/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12200/Overview


SB192 Revises provisions relating to public health. 
(BDR 40-86) Neal

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Health & Human Services - Requires hospitals and 
freestanding birthing centers to provide qualified sign - language interpreter services; allow family 
members to accompanying birthing person; Requires various public and private insurers who cover 
maternity care to cover doula services and include in provider network; Requires insurance for state 
and local government employees to cover testosterone replacement therapy for menopausal women; 
Requires Medicaid, where benefits not provided through Managed Care, to cover hormone therapy 
including testosterone replacement therapy for menopausal women; Expands dental coverage; 
Requires school district Boards of Trustees to adopt a policy to prevent cardiac arrest during youth 
sports participation; Requires agencies providing child welfare services to provide for an independent 
psychiatric evaluation of a child not more than 6 months before permanent placement for children 
placed anywhere other than with a parent; Prohibits health carrier or health insurance administrator 
from providing services directly to patients or administering an entity that directly provides services 
to patients; Prohibits hospitals from entering into non - competes with providers of healthcare; 
Requires Board of Medical Examiners, State Board of Nursing, and Board of Osteopathic Medicine to 
prescribe lists of race - based health formulas or standards that are authorized for use; prohibit 
boards from using race - based standards if there are scientifically validated race - neutral formulas 
and standards that are at least as effective; Requires study of disparities in health care access, 
provision of care, and outcomes; Requires discussion of stem cell therapy by a provider to a patient 
when patient is diagnosed with a condition commonly treated with stem cell therapy; Clarifies 
existing law on prescribing and dispensing of controlled substances for pain and establishes standard 
of care or disciplinary grounds when controlled substances prescribed or dispensed in circumstances 
other than for pain. Amended to remove noncompete agreements; exempt certain plans from 
requirement to cover doula services; add reporting requirements to sections related to testosterone 
coverage for menopausal women.

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

5/28 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB199 Enacts provisions relating to artificial 
intelligence systems. (BDR 52-583) Neal

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Neal - R1 - requires AI companies to register with the Bureau 
of Consumer Protection and comply with oversight provisions, mandates attorney review of AI - 
generated legal documents, user consent for AI training via social media searches, and restrictions on 
using AI - generated images in services meant to be performed by humans. Also introduces policies 
for AI use in law enforcement, education, insurance, and financial services, and tasks state agencies 
with monitoring job losses due to AI. Prohibits landlords from using AI - driven rent 
recommendations based on private data and requires insurers to obtain customer consent before 
using health data to train AI systems. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Commerce & 
Labor 4/10 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB220
Enacts the Nevada Film Infrastructure, 
Workforce Development, Education and 
Economic Diversification Act. (BDR S-18)

Lange

No further action taken. 6.3.25 -Senator Lang - Nevada Film Infrastructure, Workforce Development, 
Education, and Economic Diversification Act. Intended to enhance Nevada's film industry by offering 
tax incentives and workforce development opportunities. Contains transferable tax credits for 
production companies that engage in qualified film projects at the Nevada Studios Project, located at 
the Harry Reid Research and Technology Park in Clark County. Companies can earn 35% of 
expenditures paid to Nevada residents and 30% for other qualified expenses. Credits may be reduced 
if the number of Nevada residents employed in below - the - line roles falls below certain thresholds 
or if the production incurs damages to the state. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 4/10 - 

W/O Rec.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12236/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12246/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12295/Overview


SB234 Makes revisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 38-40)

Sen. Doñate, 
Flores, 

Ohrenschall & 
Taylor; Asm. 
Moore, Roth, 

Torres-Fossett, 
González, 

Anderson, D'Silva 
& Nguyen

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on HHS - Requires Medicaid to provide coverage for 
emergency medical care for persons who would otherwise be ineligible for Medicaid solely because of 
immigration status; services to be covered include emergency medical transportation, care in 
emergency room or similar setting to treat an emergency condition, inpatient services immediately 
followed admission from the emergency room or similar setting, skilled nursing, dialysis, surgery, 
chemotherapy and radiation, kidney transplants, follow - up services; lists what is NOT covered, 
including elective surgery, prescription drugs, preventive care, rehabilitation, personal care, 
PT/OT/ST, case management, prosthetics, dental, hospice, SUD treatment, routine prenatal.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

4/10 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB240 Revises provisions relating to state 
business licenses. (BDR 7-126)

Pazina, Lange, 
Steinbeck, 

Dondero Loop, 
Flores, Ellison, 

Hansen & Krasner

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Pazina - reduces the fee for the issuance of an initial state 
business license to $100 for certain businesses which employ not more than 50 full - time or part - 
time employees. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/30 - Heard

SB247

Provides for health notes to be requested 
and prepared for certain legislative 
measures by the Research Division of the 
Legislative Counsel Bureau. (BDR 17-512)

Cmtee on Leg. Op's 
& Elec.

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Commerce & Labor Committee - Allows legislators to request a health 
note, defined as a nonpartisan policy brief prepared by the Research Division that analyzes how a bill 
or joint resolution may impact the social determinants of health, for a bill once pre - filed or 
introduced; Requires all agencies, boards, commissions, departments, officers, employees, and agents 
of the State or a political subdivision of this State to provide LCB assistance in developing health 
notes.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

SB250 Revises provisions relating to health care 
records. (BDR 40-70)

Lange, Cruz-
Crawford & 
Ohrenschall

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on HHS - Revises provisions relating to health care 
records. Requires DHHS to establish a statewide Electronic Health Repository; requires providers to 
provide patients access to electronic health records free of charge; requires providers to allows 
patient to forward record without fee or charge.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

4/10 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB254
Establishes requirements relating to 
suspected substance use by a pupil. 
(BDR 34-592)

Cmtee on 
Education

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Education - Would require the Nevada Department of 
Education to create an evidence - based policy for notifying parents when a student shows signs of 
substance use. It mandates a meeting with the student, completion of a mental health and substance 
use screening, and reporting by staff. Reports must be destroyed under certain conditions. Schools 
must share the policy with students annually, and NDE must collect anonymized data on its 
effectiveness. Amended - Replaces the original bill with a requirement for the Nevada Department of 
Education to develop and share a model policy for optional, universal behavioral, social, and 
emotional well - being screenings for K–12 students. The policy must include evidence - based 
practices, valid screening tools, staff support resources, and methods for monitoring effectiveness, all 
based on a multi - tiered system of support framework. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Education 4/11 
- Amend & Do Pass

SB281
Revises provisions relating to certain foster 
care and behavioral health programs. 
(BDR S-144)

Nguyen

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Nguyen - Would amend existing law regarding the Extended 
Young Adult Support Services Program, which provides support to certain young adults transitioning 
to self - sufficiency. Would allow the agency providing child welfare services to make revisions to the 
support plan, such as altering the persons or entities receiving payments, with the consent of the 
young adult participant, rather than just consultation with them. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB283

Makes appropriations to Clark County and 
the Cities of Reno and Sparks for programs 
for rental assistance to certain persons. 
(BDR S-1109)

Cannizzaro, 
Scheible, Pazina, 
Flores, Dondero 

Loop, Cruz-

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Cannizzaro - This bill addresses rental assistance, currently 
the bill appropriates money to Clark County and City of Reno/Sparks. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12347/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12361/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12376/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12384/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12396/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12482/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12485/Overview


SB286

Establishes provisions relating to tribal 
communication, cooperation and 
consultation when engaged in certain 
planning processes. (BDR 26-392)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Natural Resources - establishes, in recognition of the 
importance of tribal knowledge and expertise, provisions for local governments and state agencies to 
communicate, coordinate, and cooperate with tribal governments regarding any project or activity 
proposed to be conducted on state or public lands. The bill further renames the title of the State and 
Local Government Cooperation Act to the State, Local and Tribal Government Cooperation Act. Passed 
committee without amendments. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Natural 
Resources 4/1 - Do 

Pass

SB306 Revises provisions relating to mental health 
services for children. (BDR 39-796)

Sen. Cruz-
Crawford; Asm. 

Mosca

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Cruz - Crawford - updates existing law to expand access and 
improve procedures for treating children with emotional disturbances. It allows any such child to be 
admitted to a treatment facility, not just those committed by court or parental application. Facilities 
receiving Medicaid must accept these children unless they lack capacity, in which case they must help 
find and admit the child to an alternative facility. These facilities must also create service plans and, 
upon discharge, prepare and share a discharge plan with the child’s parent or guardian for approval. 

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB316 Revises provisions relating to insurance. 
(BDR 57-777)

Nguyen, Stone, 
Titus, Buck, Cruz-

Crawford, Daly, 
Krasner, 

Ohrenschall & 
Scheible

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Commerce and Labor - Revises provisions relating to 
insurance; Requires additional reporting by pharmacy benefit managers (PBMs) and insurers; 
mandates PBMs to disclose financial transactions, such as rebates and fees, and prohibits practices 
that favor affiliated pharmacies or restrict patient choice; requires that rebates received by PBMs are 
passed to insurers; enforces penalties for non - compliance and classifies certain violations as 
deceptive trade practices.

General File
Asm. Commerce & 

Labor 5/31 - Do 
Pass

SB323 Revises provisions relating to offenders. 
(BDR 16-709)

Scheible, Cruz-
Crawford, Doñate, 
Nguyen & Taylor

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Scheible - makes permanent a program providing free phone 
calls between female inmates at Florence McClure Women’s Correctional Center and their families. It 
also limits charges for other inmate calls to actual costs and requires communication service 
contracts to follow federal refund regulations effective as of January 1, 2025.

Asm. Ways & Means 
5/31 - Heard

SB337 Revises provisions relating to opioids. 
(BDR 40-204) Lange

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Lange - this bill provides for numerous reforms to pain 
management, including requiring doctors and health care facilities to provide non - opioid pain 
management solutions. The bill would require the State Board of Health to create regulations around 
non - opioid pain management. Further, the bill makes changes to the Fund for a Resilient NV and 
requires the fund to allocate at least 20% of the distribution awards to the prevention of substance 
use disorders. Amended to revise implementation date, removes immunity language in Section 20, 
removes Section 36, removes Medicaid from certain provisions, and the effective date for hospitals to 
institute new law would be six months after the State promulgates the required regulations.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Finance 5/15 - 
Heard

SB364 Revises provisions relating to economic 
development. (BDR 32-799) Cruz-Crawford Oppose No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Cruz - Crawford - This bill addresses "in land ports" and 

would provide tax abatements on rail projects.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 4/10 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB388
Revises provisions relating to the Program 
for Child Care and Development. (BDR 38-
76)

Cannizzaro

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Cannizzaro - amends Nevada’s Child Care and Development 
Program to require that families in the four lowest income brackets pay no cost - sharing for child 
care assistance. For families above those brackets, the cost - sharing cannot exceed 5% of their gross 
income, in line with federal guidelines for the Child Care and Development Block Grant. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12490/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12528/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12545/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12552/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12584/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12658/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12687/Overview


SB390 Revises provisions relating to the support 
of children. (BDR 38-85) Neal

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Oppose

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Neal - modifies existing laws regarding the suspension of 
driver's and recreational licenses due to child support arrears. Currently, states must establish 
procedures to withhold or suspend licenses for individuals who fail to comply with subpoenas related 
to paternity or child support; with this bill district attorneys or public agencies is authorized (rather 
than required) to report non - compliance to the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV), but cannot 
report if it would harm the person's employment. A person is only considered in arrears if they are at 
least six months delinquent in support payments or fail to provide required medical insurance. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

4/10 - Amend & Do 
Pass

SB391 Revises provisions relating to real property. 
(BDR 10-84) Neal

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Neal - This bill is similar to SB 395 from last session. This 
attempts to limit corporate landlords, by setting a limit of 100 units by a single corporation. This bill 
has impacts on County offices, regarding deed restrictions and enforcement of these prohibitions. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Finance 5/22 - 
Amend & Do Pass

SB393 Revises the Windsor Park Environmental 
Justice Act. (BDR S-701) Neal

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Neal - expands the eligibility for the Windsor Park property 
exchange program, allowing owners of vacant lots to participate under certain conditions. It clarifies 
property ownership rules through affidavits for inherited property and provides a property tax 
exemption for single - family residences acquired through the exchange program until 2057, based on 
the difference in assessed values between the old and new residences. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB402
Provides for the creation of restoration 
improvement districts for building 
restoration projects. (BDR 22-332)

Sen. Flores; Asm. 
Watts & DeLong Support

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Senator Flores - This bill creates a mechanism for city/county/local 
government to abate or redirect local taxes on restoratvie properties. The bill would require the 
property not to be subject to existing abatements and to be greater than 50 years old.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
4/11 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB420 Authorizes the creation of business 
improvement districts. (BDR 22-372)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Natural Resources - This is the bill that authorizes and 
makes provisions related to historic properties. 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
4/11 - Amend & Do 

Pass

SB423 Revises provisions governing public health. 
(BDR 40-349)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

No further action taken 6-3-25 - Interim HHS Bill - Establishes Account for Public Health; Funds it 
with first $30M Insurance Premium Tax per biennium; Includes base funding for state, tribal, and 
local public health + per capita; adds political appointees to local BOHs; requires funding to be 
utilized for data interoperability framework; establish allowable uses of funding. Amended to 
$4.925M per biennium for statewide base funding, $225K/per county per biennium, allocation for 
tribal and state PH; additions to local BOH removed; data - interoperability requirement removed.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Finance 5/21 - 
Heard

SB424 Revises provisions relating to emergency 
medical services. (BDR 38-561)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Approved by the Governor - Chapter 391. - Emergency Medical Transport Provider Tax – Requires 
Nevada Medicaid to impose an assessment on private emergency medical transport providers, with 
revenues deposited into a new Account to Improve Emergency Medical Transportation Quality and 
Access. Funds in the Account may be used for enhanced Medicaid reimbursement rates, infrastructure 
improvements, outreach initiatives, and related administrative costs. The Division must adopt 
regulations for enforcement, including penalties and collection processes for unpaid assessments, and 
notify health authorities of non - compliance. Health authorities may then take disciplinary action 
against non - compliant providers. The bill also authorizes health authorities to create training 
programs to help emergency responders identify and assist victims of human trafficking.

Governor
Asm. Health & 

Human Services 
5/28 - Do Pass

SB425 Makes revisions relating to health 
professions. (BDR 40-353)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

No further action taken 6-3-25 - Interim HHS bill - Creates the State Office of Health Care Workforce 
and Licensing; outlines duties of Office including implementation of the GME Grant Program to the 
Office, recommendations to legislature to optimize health care workforce and reduce barriers; Carry 
out various statutory provisions such as health care data collection, physician visa waiver program; 

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Sen. Finance 5/21 - 
Heard

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12691/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12692/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12695/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12719/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12765/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12769/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12770/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12772/Overview


SB431 Revises provisions relating to the excise tax 
on live entertainment. (BDR 32-692)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev.

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Committee on Revenue and Economic Development - imposes the 
Live Entertainment Tax on a resale (other than an occasional sale) of admission to a live 
entertainment event by a reseller and eliminates the exemption from this tax on admission to live 
entertainment for an athletic contest, event or exhibition conducted by and with participation of a 
professional sports team with a home in Nevada.

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

SB434
Creates a program to award grants to 
address shortages of providers of health 
care. (BDR 40-1107)

Cannizzaro

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

No further action taken 6-3-25 - Committee on Health & Human Services - Creates a program to 
award grants to address shortages of providers of health care; creates a new fund; funds it with .5 
percent of anticipated State Revenue with a limit of $60M in the account, and no new transfers until 
the fund falls under $30M; Requires biennial assessment of healthcare needs in the State. Amended to 
broaden the definition of "certified area of need" to include clinical services and expertise, in addition 
to providers of health care; prohibit transfers to the SHARP account if the balance of the Rainy Day 
Fund has a balance of less than $1 billion; allow DHHS to utilize 1 percent of funding for costs 
associated with administering the program; require DHHS to use existing assessments of health care 
workforce in Nevada for the first even - year report.

Asm. Ways & Means 
6/1 - Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12779/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12782/Overview


SB457 Revises provisions relating to public safety. 
(BDR 15-1038) Cmtee on Judiciary

No further action taken. 6.3.25 - GOVERNOR'S CRIME BILL - Nevada Safe Streets and Neighborhoods 
Act Summary Section Summaries of the Safe Streets and Neighborhoods Act: Section 1: Enhancement 
for New Felony Offense Committed During Felony Pretrial Release When people charged with a felony 
commit a new felony while out on bail or pretrial release, they demonstrate a disregard for the law 
and continuing threat to the community. The Governor’s bill holds felony defendants accountable for 
new felonies committed while awaiting trial by creating a sentencing enhancement that applies to the 
new felony. Section 2: Stalking and Cyberstalking Nevada’s stalking laws should be strengthened and 
updated to better address the dynamics of this crime, and how it occurs in the 21st century. The bill 
recognizes that stalkers often seek to terrorize the victims through their other members of their 
household or family and empowers prosecutors and law enforcement to hold them accountable. It 
also addresses stalking that occurs through social media and other electronic means. Section 3: 
Possession of Child Pornography Unit of Prosecution Under current law, pedophiles can possess 
numerous images of children being sexually abused but can only held accountable for a single count 
of possession of child pornography. Each of these images represents a separate trauma to these 
children. The bill holds these criminals appropriately accountable by enabling prosecutors to charge a 
separate felony for each child sexual abuse image. Section 4: Ensuring that Domestic Batterers and 
Felons Surrender Firearms; Section 30: Compliance Hearing for Orders to Surrender Firearms for 
EPOs; Section 51: Compliance Hearing Defendants Ordered to Surrender Firearms as Condition of 
Pretrial Release Nevada law requires courts to order convicted domestic batterers to surrender their 
firearms. Courts may also issue similar orders when a person is subject to an extended protection 
order, or as a condition of pretrial release. To ensure safety of the community, the bill requires that 
courts hold a compliance hearing within 2 to 5 days to make sure that these orders are followed. 
Section 6: Enhancement for 3rd time Theft Offenses Under current law, thieves can repeatedly steal 
up to $1200 and only be charged with a series of misdemeanors. This hurts Nevada businesses, and in 
turn, Nevada consumers. The bill allows prosecutors to file felony charges if a defendant has two or 
more prior theft convictions. Section 7: Increases Penalties for Burglary of Business, Structure or 
Motor Vehicle Burglaries can have a devastating impact on people and businesses, particularly for 
those who are struggling to make ends meet. Previously, Nevada punished types of burglary as a 
category B felony. In 2019, the crime of burglary was separated into 3 categories: vehicle burglary, 
burglary of a business, and burglary of a structure. The penalties were significantly reduced. The bill 
retains these three categories, but it increases the punishments. (Vehicle burglary category E?D; 
Str ct re D?C  B siness C ?B)  Section 10 thro gh 28  76  80 82  84  Red ction of felon  theft 

General File Asm. Judiciary 6/2 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

SB461 Revises provisions relating to economic 
development. (BDR 32-1070)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev. No further action taken. 6.3.25 - Governors Office - This is the Governor's Economic Development Bill.

Assistant 
Secretary's 

Desk

Asm. Revenue 5/22 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

SB495 Revises provisions relating to health care. 
(BDR 40-1037)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

No further action taken 6-3-25 - HHS - Office of the Governor - This is the Governor's healthcare bill. 
The bill establishes a competitive funding program to address healthcare provider shortages; creates 
the Nevada Health Care Workforce and Access Account in the General Fund; establishes requirements 
to expedite licensure; makes changes to settings where paramedics can deliver services under certain 
circumstances; transfers GME program to DHHS; makes changes to prior authorization and payment 
of health insurance claims; creates Office of Mental Health in the Department; prohibits certain non - 
competes for healthcare providers; requires reporting from certain state Boards related to medicine; 
establishes alternative pathway to licensure for dental hygienist; establishes provisions to incentivize 
psychology services in rural communities; Amended out $25M appropriation and GME provisions. 

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

(Floor) 5/30 - Do 
Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12857/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12864/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12939/Overview


AB37 Revises provisions related to housing. 
(BDR 25-257)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.4, no further action allowed. - Housing Division of the 
Department of Business and Industry - Revises housing provisions including removing requirement 
that a project be sponsored by local government, establishes additional housing tier, makes changes 
to affordability measure for no less that 15% of units from federal poverty level to 30% of the median 
monthly income in the county where housing is located, and changes reporting deadline for counties. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-23

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Do Pass

AB81
Exempts the State of Nevada from 
provisions of federal law relating to 
daylight saving time. (BDR 19-23)

Asm. La Rue Hatch, 
D'Silva, 

Edgeworth, 
Flanagan, Hunt & 

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember La Rue 
Hatch - R1 - Amended - changes the effective date from July 1, 2025, to January 1, 2026, in order to 
align with the time change cycle. Would exempt the State of Nevada from observing daylight saving 
time and instead remain on Pacific Standard Time all year. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
3/31 - Amend & Do 

Pass

AB291 Revises provisions relating to records of 
criminal history. (BDR 14-676)

Jackson, Moore, 
Roth, González & 

Dalia

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Jackson - R1 
- delete Section 1 of the bill pertaining to the sealing of certain records relating to arrests. Would 
make changes to the process of sealing criminal records. Would remove the requirement for 
individuals to file a petition to seal records if their charges are dismissed or they are acquitted and 
prohibits a court from considering sealed records when deciding whether to seal records related to a 
conviction of another offense. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Sen. Judiciary 4/29 - 
Heard

AB303 Revises provisions governing public works. 
(BDR 28-866)

Asm. Karris & 
Jackson; Sen. 

Hansen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Karris - R1 - 
limits Section 1 by requiring contractors or subcontractors involved in broadband, 
telecommunication, or fiber optic projects to submit certain records to both the public body 
overseeing the project and the Nevada State Infrastructure Bank. It also specifies that the 
requirements of Chapter 338 (Public Works) do not apply to contracts for privately owned 
broadband, telecommunication, or fiber optic services, except for the provisions in Section 1. Would 
expand existing public works to include projects related to the development or improvement of 
broadband, telecommunication, or fiber optic services that are funded with public money and 
overseen by a public body. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
5/16 - Not Heard

AB464 Revises provisions governing education. 
(BDR 34-235) Miller

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - (R1) - This bill creates 
standards around compelled teaching as outlined in the bill. This includes religious, social and other 
atrocities committed against groups. Regardless of personal beliefs. The bill mostly applies to 
education, including higher education and the Board of Regents. One provision of the bill compels the 
termination of an employee who fails to follow the mandates of the bill and if they fail to do so the 
local government employee, or member of elected body (BOCC) are guilty of a misdemeanor and 
levied a fine of $1k. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Sen. Education 5/14 
- Heard

AB529 Revises provisions governing facilities for 
the generation of electricity. (BDR 58-427)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Joint Interim Committee on 
Growth and Infrastructure - Would amends existing law related to the issuance of certificates of 
public convenience and necessity for electric service providers like cooperative associations, 
nonprofit corporations, nonprofit associations, and municipal utilities. It specifically targets 
wholesale solar energy generation facilities within the service territories of these entities. The bill 
mandates that these solar facilities must purchase the energy required to operate, maintain, or repair 
the facility from the respective service provider. Additionally, the bill requires these facilities to 
comply with the rules, rates, and policies set by the governing board of the service provider and to 
grant access for load measurement purposes.

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 4/11 - Amend 

& Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11816/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11902/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12351/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12381/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12709/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12820/Overview


AJR1
Proposes to amend the Nevada Constitution 
to revise certain provisions relating to 
property taxes. (BDR C-185)

Asm. Anderson & 
Considine; Sen. 

Neal

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.4, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Anderson - 
Amends the Nevada Constitution making changes to the assessment and taxation of property. For the 
first fiscal year after real property is sold or transferred, the real property is ineligible for any 
adjustment to the value of improvements on the real property which is based on the age of the 
improvement and certain partial abatements; and for any fiscal year thereafter, any adjustment to the 
value of improvements on the real property which is based on the age of the improvements must be 
determined as if the improvements were new improvements on the date of the sale or transfer. 
Amended - deletes the provision that would have established a program to provide payment of 
refunds to individuals 62 years old or older and persons with disabilities.

Failed 
Deadline 5-23

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/16 - W/O 

Rec.

AJR10
Urges the Federal Government to release 
federally managed land in Nevada for 
housing. (BDR R-1097)

Jauregui Support

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.4, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Jauregui - A 
resolution urging the President and Congress to prioritize the passage of the Southern Nevada 
Economic Development and Conservation Act, which would transfer certain federal lands to the state 
and local governments; allowing for allow for targeted land use to address housing needs while 
protecting public lands, conservation, and wildlife. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-23

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 5/15 - Amend 

& Do Pass

SB31
Revises provisions relating to the 
adjudication of vested water rights. 
(BDR 48-260)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Division of Water Resources 
(DCNR) - Exempts the Federal Government from having to submit proof of a water claim to the State 
Engineer by December 31, 2027. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Asm. Natural 
Resources 5/7 - 

Heard

SB324

Establishes prohibitions relating to the sale 
of water in certain disposable plastic 
bottles in communities abutting the Lake 
Tahoe Watershed. (BDR 40-216)

Scheible & Nguyen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Senator Scheible - prohibits a 
person from selling, offering for sale, or distributing for sale water in a disposable plastic bottle that 
has a capacity of 4 liters or less in any community bordering the Lake Tahoe Watershed. The bill 
requires the Attorney General to enforce this prohibition and authorizes the Attorney General to 
adopt such regulations as necessary to carry out such enforcement. Finally, the bill makes any 
violation of these provisions punishable as a misdemeanor. Amended - Directs the local health district 
or health department, instead of the Attorney General, to enforce the provisions of the bill and issue 
administrative fines for violations of the provisions, eliminating the previous penalty outlined in the 
bill.

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Asm. Natural 
Resources 5/7 - 

Heard

SB383 Revises provisions governing juvenile 
justice. (BDR 5-947) Ohrenschall

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.3, no further action allowed. - Senator Ohrenschall - expands 
the definition of community service to include activities that promote civic engagement, life skills, and 
job employability. It allows juveniles to perform community service under additional programs that 
build job skills. The bill also gives juvenile courts the discretion to suspend or delay a delinquent 
child's driver’s license and removes the requirement for fines in first - time adjudications, offering 
community service as an alternative. 

Failed 
Deadline 5-16

Sen. Judiciary 3/31 - 
Do Pass

AB318 Revises provisions relating to captive 
insurers. (BDR 57-884) Hardy

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.2, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hardy - 
Would allow captive insurers (form of self - insurance where the insurer is owned wholly by the 
insured) to directly provide workers' compensation insurance, which was previously not allowed. 
Allows the Commissioner of Insurance to allow or require captive insurers offering workers' 
compensation to contribute financially to an assigned risk pool or insurance insolvency guaranty 
fund. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-22

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 4/2 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AB362

Provides for taxes on the sale or transfer of 
a controlling interest in an entity which 
possesses an interest in real property. 
(BDR 32-687)

Considine

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.2, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Considine - 
Would create a tax on the sale or transfer of a controlling interest in entities that own real property in 
Nevada, if the value of the real property exceeds $100; extends real property transfer taxes to the sale 
or transfer of controlling interests in entities owning real property and includes provisions for filing, 
payment, exemptions, penalties, and use of the proceeds for invasive species control.

Failed 
Deadline 4-22

Asm. Revenue 4/10 - 
Amend & Do Pass

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12005/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12466/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11798/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12553/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12679/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12406/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12472/Overview


AB437
Provides for the establishment of the Fair 
Access to Insurance Requirements Plan. 
(BDR 57-103)

Dickman, Gray, 
Gurr, DeLong & 

Gallant

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.2, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Dickman - 
Would establish the Fair Access to Insurance Requirements (FAIR) Plan, to provide property and 
commercial property insurance coverage in cases where such coverage is unavailable from 
authorized insurers in the state due to perils like fire or other specified risks. Would create the Fair 
Access to Insurance Requirements Plan Association to administer the FAIR Plan, and would require 
all authorized insurers offering certain property insurance to be members of the Association. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-22

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 4/9 - Amend 

& Do Pass

AJR12
Declares support of the Legislature for 
certain principles of solar energy 
development in this State. (BDR R-388)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.2, no further action allowed. - Joint Committee on Natural 
Resources - Urges the Federal Government to support and recognize key principles for solar energy 
development on public lands in Nevada. The resolution highlights the growing importance of solar 
energy as part of the U.S. transition to clean energy and addresses the opportunity for solar energy 
growth, particularly in western states, as well as impacts to Nevada’s public lands. The resolution 
advocates for solar energy development to focus on previously disturbed lands and those identified 
through consultation with local and state authorities. The goal is to ensure that solar energy 
development in Nevada benefits the state’s economy and quality of life, while considering the impact 
on natural resources and local cultures. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-22

Asm. Natural 
Resources 3/12 - 

Disc. As BDR

AB27
Revises provisions relating to the Public 
Employees' Retirement System. (BDR 23-
436)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Support

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Boulder City - Adds an 
additional exception for retired members of PERS to be able to accept full - time employment or 
independent contract with a public employer in a county under 100K without the consequence of 
disqualification of receiving PERS benefits during employment. Member must not have worked or 
independently contracted with the employer previously, the employer may not employ more than 4 
retired members and the retired member may not re - enroll in PERS. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
2/19 - Heard

AB33 Creates the Nevada Office of the Inspector 
General. (BDR 18-435)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs Oppose

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - State Controller - Creates the 
Nevada Office of the Inspector General within the Office of the State Controller, as well as the 
appointed position of Inspector General for a term of 4 years. The Inspector General may audit, 
investigate and inspect local governments as a means of accountability and oversight. Requires 
cooperation and assistance by the local government with failure to do so resulting in a category E 
felony which can include up to a year in jail and a fine up to $5K. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
3/3 - Heard

AB51 Revises provisions relating to public 
records. (BDR 19-430)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Nevada League of Cities and 
Municipalities - Allows government entities to collect a fee for fulfilling a public record request if they 
have established a written policy with a method for calculating the fee and provided the requester a 
written notice of the fee before preparing the request. Also requires a public record request to be in 
writing and to contain identifying information of the requester. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. 2/6 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

AB61

Authorizes the Regional Transportation 
Commission of Washoe County or any local 
government within Washoe County to 
establish a demonstration project for a 

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - City of Sparks - Authorizes the 
Washoe County Regional Transportation Commission or any local government with the county to 
create a pilot project for a toll road between La Posada Drive and USA Parkway. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 2/25 - Heard

AB77
Revises provisions governing tax 
abatements for certain businesses. (BDR 32-
282)

Cmtee on Revenue
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - GOED - Allows GOED to 
approve partial abatements for businesses that offer import substitution jobs or is a specialty health 
care provider, or offers health care in a rural area. Eliminates GOEDs ability to deny an application 
based on the applicant expanding in a county where they have already received a partial abatement. 
Changes the number of anticipated employees from 50 to 500 for the requirement to have a paid 
family and medical leave. Also allows GOED to approve abatements for biomass and biofuel recycling 
to include materials from solar panels. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12643/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12630/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11793/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11809/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11843/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11861/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11897/Overview


AB78
Revises provisions relating to licenses for 
the distribution of alcoholic beverages. 
(BDR 32-283)

Cmtee on Revenue

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Department of Taxation - 
Makes changes to issuance of liquor license, appears to allow for the approval of liquor licensing at 
state through department of taxation. This bill would allow for the pre - emption of local authority 
over liquor licensing; we believe there are capacity issues due to the volume of liquor license that go 
before local governing boards. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB84 Revises provisions relating to county roads. 
(BDR 35-152) Koenig

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Koenig - 
This bill appears to modify the limitation on bids for county road construction and maintenance in 
counties less than 52,000, this does seem to provide flexibility to these smaller jurisdictions to 
provide for quicker, more efficient use of either county employees, or local workforce. The bill raises 
the threshold that is currently capped at $250,000 up to $547,570. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Growth & 
Infra. 2/25 - Heard

AB94 Revises provisions relating to public works. 
(BDR 28-193) O’Neill Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. -  Assemblymember O'Neill - 

Requires contractors and subcontractors on public works to register for and participate in E - Verify. 
Failed 

Deadline 4-11

AB109 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 48-212) La Rue Hatch

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. -  Assemblymember LaRue 
Hatch - Adds that non - consumptive use of water brought to the surface to develop and obtain 
geothermal resources is subject to the appropriation procedures of chapters 533 (adjudication of 
vested water rights) and 534 (underground water and wells). Specifies that underground water 
belongs to the public and therefore subject to appropriation for beneficial use only under state law. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB120
Provides for the review of certain 
regulations by the Legislature. (BDR 18-
882)

Kasama
Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. -  Assemblymember Kasama - 
Would require agencies to determine an estimated cost of a proposed regulation before conducting a 
workshop on the proposed regulation. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Revenue 2/27 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

AB122
Makes various changes relating to the 
confidentiality of certain information. 
(BDR 20-645)

Dickman
Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Dickman - 
Would allow any person employed by a law enforcement agency to request that their personal 
information be kept confidential by a county recorder, assessor, or clerk. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB124 Revises provisions relating to public office. 
(BDR 24-829) Dickman

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Dickman - 
Would require those in elected office to resign before filing nomination papers for any other elected 
office.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB134 Establishes provisions relating to water 
conservation. (BDR 48-379)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Joint Committee on Natural 
Resources - Would allow the holder of a perfected water right to submit a conservation plan to the 
State Engineer for approval. Specifies the a perfected water right has been finalized through the 
issuance of a certificate of appropriation; or a court decree. Adds to the policy of the State to promote 
and encourage conservation.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB146
Revises provisions relating to the 
fundamental rights of parents. (BDR 11-
150)

Gallant

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gallant - 
Makes additions to the fundamental rights of parents to include: nurture, education, and control to be 
recognized by both the State Constitution and the U.S. Constitution. Specifies that these fundamental 
rights must not be limited or abridged on account of disability.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB147 Requires proof of identity to vote. (BDR 24-
624) Hafen Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hafen - 

Would require proof of identity to vote.
Failed 

Deadline 4-11

AB152 Revises provisions relating to public 
records. (BDR 19-209) Gray Support

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gray - 
Exempts state and local government entities from providing a public record that may have been 
disposed according to a retention schedule approved by the governmental entity. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
3/18 - Heard

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11898/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11905/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11976/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12006/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12025/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12034/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12036/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12053/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12072/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12073/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12094/Overview


AB154 Creates the Nevada Office of the Inspector 
General. (BDR 18-334) Miller

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Miller - 
Would create the Nevada Office of the Inspector General as an independent agency. Inspector General 
would be appointed by the Governor for a term of 4 years, tasked with audit, investigation, inspection 
or review. Would require state agencies or local governments to cooperate with and provide 
assistance to the Inspector General with failure to do so resulting in a category E felony. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB175 Revises provisions relating to public safety. 
(BDR 43-162) Hibbetts

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hibbetts - 
Would increase the number of years from 7 to 10 for the time time period considered when an 
individual has been convicted of driving under the influence.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Judiciary 2/27 - 
Heard

AB178 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-210) Gray

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gray - 
Would require the SOS and each county clerk to establish procedures to inform registered voters of 
the requirements to vote by mail, would further require each county clerk to provide training to 
election board officers and employees of the elections division of the county on the requirements for 
processing and counting mail ballots. Would require county clerks to submit a report to the SOS on 
mail ballots. Reduces the number of days from 6 to 3 in which a clerk can accept identification of an 
individual with a mail ballot. Changes the time frame in which a mail ballot can be counted. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB180 Revises provisions relating to local 
governments. (BDR 20-649) D'Silva

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember D'Silva - 
Would require Clark and Washoe Boards of County Commissioners to establish a multijurisdictional 
business license to allow a licensed sidewalk vendor to engage in business in the county and each city. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
4/8 - Not. Cons.

AB200 Revises provisions relating to industrial 
insurance. (BDR 53-862) Karris

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Karris - 
Referred to Commerce and Labor - Makes changes to the method by which payment of compensation 
is calculated for construction workers who are injured, disabled, or who die as a result of an injury or 
occupational disease; instead of utilizing the Administrator of the Division of Industrial Relation's 
method for determining average monthly wage, the bill requires that in the case of an injured 
employee who is a construction worker, compensation be based on the greater of the employee's 
average monthly wage or average monthly prevailing wage; Also requires Admin to provide by 
regulation a method of determining prevailing wage based, if possible, on historical hours worked by 
construction worker in skilled, semiskilled, and unskilled work appliable to public works in the region 
and trade the worker operated in at time of injury; Also defines "average monthly prevailing wage" 
and "construction worker" for the purposes of the Nevada Industrial Insurance Act. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 4/2 - Heard

AB222 Revises provisions relating to public works. 
(BDR 28-675) Jackson

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Jackson - 
Makes additions to Chapter 338 of NRS, for hiring preference on Public Works projects. The list 
includes, women residents of the state, honorably discharged members of the military, residents from 
underserved communities, rural citizens, individuals who were formerly incarcerated, and 
individuals under the age of 26. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Gov't Affairs 
3/21 - Heard

AB228 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-100) Dickman

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Dickman - 
Establishes new provisions for absentee ballots a requirements for identification for the purpose of 
voting. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB229 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-37) DeLong

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember DeLong - 
Makes changes to the due date for mail ballots, would have to be postmarked on or before the last day 
of early voting. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12096/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12129/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12132/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12134/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12170/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12224/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12233/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12234/Overview


AB271 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-138)

Gurr, DeLong, 
Hibbetts & Hansen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gurr - 
Would prohibit the use of artificial intelligence (AI) in equipment for voting, ballot processing, or 
counting. Would also mandate that any published material advocating for a candidate or ballot 
question that is created using artificial intelligence must include a disclosure. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB279 Revises provisions relating to tobacco. 
(BDR 32-158)

Orentlicher & 
González

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Orentlicher - 
expands existing laws to make it a crime to sell, possess, import, export, or constructively possess 
vapor products that are not approved by the U.S. Department of HHS. Allows a BOCC to are adopt 
ordinances preventing individuals under 21 from purchasing, possessing, or using tobacco products, 
similar to the existing law for those under 18. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Revenue 4/1 - 
Heard

AB293 Creates the Office of Aerospace. (BDR 18-
782) Koenig & D'Silva

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Koenig - 
Would create the Office of Aerospace, headed by a Director appointed by the Governor. It defines 
several related terms and outlines the office’s duties, including expanding air service, airport 
infrastructure, creating a weather observation system, and developing programs for airport lighting 
and surplus property distribution. The Director of the Office of Aerospace will oversee the Fund for 
Aviation, previously managed by the Department of Transportation, and submit an annual report on 
grants awarded from both the Aerospace Development Fund and the Fund for Aviation. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Revenue 4/3 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

AB295 Revises provisions relating to health 
insurance. (BDR 57-238)

Yurek, Edgeworth 
& Brown-May

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Commerce & Labor - Relating 
to Insurance; Limits how AI can be used to process prior authorizations. Specifically, if AI is used, 
information must be sent to the insured including that AI was used, how it was used, the process, and 
a description of information used to make determination; AI cannot be used to make adverse 
determinations of prior authorization or to terminate, reduce or modify coverage previously 
approved unless an outcome generated by AI is independently reviewed by a physician or dentist 
with specific qualifications; Requires health carriers to compile data on prior authorization requests, 
denials, time it takes to process requests, appeals - all in aggregated form and disaggregated by type 
of care; Changes required response time on prior authorizations by insurers (including Medicaid and 
CHIP) from 20 days to 1) 5 days for non - urgent care and 2) 48 hours for care that is urgent; Upon 
adverse determination during a prior authorization request, requires insurer to transmit specific 
description of reasons for denial, specific clinic criteria or medical evidence relied upon for 
determination, mechanism for appeal including options for independent review.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB313
Revises provisions relating to certain taxes 
assessed at the registration of a motor 
vehicle. (BDR 32-762)

Koenig Neutral

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Koenig - 
Would create a new exemption from the governmental services tax for volunteer firefighters. The 
exemption applies to a vehicle with a determined valuation of up to $8,750 and cannot be claimed in 
more than one county. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Revenue 3/13 - 
Heard

AB316
Revises provisions relating to the 
governance of school districts. (BDR 34-
319)

Asm. Nguyen; Sen. 
Taylor

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Nguyen - 
Would require the board of county commissioners to appoint a nonvoting pupil trustee to the board 
of trustees for each county school district in Nevada. The pupil trustee will be nominated from the 
district's pupils and will have the same rights as voting members, including the ability to receive 
professional development training and express opinions before any votes. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Education 
3/18 - Heard

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12321/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12330/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12353/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12355/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12398/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12401/Overview


AB317

Provides for the establishment of a 
program by a county or city to provide 
certain housing facilities to assist persons 
experiencing homelessness. (BDR 20-863)

Karris
Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Karris - 
Would require homeless to get tiny homes that include individual units and a community kitchen as 
well supportive services for persons experiencing homelessness who reside in the facility. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB332 Revises provisions relating to industrial 
insurance. (BDR 53-325) O’Neill

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember O'Neill - 
Would remove the $36,000 cap on the amount paid to employees, officers, or managers for purposes 
of calculating premiums under industrial insurance policies; would repeal the requirement for the 
Commissioner of Insurance to audit each association of self - insured employers annually, and 
eliminates the need for certain assessments and audits related to workers’ compensation. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 3/31 - Heard

AB349 Makes revisions relating to health care. 
(BDR 23-343) Orentlicher

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Orentlicher - Would 
establish maximum rates for hospitals, independent centers for emergency medical care, and surgical 
centers for ambulatory patients when providing services to individuals covered by the Public 
Employees' Benefits Program or participating local government employers. Local government 
employers can opt into the program's provisions regarding maximum rates. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

3/12 - Heard

AB373 Revises provisions governing limited-
liability companies. (BDR 7-131) Hafen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hafen - 
Would reduce fees for forming and dissolving a limited - liability company (LLC); reduces these fees 
to $25 if the LLC's articles of organization include an initial manager or member who has received 
unemployment compensation within the 7 days before filing; and, reduces the fee for filing articles of 
dissolution from $100 to $25. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB390 Enacts provisions relating to task workers. 
(BDR 53-547)

González, D'Silva & 
Jackson

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gonzalez - 
Provides definitions for "task worker," "task delivery platform," and "task delivery platform provider" 
as contained on a list maintained by the Labor Relations Board; outlines the right of task workers to 
engage in collective bargaining through certified organizations and sets up procedures for such 
bargaining, including the establishment of industry - wide bargaining. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Education 
3/25 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

AB438
Revises provisions relating to 
nonemergency medical transportation. 
(BDR 40-1042)

Dickman, Gallant, 
Gray, Gurr & 

O’Neill

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Health & Human Services - 
Revises provisions related to nonemergency medical transportation; the bill transfers regulatory 
authority over nonemergency medical transport from the Nevada Transportation Authority to the 
State Board of Health/DHHS in all counties except Clark County, where the Authority remains with 
the District Board of Health; removes requirement that a provider of nonemergency medical 
transport obtain a certificate from NTA, instead getting one from district BOH or DHHS; defines non - 
emergency medical transport for purposes of the statute; maintains governmental entities current 
exemption from permitting and regulation for providing transport; requires drivers to report abuse, 
neglect, isolation, or abandonment of a senior or child, failure to report is a misdemeanor; limits fee 
for permit to $200; requires providers of transport to give DHHS or BOH a schedule of rates.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Health & 
Human Services 

3/31 - Heard

AB443 Revises provisions relating to real property. 
(BDR 20-1052) Gallant

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gallant - 
This bill would eliminate all local government authority on zoning, land use, planning and makes 
provisions to taxing to real property. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12402/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12424/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12443/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12505/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12555/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12645/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12651/Overview


AB447
Provides for a partial abatement of the 
property taxes levied on certain residential 
rental dwellings. (BDR 32-1079)

Hardy & Nguyen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hardy - 
Would provide a partial property tax abatement for certain residential rental dwelling owners who do 
not impose additional rent or fees or certain restrictions relating to companion animals. The total 
amount of property tax abatements is capped at $10 million per year for owners who meet these 
criteria and ensures that other property tax abatements do not apply if the new provisions offer a 
greater abatement. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB455 Revises provisions governing property 
taxes. (BDR 32-324)

Hansen, Gray & 
Gurr

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Hansen - 
Would make several changes to property tax exemptions in Nevada; would increase the property tax 
exemptions for veterans, specifically, expanding the exemption to include the assessed value of a 
flagpole that is considered real property due to being a fixture or improvement on the property where 
the veteran has an interest. Would add flags and flagpoles (if not attached to real property) to the list 
of household goods exempt from property taxes, aligning them with other personal property items 
like clothing, appliances, and storage sheds. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB456 Revises provisions relating to public 
utilities. (BDR 58-170) Moore & Considine

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Moore - 
Would require public utility notices to be provided in three languages other than English, most 
commonly used in this state as determined by the Public Utilities Commission. Individuals are 
allowed to request that communications to be in their preferred language. Prohibits a public utility 
from providing customer information to outside entities for commercial purposes without permission 
of the Commission. Prohibits a public utility from terminating service for nonpayment if the amount is 
under $300, less than 6 months overdue, if 1/2 is paid within 25 days, or if the office collecting 
payment is closed. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB469 Revises provisions relating to labor. 
(BDR 53-921) Gallant

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Gallant - 
Would amend several provisions related to workers' compensation and insurance impacting both 
insurers and employees; eliminates the requirement for self - insured employers and associations to 
pay assessments into the Subsequent Injury Accounts, and sets a deadline of September 30, 2025, for 
claims related to subsequent disabilities; removes the $36,000 cap on employee pay for calculating 
industrial insurance premiums; allows insurers to deny vocational rehabilitation and compensation 
for employees discharged for misconduct or those who voluntarily resign. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AB470

Revises provisions relating to prior 
authorization for medical or dental care 
under health insurance plans. (BDR 57-
883)

Kasama
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Commerce and Labor - 
Relating to insurance; Requires health carriers considering adverse determinations on a request for 
prior authorization on the basis of medical necessity, to a) immediately notify provider who 
requested prior auth, b) offer provider opportunity to speak with person making decision to discuss 
clinical issues; Upon rendering adverse determination, health carrier shall transmit to insured a) 
description of reasons for adverse determination, b) description of documentation not received if this 
led to adverse determination, and c) statement on insureds right to appeal; Determines length of 
validity of prior auths; specifies additional limitations on insurers ability to change prior auths; 
Requires health carriers to pay promptly and at the same rate contractually obligated for services that 
have received prior auth; health carriers shall honor new insureds previous prior auths for 90 days; 
determinations of medical necessity cannot be made based on whether provider is in network; 
requires health carriers to post abundance of prior authorization information on website, including 
percentage of requests denied, appeal results, 5 common reasons for denial, etc.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12655/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12688/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12690/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12714/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12715/Overview


AB485 Revises provisions relating to water. 
(BDR 48-386)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Joint Committee on Natural 
Resources - Would amend existing law related to the funding and management of well supervisors 
and associated personnel. Requires a BOCC to levy a special assessment to cover the salaries and 
expenses of well supervisors and assistants if fees from licenses are insufficient; if the special 
assessment and other taxes are less than the cost of collection, the county can use funds from the 
general fund. Appropriates $1M to the Division of Water Resources.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Natural 
Resources 3/19 - 

Disc. As BDR

AB538 Revises provisions governing the Board of 
Economic Development. (BDR 18-419) Cmtee on Revenue

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Joint Standing Committee on 
Revenue - Would require that any tax abatement, partial tax abatement, or transferable tax credits 
with a projected value of $500,000 or more for a single entity or project be approved by the Board of 
Economic Development in alignment with the threshold for approval already set for certain partial 
tax abatements; would require GOED to notify the local governing bodies in counties under 100K, 
including city, county, school district, and community college representatives, within 15 days of an 
application for a tax abatement or transferable tax credit being received for a business or project; 
requiring these entities to appoint a representative to serve as a temporary voting member on the 
Board for the specific purpose of considering and acting on the application. Temporary voting 
members are not compensated by the Board and are not counted toward the quorum requirement for 
meetings. However, they are allowed to review and receive all information regarding the application, 
ensuring local representation in the decision - making process. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Revenue 
(Floor) 3/24 - Disc. 

As BDR

AJR2

Proposes to amend the Nevada Constitution 
to require that the language of a bill or joint 
resolution be made available to the public 
for at least 72 hours before a House may 
vote on the final passage of the bill or joint 
resolution. (BDR C-20)

Kasama

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Kassama - 
Amends the Nevada Constitution to require that the language of a bill or joint resolution be made 
available to the public for at least 72 hours before a House may vote on the final passage of the bill or 
joint resolution. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

AJR3 Revises provisions relating to the 
Legislature. (BDR C-21) Kasama

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Kasama - 
Would amend the Nevada Constitution to require the legislature to follow the same public records 
requirements as other government entities. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

 Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. & Sen. Leg. 

Op's & Elec. 2/11 - 
Mtnd. Not Agd.

AJR4 Revises provisions relating to the legislative 
process. (BDR C-22) Kasama

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Assemblymember Kasama - 
Amends the Nevada Constitution to prohibit appropriations to any political organization or nonprofit 
organization in any bill that is required to fund a portion of the state budget for the next biennium. 
Also authorizes the Governor to veto appropriations in a bill.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB2 Revises provisions relating to collective 
bargaining. (BDR 23-417)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - State Controller - Eliminates 
the existing exemption from public meeting rules for collective bargaining between public employers 
and employees for any negotiation or informal discussion between the local government employer 
and an employee organization or employees, meetings with mediators, or any meeting or 
investigation conducted by a fact finder or arbitrator. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB3 Revises provisions relating to public 
contracts. (BDR 27-431)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - City of North Las Vegas - 
Eliminates the existing prohibition of local governments to enter into a contract in accordance with a 
request for proposals if a contractor's license is required for any portion of work performed under the 
contract. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12746/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12829/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12018/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12019/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12020/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11746/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11747/Overview


SB29 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR 38-450)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Health & Human 
Services – Patient Protection Commission – Establishes processes to shift Medicaid to a value - based 
care model. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB34 Revises provisions relating to certain 
providers of health care. (BDR 54-449)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Patient Protection Commission 
- Establishes Nevada's participation in the following health care licensure compacts, which enable 
portability of license within compact states: (1) Physician Assistant Licensure Compact; (2) Nurse 
Licensure Compact; (3) Audiology & Speech Language Pathology Compact; (4) Physical Therapy 
Licensure Compact; (5) Occupational Therapy Licensure Compact. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB40 Creates the Medicaid Health Care 
Workforce Account. (BDR 38-451)

Cmtee on Health & 
Human Services

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Patient Protection Commission 
- Establishes Medicaid Health Care Workforce Account which allows DHCFP Administrator to expand 
health care workforce support programs, such as GME provision, indirect costs associated with GME, 
fellowship/apprenticeship programs, and loan repayment, where federal financial participation is 
available, and also allows Administrator to seek grants or other financial sources to support Account 
activities. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB51

Provides for reimbursement of cities and 
counties for reductions or subsidies of 
certain fees for affordable housing projects. 
(BDR 25-438)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee, 

Support

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Nevada League of Cities and 
Municipalities - Creates the Account for Housing Expansion Through Local Partnerships that 
authorizes funds in the Account to reimburse cities and counties for the cost of reducing or 
subsidizing certain fees to assist in maintenance and development of affordable housing. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
3/17 - Heard

SB53
Establishes certain requirements relating to 
notices of road hazards and road closures. 
(BDR 35-406)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Lyon County - Adds 2 
nonvoting members representing navigation providers to the The Advisory Committee on Traffic 
Safety of which NACO appoints one voting member to. Adds provisions that allow cities, counties and 
regional transportation commissions to submit road condition reports to state maintained public 
information sites such as Nevada 511 as well as to navigation providers. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
2/26 - Heard

SB55 Establishes provisions relating to 
agricultural tourism. (BDR 18-508)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Lieutenant Governor - Would 
require the Commission on Tourism to develop and administer a grant program to establish 
agritourism in the state. The Commission will consult with the Department of Agriculture on 
regulations on the qualifications of business for agritourism. Section 15 would allow the Director of 
the Department of Agriculture to supersede local authority to issue a special use permit to a business 
that was denied a permit by the local government. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 2/20 - 

Mtnd. Not Agd.

SB61

Revises provisions relating to the powers 
and duties of certain cities relating to the 
annexation and detachment of territory. 
(BDR 21-467)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Clark County - Requires a 
Board of County Commissioners to appoint a public body if a regional planning commission is not 
established to develop comprehensive planning. Also requires Clark County to adopt a program of 
annexation subject to public meeting requirements. Creates a 3 member city annexation and 
detachment commission. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB67 Revises provisions relating to certain 
actions and proceedings. (BDR 3-447) Cmtee on Judiciary

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Attorney General - Changes 
provisions related to the timeframe in which a defendant can make a written request for legal 
representation in a civil action by the state, for officers or employees of the State or a political 
subdivision of the State. Also specifies that public employers are not liable based solely on being the 
employer of an individual that commits a negligent act. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Judiciary 4/2 - 
Heard

SB68 Revises provisions relating to behavioral 
health. (BDR 54-403)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Rural Regional Behavioral 
Health Policy Board - Requires additional reporting to policy boards from behavioral health licensing 
boards; ratifies Social Work Licensure Compact. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11796/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11805/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11814/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11838/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11840/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11847/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11856/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11867/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11868/Overview


SB103 Revises provisions relating to mail ballots. 
(BDR 24-56)

Krasner, Hansen, 
Titus, Steinbeck & 

Stone

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Krasner - This bill 
requires that all mail in ballots be postmarked on or before election day, and must be received by the 
close of the polls on election day. It eliminates the three day grace period for receipt of ballots to be 
counted in an election. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB107 Revises provisions relating to housing. 
(BDR 18-83) Neal

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Neal - Authorizes the 
Nevada Equal Rights Commission to investigate complaints of unlawful housing discrimination, 
attempt informal resolution, and issue cease and desist orders or penalties if discrimination is found. 
Would revise definitions and procedures to align with federal Fair Housing Law, including protections 
against discrimination based on arrest records or income requirements for rental guarantors. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB123 Prohibits local governments from enacting 
rent control. (BDR 20-723) Ellison

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Ellison - Would 
prohibit boards of county commissioners and governing bodies of incorporated cities in Nevada from 
enacting any ordinances or measures that impose rent control.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB127 Revises provisions relating to certain 
training for first responders. (BDR 40-30)

Buck, Krasner & 
Steinbeck

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on HHS - Revises 
certain first responders to receive human trafficking awareness training.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

4/10 - Heard

SB136
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 18-
239)

Scheible

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Scheible - Would 
increase the required number of annual meetings between diversity and inclusion liaisons; including: 
the Office of Minority Health and Equity, the Nevada Commission on Minority Affairs, and the Office 
for New American, from one to three. Maintains the existing requirement for state agencies to 
designate a diversity and inclusion liaison and sets forth the duties of those liaisons. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
2/26 - Not Heard

SB149
Revises provisions governing the 
administration of pharmacy benefits under 
Medicaid. (BDR 38-224)

Stone
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Referred to HHS - Requires 
DHHS to enter into a contract with a Pharmacy Benefits Manager (PBM) to manage Medicaid 
pharmacy benefits.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Health & 
Human Services 

3/25 - Heard

SB150
Provides for the increase of certain rates of 
reimbursement under Medicaid. (BDR S-
658)

Dondero Loop
NACHSA 

Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Referred to HHS - Requires 
Medicaid to increase Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) reimbursement to an opioid treatment 
provider to $15.34 or as close as possible there to, to achieve parity with the State Plan fee - for - 
service rate. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB163 Revises provisions relating to bail. (BDR 14-
725) Ellison

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Ellison - Would allow a 
court to revoke a defendant's bail if it is shown that the defendant committed a felony while released 
on bail, and permits holding the defendant without bail pending a revocation hearing.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB195 Revises provisions relating to elections. 
(BDR 24-907)

Sen. Steinbeck, 
Hansen, Titus, 
Stone, Rogich, 

Ellison & Krasner; 
Asm. Cole

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Steinbeck - This bill 
requires county clerks, ROV's to create standards around mail in ballots and to provide a report to the 
secretary of state's office on the efficiency, and fairness of mail in ballots along with the process 
created by the respective county in regards to mail in ballot availability and processing of said ballots. 
This bill would also change the deadline for mail in ballots to be counted, they would have to be 
received by close of business on election day, and be counted by the 3rd day following the day of the 
election. Further drop boxes for ballots would no longer be allowed to accept ballots after 5pm on 
election day. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11993/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11999/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12042/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12062/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12081/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12108/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12109/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12181/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12242/Overview


SB200

Authorizes, under certain circumstances, 
the reimbursement of costs incurred by 
certain counties related to certain activities 
that are subject to the excise tax on live 
entertainment. (BDR 32-115)

Hansen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Hansen - This 
legislation allows counties to seek reimbursement for costs incurred during live events, currently this 
applies to any event that would be subject to live entertainment tax. This bill is population capped to 
counties under 9k in residents, currently: Esmeralda, Eureka, Lander, Lincoln, Mineral, Pershing and 
Storey. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB205 Revises provisions relating to the statewide 
voter registration list. (BDR 24-579)

Sen. Titus, Krasner, 
Stone, Hansen & 

Ellison; Asm. 

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Titus - This bill 
requires county clerks to use USPS returned address, and address database information, to confirm 
the validity of addresses used for the statewide voter registration system. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB259 Revises provisions relating to taxation. 
(BDR 32-703) Neal

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Neal - Would amend 
existing law regarding the use of sales and use tax proceeds imposed by county boards of 
commissioners; prohibiting use for: early childhood education or adult education programs operated 
by the county school district, programs to reduce truancy, development or redevelopment of 
affordable housing, recruitment or retention incentives for teachers in high - vacancy schools and 
workforce training in the hospitality industry and instead dedicate the funds for programs to reduce 
homelessness and establishing, operating, or maintaining a public transit systems. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Asm. Commerce & 
Labor 4/7 - Mtnd. 

No Juris.

SB261 Revises provisions relating to housing. 
(BDR 3-581)

Sen. Doñate, 
Krasner, Stone, 
Hansen, Daly & 
Nguyen; Asm. 

Gallant

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Donate - Would allow 
the owner of the real property or an authorized representative to submit a written complaint to the 
sheriff to remove an unlawful occupant, instead of following the traditional court procedure. Upon 
verifying the complaint, the sheriff is required to serve a notice to vacate and take other actions. The 
sheriff can also charge fees for serving the notice or for remaining at the property while the owner 
regains possession. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB265
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 19-
918)

Sen. Rogich; Asm. 
Nguyen & 

Edgeworth

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Rogich - Would 
require government agencies to collect data on race or ethnicity for individuals who self - identify as 
Asian, Native Hawaiian, or Pacific Islander in a single question; must include separate categories for 
groups, including Chinese, Vietnamese, Filipino, Samoan, Tongan, and other. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB267 Revises provisions relating to law 
enforcement. (BDR 16-726)

Sen. Ellison; Asm. 
Gurr

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Ellison - Would repeal 
existing law that requires prisoners in county or city jails to be informed about the purpose of 
questions related to their immigration status before being questioned; would require jails/detention 
facilities to report a prisoner’s name and the offense to U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
(ICE) if they are determined to be unlawfully present in the U.S. or lacks necessary documents. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB270
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 28-
778)

Nguyen

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Nguyen - Would 
require contractors or subcontractors on public works or projects partially funded by public money 
to provide documents (such as bids, contracts, and payroll records) upon request by a Taft - Hartley 
trust fund or a joint labor - management committee. Documents must be provided within 10 days, 
with personal identifying information redacted. Includes a penalty of $100 per day. Also requires that 
representatives from joint labor - management committees be granted reasonable access to public 
works to monitor compliance with prevailing wage and apprenticeship requirements. If access is 
denied, the committee can file a lawsuit and potentially be awarded $1,000 for each denial, along with 
attorney’s fees. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12248/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12263/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12411/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12415/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12449/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12451/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12455/Overview


SB288
Establishes certain requirements relating to 
areas in which the risk of fire is high. 
(BDR 42-518)

Cmtee on 
Commerce & Labor

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Commerce and 
Labor - expands the powers of the State Forester Firewarden by requiring the designation of high fire - 
risk areas by regulation. It also mandates disclosure of such fire - risk zones on real estate forms, 
requires local governments to notify building permit applicants if construction is planned in these 
areas, and aligns planning and zoning definitions with these provisions. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB289 Revises provisions relating to local 
governments. (BDR 20-969)

Cmtee on Gov't 
Affairs

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Government 
Affairs - Would authorize boards of county commissioners and governing bodies of incorporated 
cities in Nevada to enact ordinances or measures related to affordable housing, provided such 
measures are not expressly prohibited by statute. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
4/9 - Not Heard

SB296
Revises provisions relating to 
governmental administration. (BDR 19-
944)

Ohrenschall Oppose

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Ohrenschall - This bill 
prohibits local government from entering into NDA's (non disclosure agreements); it also indicates 
that documents, or discussions, or contracts, or anything predicisional or deliberative is considered a 
public record. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Gov't Affairs 
3/24 - Heard

SB302 Revises provisions relating to law 
enforcement. (BDR 20-112)

Hansen, Titus, 
Stone, Buck & 

Ellison

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Hansen - allows a 
county sheriff to enter into written agreements with certain federal agencies, authorizing designated 
federal employees to enforce state or local laws within the sheriff’s jurisdiction. These agreements are 
limited to two years and must specify laws, positions, and revocation terms. Federal employees under 
such agreements must be certified as peace officers by the Peace Officers’ Standards and Training 
Commission within six months and are granted peace officer powers only within the scope of the 
agreement. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB345 Revises provisions relating to associations 
of self-insured employers. (BDR 53-198) Daly

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Daly - strengthens 
oversight and operational standards for associations of self - insured employers in Nevada. It requires 
members to operate in related industries, enhances board governance and fiduciary duties, and 
updates rules on indemnity agreements, assessments, reserves, and insurance coverage. The bill 
prohibits dividend payouts but allows reduced assessments for excess assets, expands the 
Commissioner’s enforcement authority, and mandates uniform underwriting policies. Existing 
certificates for such associations will expire on October 1, 2026, requiring reapplication for 
continuation.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB355
Revises provisions governing partial 
abatements of taxes for certain renewable 
energy facilities. (BDR 58-939)

Ohrenschall Oppose Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Ohrenschall - This bill 
exempts BOCC approval for tax abatement, if 36% of the land is used for Agrovolteics. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Growth & Infra. 
4/2 - Heard

SB366 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. 
(BDR S-1040)

Krasner, Ellison, 
Pazina & Scheible

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Health & Human 
Services - Revises provisions relating to Medicaid to increase reimbursement rates for provider type 
14 and 34 with specific provisions for the setting in which the services are provided.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB369 Revises provisions relating to financial 
institutions. (BDR 55-225)

Stone, Buck, 
Hansen & Ellison

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Commerce and Labor - - 
Revises provisions relating to financial institutions. The bill is intended to protect older and 
vulnerable adults from financial exploitation; defines "covered account" for the purposes of the 
statute; requires certain financial institutions to establish emergency financial contacts for covered 
accounts and alert emergency contacts when an account transaction is over $5K; Allows for 
temporary delays in disbursement and establishes new reporting requirements.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12492/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12493/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12508/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12516/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12604/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12622/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12660/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12663/Overview


SB377 Establishes provisions relating to health 
insurance. (BDR 57-1083) Steinbeck

NACHSA 
Legislative 
Committee

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Commerce and 
Labor - Establishes provisions relating to health insurance, specifically requiring that health 
insurance policies include in coverage at least one alternative to an opioid that is effective for each 
purpose for which (a) an opioid is commonly used; and (b) a non - opioid alternative is available. An 
insurer shall not: (a) require prior authorization for an alternative to an opioid if prior authorization 
would not be required for an opioid under the same circumstances; or (b) Impose other requirements 
on an alternative to an opioid that would not be imposed on an opioid used for under the same 
circumstances. An insurer shall exempt the insured from any "medical management techniques" 
(includes step therapy, prior auth or drug categorizations based on cost, or type/method of 
administration) that would otherwise apply to the benefits described if a provider of health care 
confirms that the alternative to an opioid is appropriate for treatment. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SB384 Revises provisions relating to deputy 
marshals in certain courts. (BDR 1-943) Ohrenschall Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Failed 

Deadline 4-11

SB392 Imposes a tax on the retail sale of certain 
digital products. (BDR 32-700) Neal Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Failed 

Deadline 4-11

Asm. Ways & Means 
3/25 - Mtnd. No 

Juris.

SB415
Authorizes the installation and use of an 
automated traffic enforcement system 
under certain circumstances. (BDR 43-422)

Cmtee on Growth 
& Infra. Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Failed 

Deadline 4-11
Sen. Growth & Infra. 

3/31 - Heard

SB430 Revises provisions relating to taxation. 
(BDR 32-693)

Cmtee on Revenue 
& Econ. Dev.

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Revenue and 
Economic Development - This bill appears to allows for the Housing division to abate real property 
taxes, to incentivize home ownership. It also abates other sales and use taxes, if approved by the 
housing division, for a period not to exceed 4 years.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

Sen. Revenue & 
Econ. Dev. 4/8 - Not 

Heard

SJR4

Urges the Federal Government to support 
and recognize certain land use planning 
principles when conducting projects in this 
State. (BDR R-380)

Cmtee on Natural 
Resources Support

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Committee on Natural 
Resources - Resolution urging the Federal government to recognize the importance of coordinating 
land use planning between federal agencies, the state government, tribal governments, and local 
communities due to the large portion of federally owned land. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

SJR5
Proposes to amend the Nevada Constitution 
to enact various government reforms. 
(BDR C-223)

Stone

Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - Senator Stone - Would amend 
the Nevada Constitution to require that the Legislature to adhere to the same public records laws as 
other governmental entities, would require that bills and joint resolutions are made publicly available 
for at least 72 hours before a vote, would establish the Political Practices Enforcement Commission, 
which would be tasked with overseeing campaign finance laws, lobbying activities, conflicts of 
interest, and ethics in government.

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

 Asm. Leg. Op's & 
Elec. & Sen. Leg. 

Op's & Elec. 2/11 - 
Mtnd. No Juris.

SJR6
Proposes to amend the Nevada Constitution 
to create an independent redistricting 
commission. (BDR C-748)

Hansen Pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action allowed. - This resolution would 
establish an independent redistricting commission. 

Failed 
Deadline 4-11

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12672/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12680/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12694/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12749/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12778/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12038/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12060/Overview
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/12208/Overview


Page 1 of 2 

10 Hardy Dr 

Sparks, NV  89431 
NV Lic. #80022 

CA Lic. #1014257 

chet@ncbservice.com 
775.432.1331 phone 

May 09, 2025 

Nevada Association of Counties 
304 S Minnesota St 
Carson City, NV 89703 

Attn: Amanda Berg 
Re: Boiler Replacement 

Dear Amanda, 

Nevada Chiller & Boiler is pleased to submit a proposal for your HVAC equipment. We propose to furnish labor, 
materials, tools and equipment to perform the following work: 

 Replace LAARS boiler with a new Rinnai boiler
 Ensure no leaks from any connections we make.
 Perform manufacturer start-up and verify proper operation.

Excluded: 
 Any material, labor or repairs not mentioned above, over time related work, water treatment, balance,

new valves, controls, all electrical, permits, fees, bonds.

For the above-mentioned work Nevada Chiller & Boiler Service asks a price of $21,111.00 

Note: Any additional problems found while performing this work will be quoted separately. 

 Terms and Conditions 
Terms, subject to approval of credit, are net cash within 30 days after service with a finance charge of 1.5%per month for past 
due balances. Any cost incurred in the collection of past due amounts including attorney’s fees, court cost, etc. shall be paid 
by the buyer. This quotation is firm for acceptance within thirty days for service as noted. If service is deferred at your request, 
we reserve the right to requote if prices have changed. Items not defined in the above-mentioned scope are not included. Any 
applicable taxes or freight have not been included except as noted. We have not included any provisions handling, removing, 
or disposing of any asbestos containing materials. All labor is at normal working hours. Nights, weekends, or holiday work is 
not included unless otherwise noted. Permits, if required, are not included unless otherwise stated. Warranty on equipment 
offered we be the same as the standard warranty extended by the manufacturer. Labor warranty is 60 days from startup. Orders 
entered and subsequently canceled are subject to the remedies provided by the uniform commercial code. 

Nevada Association of Counties  Nevada Chiller & Boiler, Inc. 

Signature    ____________________________  Signature ____________________________ 

Name: Name: Chet Wagner 

Title: Title: Maintenance & Parts Manager 

Date:  Date:  05/09/2025 

Chet Wagner 

Agenda Item 11

mailto:chet@ncbservice.com


Page 2 of 2 

10 Hardy Dr 

Sparks, NV  89431 
NV Lic. #80022 

CA Lic. #1014257 

chet@ncbservice.com 
775.432.1331 phone 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

     By accepting this proposal, Purchaser agrees to be bound by the following terms and conditions: 

1. INVOICING & PAYMENTS.  Nevada Chiller & Boiler may invoice Purchaser monthly for all materials delivered to the job site or to an off-site storage facility and for all work performed on-site

and off-site.  Purchaser shall pay Nevada Chiller & Boiler at the time purchaser signs this agreement an advance payment equal to 10% of the contract price, which advance payment shall
be credited against the final payment (but not any progress payment) due hereunder and purchaser agrees to pay Nevada Chiller & Boiler additional amounts invoiced upon receipt of the invoice. 
Waivers of lien will be furnished upon request, as the work progresses; to the extent payments are received.  If Nevada Chiller & Boiler invoice is not paid within 15 days of its issuance, it is
considered delinquent.

2. MATERIALS.  If the materials or equipment included in this proposal become temporarily or permanently unavailable for reasons beyond the control and without the fault of Nevada Chiller &
Boiler, then in the case of such temporary unavailability, the time for performance of the work shall be extended to the extent thereof, and in the case of permanent unavailability, Nevada Chiller
& Boiler shall (a) be excused from furnishing said materials or equipment, and (b) be reimbursed for the difference between the cost of the materials or equipment permanently unavailable and
the cost of a reasonable available substitute therefore.

3. WARRANTY.  Nevada Chiller & Boiler warrants material and workmanship arising from normal usage for a period of 1 year  from delivery of said equipment, or if installed by Nevada Chiller &
Boiler, for a period of one (90) days from installation. For equipment installed by Nevada Chiller & Boiler, if Purchaser provides written notice to Nevada Chiller & Boiler of any such defect within 
thirty (15) days after the appearance or discovery of such defect, Nevada Chiller & Boiler shall, at its option, repair or replace the defective equipment. All transportation charges incurred in 
connection with the warranty for equipment not installed by Nevada Chiller & Boiler shall be borne by Purchaser.  These warranties do not extend to any equipment which has been repaired by
others, abused, altered or misused, or which has not been properly and reasonably maintained.  THESE WARRANTIES ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A SPECIFIC PURPOSE.

4. LIABILITY.  Nevada Chiller & Boiler shall not be liable for any special, indirect or consequential damages arising in any manner from the equipment or material furnished or the work performed
pursuant to this agreement. 

5. DELAYS.  Nevada Chiller & Boiler shall not be liable for any delay in the performance of the work resulting from or attributed to acts or circumstances beyond Nevada Chiller & Boiler’s control,
including, but not limited to, acts or God, fire, riots, labor disputes, conditions of the premises, acts or omissions of the Purchaser, Owner, or other Contractors or delays caused suppliers or 
subcontractors of Nevada Chiller & Boiler, etc.

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Nevada Chiller & Boiler shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and shall obtain all temporary licenses and permits required
for the prosecution of the work.  Licenses and permits of a permanent nature shall be procured and paid for by the Purchaser.

7. INDEMNITY.  The Parties hereto agree to indemnify each other from any and all liabilities, claims, expenses, losses or damages, including attorney’s fees, which may arise in connection with
the execution of the work herein specified and which are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent act or omission of the Indemnifying Party. 

8. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH.  The Parties hereto agree to notify each other immediately upon becoming aware of an inspection under, or any alleged violation of, the Occupational
Safety and Health Act relating in any way to the project or project site.

mailto:chet@ncbservice.com


Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet

February 28, 2025

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 47,512.35$     
Zions Bank Sweep Account 1,184,905.79
Accounts Receivable 112,139.80
Prepaid Expenses 2,248.48

Total Current Assets 1,346,806.42

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 145,713.79
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 44,304.50
Accumulated Depreciation (376,165.42)

Total Property and Equipment 573,724.55

Other Assets
Investments 679,255.59
Investments - Cash Equivalents 202,145.27
Investments Interest Receivable 1,625.95
Investments Trades Receivable 616.84
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (6,484.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 463,886.00

Total Other Assets 1,351,545.65

Total Assets 3,272,076.62$   

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Copier Lease Liability 4,040.00$    
Accrued Payroll Benefits 30,552.18
Defferred Income 10.00
PERS Pension Liability 873,961.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 197,119.00

Total Current Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,477,721.57
Net Income 688,672.87

Total Capital 2,166,394.44

Total Liabilities & Capital 3,272,076.62$   

6/23/2025 at 3:27 PM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

Agenda Item 12



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Two Months Ending 
February 28, 2025

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 638,359.00 638,356.00 100.0%
Health & Human Services Assessment 0.00 84,168.00 84,170.00 100.0%
Conference Revenues 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 0.0%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 35,000.00 70,000.00 50.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Interest Income 1,587.21 3,034.23 15,000.00 20.2%
National Programs 500.54 500.54 5,000.00 10.0%
Corporate Partnership Program 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.0%
Gain/(Loss) On Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments (4,471.42) 8,651.85 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues (2,383.67) 769,713.62 942,526.00 81.7%

Expenses
Salaries 26,450.60 47,289.98 481,005.00 9.8%
Retirement: PERS 7,685.51 7,685.51 161,137.00 4.8%
Employee Health Insurance/Life 113.83 2,418.86 43,000.00 5.6%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 1,240.50 2,159.02 20,000.00 10.8%
Audit 0.00 0.00 9,600.00 0.0%
Board Meetings 0.00 29.76 8,000.00 0.4%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 1,021.56 1,645.79 20,000.00 8.2%
Conference Expenses 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.0%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.0%
Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 269.62 638.46 4,500.00 14.2%
Equipment Purchases 0.00 696.14 4,500.00 15.5%
IT Support 1,239.13 1,239.13 3,000.00 41.3%
Institute of Local Government 0.00 0.00
Internet Service 0.00 799.00 9,000.00 8.9%
Legislative Expense 0.00 2,334.84 25,000.00 9.3%
Liability & Auto Insurance 561.00 1,526.00 5,500.00 27.7%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 0.00
Member Services 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0%
Office Supplies 772.40 1,325.45 3,500.00 37.9%
PEHB Liability 212.75 425.50 6,000.00 7.1%
Postage 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 1,688.08 3,145.33 12,000.00 26.2%
Property Taxes 0.00 0.00
Publications, Dues, Registrations 300.00 1,666.39 4,000.00 41.7%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 249.00
Representative Travel 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.0%
Special Studies/Litigation 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 0.00 1,766.57 20,000.00 8.8%
Sub Grant Employee Expense 9,893.36 3,495.50
Telephone 35.00 285.91 7,000.00 4.1%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 0.00 69.61 2,000.00 3.5%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 0.00 149.00 10,000.00 1.5%
WIR Dues 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.0%

Total Expenses 51,483.34 81,040.75 944,242.00 8.6%

Net Income (53,867.01)              688,672.87                (1,716.00)                

6/23/2025 at 3:27 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2025

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 45,015.96$                
Zions Bank Sweep Account 1,232,091.09
Accounts Receivable 23,249.80
Prepaid Expenses 1,687.48

Total Current Assets 1,302,044.33

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 145,713.79
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 44,304.50
Accumulated Depreciation (376,165.42)

Total Property and Equipment 573,724.55

Other Assets
Investments 661,446.29
Investments - Cash Equivalents 205,445.23
Investments Interest Receivable 1,689.95
Investments Trades Receivable 736.16
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (6,484.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 463,886.00

Total Other Assets 1,337,219.63

Total Assets 3,212,988.51$           

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Copier Lease Liability 4,040.00$                  
Accrued Payroll Benefits 30,552.18
Deferred Income 10.00
PERS Pension Liability 873,961.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 197,119.00

Total Current Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,477,721.57
Net Income 629,584.76

Total Capital 2,107,306.33

Total Liabilities & Capital 3,212,988.51$           

6/23/2025 at 3:26 PM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Three Months Ending 
March 31, 2025

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 638,359.00 638,356.00 100.0%
Health & Human Services Assessment 0.00 84,168.00 84,170.00 100.0%
Conference Revenues 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 0.0%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 35,000.00 70,000.00 50.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Interest Income 1,905.04 4,939.27 15,000.00 32.9%
National Programs 255.20 755.74 5,000.00 15.1%
Corporate Partnership Program 2,500.00 2,500.00 50,000.00 5.0%
Gain/(Loss) On Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments (14,326.02) (5,674.17) 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues (9,665.78) 760,047.84 942,526.00 80.6%

Expenses
Salaries 26,231.14 73,521.12 481,005.00 15.3%
Retirement: PERS 8,787.43 16,472.94 161,137.00 10.2%
Employee Health Insurance/Life 2,311.16 4,730.02 43,000.00 11.0%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 1,368.14 3,527.16 20,000.00 17.6%
Audit 0.00 0.00 9,600.00 0.0%
Board Meetings 284.23 313.99 8,000.00 3.9%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 859.01 2,504.80 20,000.00 12.5%
Conference Expenses 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.0%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.0%
Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 235.00 873.46 4,500.00 19.4%
Equipment Purchases 1,017.10 1,713.24 4,500.00 38.1%
IT Support 129.10 1,368.23 3,000.00 45.6%
Institute of Local Government 0.00 0.00
Internet Service 1,598.00 2,397.00 9,000.00 26.6%
Legislative Expense 2,541.53 4,876.37 25,000.00 19.5%
Liability & Auto Insurance 561.00 2,087.00 5,500.00 37.9%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 0.00
Member Services 187.15 187.15 5,000.00 3.7%
Office Supplies 792.99 2,118.44 3,500.00 60.5%
PEHB Liability 212.75 638.25 6,000.00 10.6%
Postage 172.06 172.06 500.00 34.4%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 338.08 3,483.41 12,000.00 29.0%
Property Taxes 0.00 0.00
Publications, Dues, Registrations 116.39 1,782.78 4,000.00 44.6%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 249.00
Representative Travel 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.0%
Special Studies/Litigation 3,205.22 3,205.22 1,500.00 213.7%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 351.32 2,117.89 20,000.00 10.6%
Sub Grant Employee Expense (2,595.10) 900.40
Telephone 250.77 536.68 7,000.00 7.7%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 0.00 69.61 2,000.00 3.5%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 467.86 616.86 10,000.00 6.2%
WIR Dues 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.0%

Total Expenses 49,422.33 130,463.08 944,242.00 13.8%

Net Income (59,088.11)              629,584.76                (1,716.00)                

6/23/2025 at 3:26 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Balance Sheet
April 30, 2025

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - NV State Bank 52,093.31$                
Zions Bank Sweep Account 1,172,341.73
Accounts Receivable 23,249.80
Prepaid Expenses 1,126.48

Total Current Assets 1,248,811.32

Property and Equipment
Office Equipment 180,965.50
Building 447,906.18
Land 131,000.00
Building Improvements 145,713.79
Fixed Assets - Vehicle 44,304.50
Accumulated Depreciation (376,165.42)

Total Property and Equipment 573,724.55

Other Assets
Investments 668,335.99
Investments - Cash Equivalents 198,452.92
Investments Interest Receivable 1,913.07
Investments Trades Receivable 689.38
Copier Lease ROU Asset 10,500.00
Copier Accumulated Amortization (6,484.00)
DEFFERRED OUTFLOWS 463,886.00

Total Other Assets 1,337,293.36

Total Assets 3,159,829.23$           

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
Copier Lease Liability 4,040.00$                  
Accrued Payroll Benefits 30,552.18
Deferred Income 10.00
PERS Pension Liability 873,961.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS 197,119.00

Total Current Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 1,105,682.18

Capital
Retained Earnings 1,477,721.57
Net Income 576,425.48

Total Capital 2,054,147.05

Total Liabilities & Capital 3,159,829.23$           

6/23/2025 at 3:25 PM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Nevada Association of Counties
Income Statement/Budget

For the Four Months Ending 
April 30, 2025

Current Month Year to Date Budget Y-T-D % Budget
Revenues
Membership Dues 0.00 638,359.00 638,356.00 100.0%
Health & Human Services Assessment 0.00 84,168.00 84,170.00 100.0%
Conference Revenues 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 0.0%
IAF/Supplemental Funds 0.00 35,000.00 70,000.00 50.0%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Interest Income 1,813.00 6,752.27 15,000.00 45.0%
National Programs 0.00 755.74 5,000.00 15.1%
Corporate Partnership Program 0.00 2,500.00 50,000.00 5.0%
Gain/(Loss) On Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrealized Gain/(Loss)-Investments 73.73 (5,600.44) 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 1,886.73 761,934.57 942,526.00 80.8%

Expenses
Salaries 23,154.22 96,675.34 481,005.00 20.1%
Retirement: PERS 7,756.66 24,229.60 161,137.00 15.0%
Employee Health Insurance/Life 2,188.07 6,918.09 43,000.00 16.1%
FICA, ESD, and Medicare Expense 1,023.33 4,550.52 20,000.00 22.8%
Audit 0.00 0.00 9,600.00 0.0%
Board Meetings 0.00 313.99 8,000.00 3.9%
Building Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%
Building Operating Expenses 4,636.23 7,141.03 20,000.00 35.7%
Conference Expenses 1,000.00 1,000.00 40,000.00 2.5%
Contract Services 0.00 0.00
County Leadership Institute 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.0%
Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00
Donations/Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Equipmnet Lease & Maintenance 235.00 1,108.46 4,500.00 24.6%
Equipment Purchases 0.00 1,713.24 4,500.00 38.1%
IT Support 0.00 1,368.23 3,000.00 45.6%
Institute of Local Government 0.00 0.00
Internet Service 815.00 3,212.00 9,000.00 35.7%
Legislative Expense (684.76) 4,191.61 25,000.00 16.8%
Liability & Auto Insurance 965.00 3,052.00 5,500.00 55.5%
Management Consultant & Training 0.00 0.00
Member Services 4,485.94 4,673.09 5,000.00 93.5%
Office Supplies 715.88 2,834.32 3,500.00 81.0%
PEHB Liability 212.75 851.00 6,000.00 14.2%
Postage 73.00 245.06 500.00 49.0%
Printing 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0%
Professional Fees 1,338.08 4,821.49 12,000.00 40.2%
Property Taxes 0.00 0.00
Publications, Dues, Registrations 122.54 1,905.32 4,000.00 47.6%
Recruiting & Advertising 0.00 249.00
Representative Travel 770.82 770.82 15,000.00 5.1%
Special Studies/Litigation 0.00 3,205.22 1,500.00 213.7%
Actuarial Study Medicaid Match 0.00 0.00
Staff Travel 3,171.60 5,289.49 20,000.00 26.4%
Sub Grant Employee Expense 2,632.90 3,533.30
Telephone 250.77 787.45 7,000.00 11.2%
Vehicle Registration Maintenance 0.00 69.61 2,000.00 3.5%
Web-based Hosting & Subscription Software 182.98 799.84 10,000.00 8.0%
WIR Dues 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.0%

Total Expenses 55,046.01 185,509.12 944,242.00 19.6%

Net Income (53,159.28)              576,425.45                (1,716.00)                

6/23/2025 at 3:25 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only



1 

STATE PUBLIC HEALTH FUNDS PRIORITIES SFY26-27 

PLEASE INDICATE YOUR PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES (I.E., OUTREACH TO SENIOR 
CITIZENS, DIABETES EDUCATION, ETC.) AND THE DOLLAR AMOUNT PROPOSED 
FOR EACH PRIORITY LISTED. 

HOW DID YOU CHOOSE THE PRIORITIES FOR YOUR COUNTY/HEALTH DISTRICT? 
(I.E., COUNTY HEALTH ASSESSMENT, NEEDS ASSESSMENT HEALTH REPORTS)  

CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX FOR THE FOUNDATIONAL PUBLIC HEALTH 
SERVICES YOU WILL ADDRESS WITH THE FUNDS: SEE PAGE TWO FOR DESCRIPTIONS 

Foundational Areas 

☐ Communicable Disease Control

☐Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention

☐Environmental Public Health

☐Maternal, Child, and Family Health

☐ Access to and Linkage with Clinical Care

Foundational Capabilities

☐Assessment and Surveillance

☐Community Partnership Development

☐Equity

☐Organizational Competencies

☐Emergency Preparedness and Response

☐Communications

☐Other_________________________________________________

Agenda Item 13



2 

Please find the descriptions of Foundational Public Health Services below 

Foundational Areas 

• Communicable Disease Control Fact Sheet

• Chronic Disease and Injury Prevention Fact
Sheet

• Environmental Public Health Fact Sheet

• Maternal, Child, & Family Health Fact Sheet

• Access to & Linkage with Clinical Care Fact
Sheet

Foundational Capabilities 

• Assessment and Surveillance Fact Sheet

• Community Partnership Development Fact Sheet

• Organizational Competencies Fact Sheet

• Policy Development & Support Fact Sheet

• Accountability & Performance Management Fact Sheet

• Emergency Preparedness & Response Fact Sheet

• Communications Fact Sheet

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Communicable-Disease-Control-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Chronic-Disease-Injury-Prevention-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Chronic-Disease-Injury-Prevention-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Environmental-Public-Health-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Maternal-Child-Family-Health-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Access-to-Linkage-with-Clinical-Care-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Access-to-Linkage-with-Clinical-Care-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Assessment-Surveillance-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Community-Partnership-Development-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Organizational-Competencies-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Policy-Development-Support-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Accountability-Performance-Management-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Emergency-Preparedness-Response-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Public-Health-Communications-Fact-Sheet.pdf


1 

By Jurisdiction % Allocation

SFY26-27 Total 
Allocation for 
Biennium

SFY26  
Allocation 

SFY27  
Allocation

Central Nevada Health District 1.3% 192,088.00$  96,044.00$         96,044.00$         
Northern Nevada Public Health 16.0% 2,364,160.00$                  1,182,080.00$   1,182,080.00$   
Southern Nevada Health District 73.0% 10,786,480.00$               5,393,240.00$   5,393,240.00$   
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 9.7% 1,433,272.00$                  716,636.00$       716,636.00$       
Tribal Health Authority Council 224,000.00$  112,000.00$       112,000.00$       

15,000,000.00$               7,500,000.00$   7,500,000.00$   

DPBH Breakdown by County Population* % of State Population % of DPBH allocation SFY25 Dollar Allocation 

SFY26-27 Total 
Allocation for 
Biennium

SFY26  
Allocation

SFY27  
Allocation

Carson City 60,266 1.8% 18.0% 262,101.18$  257,453.09$     128,726.54$       128,726.54$       
Storey County 4,457 0.1% 1.3% 19,897.83$  19,040.06$       9,520.03$           9,520.03$           
Douglas County 55,797 1.7% 16.6% 236,751.34$  238,361.76$     119,180.88$       119,180.88$       
Lyon County 65,116 2.0% 19.4% 271,719.74$  278,172.02$     139,086.01$       139,086.01$       
Lander County 6,255 0.2% 1.9% 27,678.07$  26,721.02$       13,360.51$         13,360.51$         
Humboldt County 17,801 0.5% 5.3% 80,548.67$  76,044.91$       38,022.45$         38,022.45$         
Elko County 57,989 1.8% 17.3% 253,480.44$  247,725.87$     123,862.93$       123,862.93$       
White Pine County 10,209 0.3% 3.0% 44,951.02$  43,612.29$       21,806.15$         21,806.15$         
Lincoln County 4,730 0.1% 1.4% 22,342.92$  20,206.30$       10,103.15$         10,103.15$         
Nye County 51,802 1.6% 15.4% 230,728.50$  221,295.34$     110,647.67$       110,647.67$       
Esmeralda County 1,086 0.0% 0.3% 4,800.29$  4,639.33$         2,319.67$           2,319.67$           
Nevada Total 3,282,911 10.2% 100.0% 1,455,000.00$  1,433,272.00$ 716,636.00$       716,636.00$       

Nevada Population 2024

State Public Health Funding SFY26-27

Population data is from the State of Nevada Department of Taxation: 


	NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment must include your f...
	The public may also join the meeting via remote access and provide verbal public comment during designated times by using the provided Microsoft Teams Link.
	AGENDA
	Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	Adjournment.
	NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703
	Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801
	NACO BOD Draft Minutes May 2025.pdf
	Attendance: President Andreozzi, President Elect Gardner, Vice President Andriola, Past President Giomi, Churchill County Commissioner Getto, Douglas County Commissioner Tolbert, Esmeralda County Commissioner Perez, Lander County Commissioner Helming,...
	The meeting was called to order at 9:31 a.m.

	2025 Attendee Registration Form.pdf
	Sheet1

	2025 Conference Sponsor Registration.pdf
	Sponsor Registration
	Sheet1

	Bill Tracker - Final.pdf
	Filtered Bills

	Copy of NACO Financials 2-28-25 - Corrected.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board

	Copy of NACO Financials 3-31-25 - Corrected.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board

	Copy of NACO Financials 4-30-25.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Stmnt Board




